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Financial Highlights

MEBERE

REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL MARKET FORTHE YEAR HFRZRTEHEH#ESE 22 W A

REVENUE BY PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR

2017
— L

Hong Kong &% 54.62%
Other regions in Asia Pacific 25 A £ i & 0.11%
Europe B 0.88%

North and South America db 3l & M 44.39%

2017
gt

Manufacture and sale of medical devices products

HERHERERBER 43.24%
Manufacture and sale of plastic moulding products
HERHEYBEAER 2.21%

Provision of construction services in building construction,
building maintenance and improvement works, project
management, renovation, and decoration works

RYUETEE EFRERKEIRE

HEERE  REREHTETEZEERSE 47.59%
Provision of money lending

REHE 6.96%
Investment in securities

BHE 0%
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2016
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Hong Kong &% 58.03%
Other regions in Asia Pacific 32 A H fth i@ 0.87%
Europe BRI 1.42%

North and South America b3 M & M 39.68%

FREFEXRHEH T 2WA

2016
—g—xE

Manufacture and sale of medical devices products

HERHEBRERBER 39.39%

Manufacture and sale of plastic moulding products
SUERHELBIRAER 2.58%

Provision of construction services in building construction,
building maintenance and improvement works, project
management, renovation, and decoration works
REETRE  BTRERRETR

HEEE  RERRMHTEAEZRERSE 54.52%
Provision of money lending

REME 3.51%
Investment in securities

BHRE 0%



FINANCIAL AND OPERATING RESULTS

HIGHLIGHTS

The following table sets forth certain financial information of

AMCO United Holding Limited (the

"Company”) and its subsidiaries

(collectively, the “Group”) as of the date for the years indicated:

Financial Highlights

MBREE
MBREEEERE
TRANSFERARAT ((ART]) LEH

BoA (SR AKEDRIRFERRZET
BB EH

OPERATING RESULTS (HK$'000) 2017 2016
REXEJE(THER) —ZE—tF —E-REF
Revenue from continuing operations KEFBREEEBL ZIKA 87,932 98,400
Loss for the year FEEE (147,930) (18,409)
FINANCIAL POSITION (HK$'000) 2017 2016
MR (FHET) —ZE2—+tF —E-REF
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ~ ANQAIEA AE(HIEZR 165,683 302,842
Total assets BEE 228,211 334,004
Net assets BEFE 165,683 302,842
Net assets value per share (HK cents) BREEFE (BI) 8.9 16.3
FINANCIAL STATISTICS 2017 2016
B g e at —Z2—+tF —E-REF
Current ratio’ i & b R 3.4 9.9
Total debt to total assets ratio? BEG RS E R 0.3 0.1
Return on total assets (%)3 488 FE Bl 3R K (%)3 (64.8) (5.5)
Return on sales (%)* THE B E(%)* (168.2) (18.7)
Loss per share from continuing and REFBERDKRIEEEEG 2

discontinued operations (HK cents) TR EE ()

Basic and diluted BEARREE (7.9) (1.0)

Notes:

1. Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities.

2. Total debt to total assets ratio is calculated by dividing the total

indebtedness by total assets.

3. Return on total assets is calculated by dividing the loss for the year by

total assets.

4. Return on sales is calculated by dividing the loss for the year by revenue

from continuing operations.

GES

1. RBLEEDUARDEERARDEEFE

2. ,%-1 BHEEELRIIAGEERIABEE
3. REBEELMEDUFEEERAGEETE -
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Corporate Information

QNAEHR

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

ZHANG Hengxin (Chairman and Managing Director)
JIA Minghui

Independent Non-executive Directors

CHAN Tsz Keung
AU YEUNG Ming Yin Gordon
GUO Zheuhui

COMPANY SECRETARY

HUNG Tsz Ching

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

ZHANG Hengxin
HUNG Tsz Ching

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 1104, Crawford House
70 Queen’s Road Central, Central

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11

Bermuda
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

AUDITOR

Elite Partners CPA Limited
10/F., 8 Observatory Road
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HMO08

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Standard Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

WEBSITE

wWww.amco-united.com
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Chairman’s Statement
ETEHE

Facing a high level of uncertainty of the economy and the volatile
financial market in Hong Kong and globally, the Year 2017 has been
another year of great challenge. While we encountered difficulties
by suffering significant loss in the Group’s business of investment in
securities during the year, we strived to effectively manage working
capital and cautiously adjust business and investment portfolio of the
Group in response to the changing business and market environment and
to stabilise any downturn impact. With the successful transformation to
extend our business portfolio to different business sectors last year, we
focused our efforts to facilitate business development of the respective
business segments which have contributed to generate relatively stable

turnover and gross profits of the Group in the current year.

In 2017, the decline in sales order from a major customer suffered for
the Group's business segment in the manufacture and sale of medical
devices products (“Medical Devices Business”) in last year has eased,
and revenue generated for the Medical Devices Business has remained
relatively stable over previous year. Meanwhile, the medical devices
product has yielded a higher margin in price and alongside with effective
cost control, segment profit of the Medical Devices Business has
increased in the current year. Confronting the challenge of fluctuating
sales order, the Group has persisted to deploy business strategies of
streamlining and outsourcing of business processes and implementing
stringent cost control in order to maintain its long-term sustainable
competitive advantages in the business segment. The Group's business
segment in the manufacture and sale of plastic moulding products
("Plastic Moulding Business”) has significantly downsized last year
and revenue generated by this business continued to decline in the
current year due to end of product life cycles of most of its products.
Segment results of the Plastic Moulding Business has also turned from
profit to loss this year caused by the continual decline in sales order.
With effective product mix fine tuning and cost containment programs
implemented, the Group is of the view that it will continue the operation
of the Plastic Moulding Business as long as it still contributes sufficiently
to share appropriate portion of the administration and operation cost of

the Group.
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The Group has successfully stepped in the field of provision of
construction services in building construction, building maintenance and
improvement works, project management, renovation and decoration
works (“Building Contract Works Business”) by acquisition of a
wholly-owned subsidiary last year. In 2017, revenue generated from the
Building Contract Works Business has decreased over the previous year,
which the Group considers to be only temporary in nature in view of
a majority of new significant contracts awarded during the year were
commenced in the second half of the financial year or were pending
to be commenced within next year. Gross profit margin has increased
in current year which indicated effective cost control achieved for this
business. With the successful awards of several significant contracts
particularly in the public sector near and subsequent to the year end,
the Group is deploying its efforts to foster its business development and
improvement in results in response to the fierce market competition of

the building construction and maintenance industry.

The Group's business in the provision of money lending (“Money Lending
Business”) has successfully generated stable income to the Group in
2017. Segment revenue and segment profit of the Money Lending
Business has increased in the current year which also contributed
improvement in the overall profit margins of the Group. Due to the
volatile stock market in Hong Kong, the Group recorded a significant
amount of segment loss for its business of investment in securities
(“Securities Investment”) in the current year. The Group will closely
monitor and appraise the performance of this business and cautiously

assess the investment portfolio from time to time.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

EERE

PROSPECTS

With the successful transformation and diversification of the Group’s
business portfolio, the Group will advance its steps to facilitate business
development of its business segments by formulating, evaluating and
modifying business strategies of the different businesses. The Group
will conduct performance appraisals and assessment constantly and
dynamically to evaluate the ongoing business development, and
actively reallocate its assets, labour force and funding in response to
the changing business performance and market conditions. To cope
with the business development of the business segments, the Group
will deploy its efforts to ensure effective capital allocation and evaluate
its sufficiency in respect of the different business segments. Despite
difficulties which may be encountered under the uncertainties in the
economy and financial market, the Group will strive to maintain liquidity
by effectively manage its working capital and controlling costs, and

adhere to its lean organisation structure to leverage operation efficiency.

While business strategies to develop the business segments continue
to evolve, the Group will continue to develop its business portfolio
by adjusting it to adapt to the changing business environment and
climate and correspond to actual business results, and in the meantime
proactively exploring and grasping potentially profitable business and
investment opportunity, with an aim to optimize it in order to maximize
shareholders’ value and return and maintain the Group’s momentum to

grow in a sustainable manner.

Zhang Hengxin
Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

RESULTS

The total revenue of the Group from continuing operations decreased
HK$10.5 million or 10.7%, from HK$98.4 million last year to HK$87.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2017. Such a decrease was
mainly attributable to the decrease in revenue from the Building Contract

Works Business.

Gross profit of the Group was HK$20.4 million, representing an increase
of HK$3.4 million or 20.0% as compared to HK$17.0 million in 2016.
Gross profit margin for the year reached 23.2% (2016: 17.3%),
representing an elevation of 5.9 percentage points over the last financial
year, primarily as a result of gross profit margin contributed from the

Money Lending Business.

During the year under review, the Group recorded a significant amount
of other losses, net of other income and other gains, of HK$128.2
million, as compared to the other income and other gains, net of
other losses, of HK$5.2 million recorded in the corresponding year of
2016. Such significant loss was mainly attributable to the realised and
unrealised losses recorded on change in fair value of held-for-trading
investments arising from the Securities Investment during the year under

review.

The distribution costs amounted to HK$0.3 million, which remained
relatively the same as that for the corresponding year of 2016. The
administrative expenses increased by HK$1.3 million to HK$39.8 million
(2016: HK$38.5 million), representing an increase of 3.4% over the
corresponding year of 2016. Such an increase was mainly attributable to

the share-based payment expenses incurred during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The Group discontinued its operation in the provision for public relations
services (“PR Business”) with effect from April 2017 and recorded a
loss from discontinued operation of HK$0.07 million (2016: loss from
discontinued operations of HK$0.47 million) during the year under

review.

As a result, the overall loss attributable to owners of the Company was
HK$147.9 million, which increased significantly by HK$129.5 million as

compared to HK$18.4 million loss for the corresponding year of 2016.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Continuing operations
Medlical Devices Business

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Medical Devices Business
recorded revenue of HK$38.0 million, which decreased by 2.1% or
HK$0.8 million as compared to that of HK$38.8 million in the previous
year. This amount represented 43.2% of the Group's total revenue from
continuing operations for the year under review. In the second half of
2017, the economy of the United States of America (“America”) has
indicated steady growth, and the decline in sales order from our key
customer in America suffered for the Medical Devices Business has eased
in the current year. As a result, the revenue of the Medical Devices
Business has remained relatively stable over previous year for the year

under review.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Segment profit of the Medical Devices Business amounted to HK$2.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2017, representing an increase
of HK$1.7 million or 141.7% as compared to that of HK$1.2 million
in the corresponding year of 2016. The increase in segment profit was
primarily as a result of higher margin in price yielded by the medical
devices product and effective cost control achieved in current year.
Facing the challenge of fluctuating sales order, the Group is persisting to
deploy business strategies of streamlining and outsourcing of business
processes, implementing stringent cost control and ensuring effective
utilization of resources in order to maintain its long-term sustainable

competitive advantages in the business segment.

Plastic Moulding Business

The revenue from the Plastic Moulding Business decreased by 24.0% or
HK$0.6 million to HK$1.9 million, as compared to HK$2.5 million in the
previous year, which accounted for 2.2% of the Group’s total revenue
from continuing operations for the year under review. A majority of
plastic moulding products suffered from declining sales orders as relevant
customers’ end products have reached the end of their product life cycle,
causing continuous decline in revenue of the Plastic Moulding Business
during the year under review. In view of this, the Group has ceased
the production of the majority of those products which contributed a
relatively low gross profit margin, and has only been accepting small
number of production orders of mould fabrication and some products,

which have a relatively higher gross profit margin.

Despite persistent efforts in the improvement in profit margins of
sales orders and cost control in the reduction of distribution costs and
administrative expenses, the Group recorded segment loss of HK$0.3
million for the year under review, as compared to segment profit of
HK$0.4 million for the corresponding year of 2016, primarily due to the
continuous decline in sale orders. As such, the Group has shifted assets
and resources of this segment to other more profitable business units,
but will continue the operation of the Plastic Moulding Business as long
as it still contributes sufficiently to share appropriate portion of the

administration and operation cost of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Building Contract Works Business

For the year ended 31 December 2017, revenue from the Building
Contract Works Business generated by ACE Engineering Limited (“ACE
Engineering”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, amounted
to HK$41.9 million, representing a decrease of HK$11.8 million or
22.0% as compared to HK$53.7 million for the corresponding year
of 2016, which contributed 47.6% of the Group’s total revenue from
continuing operations for the year under review. The decrease in revenue
was primarily due to the net effect of (i) substantial completion of
several significant private contracts during the previous year; (ii) awards
of several new significant public contracts during the current year, a
majority of which were commenced in the second half of the financial
year or were pending to be commenced within next year; and (iii)
decrease in tender sum for retention of working capital. This business
recorded a gross profit of HK$4.9 million (2016: HK$5.6 million) and
gross profit margin of 11.7% (2016: 10.4%). The increase in gross profit
margin was primarily attributable to decrease in subcontracting costs
as a result of continued efforts in controlling and managing the costs.
Segment loss of this business decreased by HK$1.5 million or 93.8% to
HK$0.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2017, as compared to
HK$1.6 million loss for the corresponding year of 2016, primarily as a
result of reduction in amortisation charges of intangible asset acquired
as part of the acquisition of the business which was non-cash item and
amounted to HK$0.2 million for the year under review (2016: HK$2.5

million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2017, ACE Engineering had undertaken (i) two
building maintenance and/or renovation projects from private sector
with the contract sums ranging from approximately HK$6.9 million
to HK$13.7 million and the aggregate contract sum of approximately
HK$20.6 million; and (ii) six building maintenance and/or renovation
projects from the Hong Kong Housing Society and the Hong Kong
Housing Authority with the contract sums ranging from approximately
HK$0.6 million to HK$23.9 million and the aggregate contract sum of
approximately HK$51.0 million. Hence, the aggregate contract sums from
both private and public sectors amounted to approximately HK$71.6
million and the aggregate estimated paid and payable subcontracting
fee of those eight existing construction projects undertaken by ACE
Engineering was approximately HK$61.5 million. As at 31 December
2017, approximately HK$46.7 million of the aggregate contract sums
was still outstanding and those eight construction projects were pending

to be completed within next two years.

Despite reduction in segment loss of the business during the year under
review, the fluctuation in segment revenue and results of this business
indicated that market competition of the building construction and
maintenance industry is still fierce. With the successful awards of several
significant contract works particularly in the public sector near and
subsequent to the end of the reporting year, the Group is deploying
its efforts to facilitate improvement in results of this business in the

forthcoming year.

Money Lending Business

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded loan interest
income of HK$6.1 million from its Money Lending Business, representing
an increase of HK$2.6 million or 74.3% as compared to HK$3.5 million
for the previous year, which accounted for 7.0% of the Group's total
revenue from continuing operations. Segment profit of the Money
Lending Business amounted to HK$5.8 million (2016: HK$2.8 million)
for the year under review. The outstanding principal and interest amount
of loan receivables as at 31 December 2017 was HK$110.1 million
(31 December 2016: HK$74.6 million). During the year under review,

there was no provision of doubtful or bad debt of the Money Lending
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Business (2016: nil). The Group will continue to develop this business
by employing prudent credit control procedures and strategies to hold a

balance between the business growth and the risk management.

Securities Investment

Due to the volatile stock market in Hong Kong, the Group recorded a
significant amount of realised loss of HK$59.1 million (2016: realised
gain of HK$1.9 million) and unrealised loss of HK$75.2 million (2016:
unrealized gain of HK$1.5 million) arising on change in fair value of
held-for-trading investments of listed equity securities in Hong Kong for
the year ended 31 December 2017. No dividend income was received
from the held-for-trading investments during the year under review
(2016: nil). Segment loss of the Securities Investment amounted to

HK$134.4 million (2016: segment profit of HK$2.4 million).

The Group’s realised loss on held-for-trading investments disposed of

during the year ended 31 December 2017 was represented as follows:
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Realised loss

Sale proceeds

for the during the Carrying
year ended year ended amount as at
31 December 31 December 31 December
2017 2017 2016
BE-ZT—+tHF BE-FT—tHF
+=B=+—8 +=—A=+-—H R-B—XRE
LtFEEZ LtFEEZ +ZHA=+—8H
Company Name/Stock Code DEARBRENE E#REE HEMRBRE ZEREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FHET
Securities listed in Hong Kong BEBLTES
China Jicheng Holdings Limited FESEKEREBRA
("China licheng”) (1027) (Note (i) (IBEI&%X]) (1027)
(PR EEG)) (38,173) 3,974 42,147
Luen Wong Group Holdings Limited — EfBEEEIEKRER A
("Luen Wong") (8217) (Note (ii)) ([EeRE]) (8217)
CBR3E (i) ) (20,924) 2,820 23,744
(59,097) 6,794 65,891
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Notes:

(i)  China Jicheng is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of

umbrella.

(i) Luen Wong is principally engaged in the provision of civil engineering

works and investment holding.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group held 8 listed equity securities in
Hong Kong with the fair value of HK$35.2 million. In light of the recent
volatile financial market in Hong Kong, the Group intends to diversify
its investment portfolio in order to reduce the relevant concentration
and investment risks and will closely monitor the performance of this
business. The Group will keep adopting a prudent investment attitude
and develop its investment strategy with the aim to improve the capital
usage efficiency and generate additional investment returns on the idle

funds of the Group.

Details of the Group’s top two held-for-trading investments, in terms of

fair value as at 31 December 2017, are as follows:
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Notes:

(a)

China e-Wallet is principally engaged in the provision of biometric and
radio frequency identification products and solution services, internet and
mobile application and related services. As disclosed in the interim report
of China e-Wallet for the six months ended 30 June 2017, it recorded
unaudited net loss attributable to its owners of HK$276.2 million for the
six months ended 30 June 2017. With regards to the future prospects
of China e-Wallet, the directors of the Company (the “Directors”) noted
that China e-Wallet expects the pace of output growth in both global
and Asia markets remains largely unchanged, with most governments
expressing their intention to strengthen their pump-priming efforts in the
near term to counter sluggish external demand, and China e-Wallet will
realign its business strategies and increase its efforts to innovate its core

products and services to better face the increasing needs of its market.

WLS is principally engaged in the provision of scaffolding and fitting
out services, management contracting services and other services for
construction and buildings work, money lending business, securities
brokerage and margin financing and securities investment business.
As disclosed in the third quarterly report of WLS for the nine months
ended 31 January 2018, it recorded unaudited net loss attributable to its
owners of HK$77.7 million for the nine months ended 31 January 2018.
With regards to the future prospects of WLS, the Directors noted that
WLS is prudently optimistic about its prospects and expects a busy time
for the construction industry. WLS will continue to promote the use of
the “Pik Lik” brand scaffolding system to help improve overall efficiency
while boosting the revenue and market share of its scaffolding services
division. WLS also plans to continue expanding those business segments
with higher profit margins and growth potential, such as money lending
and securities brokerage operations, in order to generate better financial

returns for its shareholders.

None of these investments represented more than 5% of the total assets

of the Group as at 31 December 2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Looking ahead, the Directors believe that the future performance of the
above investments held by the Group will be volatile and substantially
affected by overall economic environment, equity market conditions,
investor sentiment and the business performance and development of
the investee companies. Accordingly, the Group will continue to maintain
a diversified portfolio of investment of various industries to minimise
the possible financial risks. Also, the Directors will cautiously assess the

performance progress of the investment portfolio from time to time.

Discontinued operation
PR Business

During the year under review, no revenue was generated from the PR
Business (2016: HK$0.5 million), and this business recorded a segment
loss of HK$0.07 million (2016: HK$0.09 million). Such loss was primarily
attributable to the lack of customer base and market presence despite
continued efforts made by the public relations team in providing public
relations activities to a small number of corporate clients. Having
considered that there is no clear potential for material improvement on
the performance of the PR Business, the Directors resolved to cease the
operation of the PR Business with effect from 1 April 2017, in order to

focus its resources on other profitable business units.

DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION

Disposal of 14% of issued share capital of Optumus
Group Limited

On 18 April 2016, Eternity Riches Limited ("Eternity Riches”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, completed the subscription
of 14% of the enlarged issued share capital of Alpha Generator
Limited (“Alpha Generator”) as enlarged by the allotment and issue
of the subscription shares, at the aggregate subscription price of
HK$15.3 million in cash. Alpha Generator and its subsidiary, OPS Interior
Design Consultant Limited, is principally engaged in the provision
of interior design, fit out and decoration services. Immediately after
completion, Alpha Generator and its subsidiary became available-for-sale
investment of the Group. Details of the subscription are set out in the
Company's announcements dated 5 January 2016 and 18 April 2016

respectively.
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In January 2017, the shareholders of Alpha Generator agreed to
undertake an internal reorganisation pursuant to which all shareholders
of Alpha Generator (or their respective nominees, where appropriate)
sold their respective shares in Alpha Generator to Optumus Group
Limited (“Optumus Group”), a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability, and then such shareholders (or their
respective nominees, where appropriate) became the shareholders of

Optumus Group in the same shareholding proportion.

On 29 May 2017, Eternity Riches as the vendor and three independent
third parties as the purchasers, each being a shareholder of Optumus
Group, entered into the sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which
Eternity Riches agreed to sell and the purchasers agreed to acquire the
sale shares, representing 14% of the issued share capital of Optumus
Group, at the aggregate cash consideration of HK$18.66 million. Taking
into account the consideration represented a premium of approximately
21.96% over the investment cost of the Group and the remaining
shareholders of Optumus Group wished to consolidate their shareholding
in Optumus Group, the Directors considered it a good opportunity
to realise its investment in Optumus Group and its subsidiaries at a
reasonable price. Completion took place immediately after signing of the
sale and purchase agreement. Immediately after completion, Optumus
Group and its subsidiaries ceased to be an available-for-sale investment
of the Group, and the Group ceased to hold any equity interests in
Optumus Group and its subsidiaries. The Group recorded a gain arising
from the disposal of the available-for-sale investment of HK$3.36 million.
The net proceeds from the disposal after deducting the expenses directly
attributable thereto of approximately HK$0.10 million was approximately
HK$18.56 million, which had been used as to (i) approximately HK$13.00
million to develop and operate the Group’s Money Lending Business; (ii)
approximately HK$5.00 million for Securities Investment by the Group;
and (iii) approximately HK$0.56 million for general working capital of the

Group.

Details of the disposal of the investment in Optumus Group are set out

in the Company’s announcement dated 29 May 2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Proposed issue of bonds

On 27 February 2018, the board of Directors considered and approved a
resolution in relation to the proposed issue of bonds to independent third
parties with an aggregate principal amount of up to HK$100,000,000.
The bonds shall be issued at the interest rate of not more than 6%
per annum and matured on the date immediately following the twelve
months after the issue of the relevant bonds. For details, please refer to

the Company’s announcement dated 27 February 2018.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Capital structure

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s consolidated net assets was
HK$165.7 million, representing a decrease of HK$137.1 million as
compared to that of HK$302.8 million as at 31 December 2016.

As at 31 December 2017, the Company has 1,862,679,481 ordinary

shares of HK$0.01 each in issue.

Debt structure

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group’s total borrowings
from financial institutions were zero. The Group’s total cash and bank
balances amounted to HK$26.3 million as at 31 December 2017, which
decreased HK$4.2 million as compared to that of HK$30.5 million as at
31 December 2016.

Working capital and liquidity

As at 31 December 2017, both of the Group's current ratio and quick
ratio were 3.4 (31 December 2016: 9.9). Inventory turnover on sales
was 0 day (31 December 2016: 0 day). Receivable turnover was 49 days
(31 December 2016: 42 days).
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Contingent liabilities and charges

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group had not pledged any
assets to secure bank facilities and finance lease obligations. The Group

had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.

Foreign currency exposure

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions are mainly
denominated in United States dollars, Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars.
Since Hong Kong dollars are pegged to United States dollars and the
exchange rate of Renminbi to Hong Kong dollars was relatively stable
during the year, the Group’s exposure to the potential foreign currency

risk was relatively limited.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s employees number was 37
(31 December 2016: 32). The Group’'s employees are remunerated
largely based on their performance and experience, alongside with the
current industry practices. Remuneration packages of employees include
salaries, insurance, mandatory provident fund and share option scheme.
Other employee benefits include medical cover, housing allowance and

discretionary bonuses.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. ZHANG Hengxin, aged 34, joined the Company as an Executive
Director on 6 September 2016. He was appointed as the Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company and the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company (“Nomination Committee”) on 31 January
2017 and a member of the remuneration committee of the Company
(“Remuneration Committee”) on 1 January 2017. Mr. Zhang is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He obtained a Bachelor
Degree in Human Resources Management from Huazhong Agricultural
University in 2006 and Master Degree of Arts in Industrial Relations and
Personnel Management from The University of Warwick, United Kingdom
in 2007. Mr. Zhang has over 10 years of experience in human resources

management in different industries.

Mr. JIA Minghui, aged 27, joined the Company as an Executive Director
on 30 September 2016. He obtained a Master Degree of Development
Economics from the School of Oriental and African Studies, University
of London, United Kingdom in 2013. Mr. Jia has extensive experience
in the international finance and project management. He had been
working in the financial conglomerate in the People’s Republic of China
and responsible for client's project management, projects merger and

acquisition activities.
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DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Tsz Keung, aged 28, joined the Company as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 11 October 2017. He was appointed as
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of each
of the audit committee of the Company (“Audit Committee”) and
Nomination Committee on 11 October 2017. He obtained his Bachelor
of Arts in Economics from The University of Southern California in
the United States in 2011. Mr. Chan had worked as an analyst in the
loan administration department of corporate banking division of a
French investment bank. Mr. Chan has extensive experience in business
development, sales and marketing and operation management. He has
joined a United States listed company in 2016 and is currently a sales

manager for the Asia Pacific region to handle clients’ listing projects.

Mr. AU YEUNG Ming Yin Gordon, aged 42, joined the Company as
an Independent Non-executive Director on 15 March 2018. He was
appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of
the Remuneration Committee on 15 March 2018. Mr. Au Yeung is the
company secretary of Success Dragon International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1182) since October 2017. He is also the company secretary
of On Real International Holdings Limited (stock code: 8245) since
August 2017. He has been the chief financial officer and company
secretary of Huge China Holdings Limited (stock code: 428) since May
2015 until August 2017. He has over 20 years of experience in the
areas of accounting, taxation, finance and auditing. Since May 2000,
Mr. Au Yeung held management positions in an accounting team
in ASR Logistics Holdings Limited (now known as Beijing Sports and
Entertainment Industry Group Limited) (stock code: 1803) until January
2015.

Mr. Au Yeung is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He obtained a degree in Bachelor of Business
(Business Administration) from the RMIT University in Australia and a
post-graduate diploma in Professional Accounting from the Hong Kong

Baptist University.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2017

BEE(£)
BIUFHITES

RABEE —t\B R_T—tF+A+—
BEMAARRREEBILINTEE - RN _F
—tFTAT - AEZERFHZESIRER
ARBERZEG ([ERZEE)RIREEEE
GZRE -FR-_F——FHXBEEMMAEE
SRESELEM -RELERIEERERITE
ERTHBEREESBMRE—B2OTR-RELE
REBER HERTHHERREETETEHE
BEERLR - BN T RXFMAEREHRR
REDRMREELE REXP LHIAR -

BE#EELE U+t B R _ZT—N\E=4
THEMARQAIEEBILIERATESE FR
- N\EZATRAEZOTAERZES
ITRERFMEEEKE BSEEBE T+ F
TRREREEERBRIZERARA R (RH R
N8 Z RAME-HIE —T—tF/\ BE#E
ERU B ERAR AR (RGO R5%:8245) 2
AAME-BR T —HAFRAR—EEFES
PEER B R AR (BRIDHRSRE - 428) 2 M 5488
HRARMEEE-_T—tFNABERE &
B MBRER ARG T LR 82T
ZTZFRAR BBEEERBEMRERER
NE (BRI REE X LEXREERAF) (K
MRS 1803) 2 Rt B EEE R S
—E-RF—Ro

BEEEATAERHMATEE - WERERMN
RMIT University®) B 2+ (TRHEIE) 27 A
REERGRBNEXG T RER-

o



Profile of Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. GUO Zhenhui, aged 54, joined the Company as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 15 March 2018. He was appointed as a
member of each of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee
on 15 March 2018. Mr. Guo held managerial positions of companies
incorporated in the People’s Republic of China which engage in
manufacturing electronic parts. He has over 35 years of experience in

manufacturing and management.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. MAN Kong Ming, aged 30, is the Financial Controller of the
Group. Mr. Man is responsible for overseeing the financial reporting,
financial management and internal control of the Group. Mr. Man holds
a Bachelor of Business Administration in Accounting and Finance from
The University of Hong Kong. He is a Certified Public Accountant of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Man has over
8 years of experience in auditing, accounting and financial management
and previously worked in international audit firms. He joined the Group

in June 2015.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of Directors (the “Board”) has always recognised the importance
of shareholders’ accountability and transparency and is committed to
maintaining high standards of corporate governance. The Company has
complied with all code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
("CG Code") throughout the year ended 31 December 2017 as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

(the “Stock Exchange”), except for certain deviations disclosed herein.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
its Directors. Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have confirmed
that they have fully complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2017.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group and
oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance.
The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Executive
Directors and senior management who perform their duties under the
leadership of the Managing Director.

The Board currently consists of two Executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Zhang Hengxin (Chairman and Managing Director of the Company)
and Mr. Jia Minghui; and three Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Chan Tsz Keung, Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon and
Mr. Guo Zhenhui.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Board schedules at least four regular meetings a year and also meets
as and when required. During the year, the Board held eight meetings.
The company secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”) assisted
the Chairman and the Executive Directors in establishing the meeting
agenda, and each Director was able to request inclusion of items in
the agenda. All such meetings were convened in accordance with the
bye-laws of the Company (“Bye-laws”). Under code provision A.1.3 of
the CG Code, notice of at least 14 days should be given of a regular
board meeting to give all directors an opportunity to attend. During
the year, certain Board meetings were convened with less than 14
days' notice to enable the Board members to react timely and make
expeditious decisions in respect of urgent corporate transaction and
general business update which was significant in nature. As a result,
the Board meeting was held with a shorter notice period than required
with the consent of the Directors. The Board will do its best endeavour
to meet the requirement of code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code in
the future. Adequate and appropriate information are circulated to
the Directors normally three days in advance of Board meetings or
such period accepted by them. In addition to regular Board meetings,
the Chairman of the Board held a meeting with the Independent
Non-executive Directors without the presence of the Executive Directors

during the year.

Minutes of all Board and committees meetings are kept by the Company
Secretary and are open for inspection by the Directors. Draft minutes
of all Board and committees meetings are circulated to all Directors and
committees members for comments within the period accepted by them

after each meeting.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Under (i) Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, the Board shall comprise at
least three independent non-executive directors; (i) Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules, at least one of the independent non-executive directors
must have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise; (i) Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the audit
committee shall comprise at least three members, that at least one of whom
is an independent non-executive director with appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise
as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules and that the audit
committee must be chaired by an independent non-executive director; (iv)
Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules, the remuneration committee shall comprise
a majority of independent non-executive directors; and (v) code provision
A.5.1 of the CG Code, the number of independent non-executive directors

shall represent the majority of the nomination committee.

Subsequent to the resignation of Mr. Chan Ngai Sang Kenny as an
Independent Non-executive Director, the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee with effect from
1 August 2017, the number of Independent Non-executive Directors
and the members of the Audit Committee fell below the minimum
number required under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules and
the required composition of the Remuneration Committee fell below
the requirement under Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules. On 11 October
2017, the Board appointed Mr. Chan Tsz Keung as an Independent
Non-executive Director, the chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and a member of the Audit Committee. Following the appointment
of Mr. Chan Tsz Keung, the Company has fully complied with the
requirements under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules up to
27 December 2017. Following the appointment of Mr. Chan Tsz Keung,
the Company has fully complied with the requirement under Rule 3.25
of the Listing Rules up to 7 March 2018. Subsequent to the resignation
of Mr. Li Kwok Fat as an Independent Non-executive Director and a
member of the Audit Committee with effect from 27 December 2017,
the number of Independent Non-executive Directors and the members
of the Audit Committee fell below the minimum number required

under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules. On 7 March 2018,
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Wong Siu Ki, an Independent Non-executive Director, the chairman
of the Audit Committee and a member of each of the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee, passed away. Subsequent to
the pass away of Mr. Wong Siu Ki, the required composition of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee fell below the
requirements under Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and code provision
A.5.1 of the CG Code. Moreover, there was not at least one of the
Independent Non-executive Directors had appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise
as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. Further, there
was not at least one of the members of the Audit Committee was
an Independent Non-executive Director with appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise
as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules and that the Audit
Committee was not chaired by an Independent Non-executive Director
as required under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. On 15 March 2018, the
Board appointed (i) Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon as an Independent
Non-executive Director, the chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee, and (ii) Mr. Guo Zhenhui as an
Independent Non-executive Director and a member of each of the Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee. Following the appointment of
Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon and Mr. Guo Zhenhui, the Company has
fully complied with the requirements under Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2), 3.21
and 3.25 of the Listing Rules and code provision A.5.1 of the CG Code.

All Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for specific term.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13

of the Listing Rules and considers them to be independent.

Given the nature and business objective of the Company, the Board
has a balance of skill and experience appropriate for the requirements
of the business of the Company. The list of current Directors and their
respective biographies are set out on pages 21 to 23 of this annual

report.

Pursuant to Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors
shall retire by rotation at each annual general meeting of the Company
("“AGM") provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at
the AGM at least once every three years. All retiring Directors shall be

eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to Bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-laws, (1) any director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting of the Company after his appointment, or (2)
any director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office only until the next following AGM after his appointment

and shall then be eligible for re-election.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other. Such balanced Board composition
is formed to ensure strong independence exists across the Board and has
more than one-third in number of its members comprising Independent

Non-executive Directors.

All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Group. Each Executive Director is suitably qualified for his position, and
has sufficient experience to hold the position so as to carry out his duties

effectively and efficiently.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The attendance of each individual Director at the Board meetings, and

the AGM held on 2 June 2017 and the special general meeting of the

Company (“SGM") held on 12 July 2017 are as follow:
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Attended/Eligible to attend

HE/AEERERE
Board meetings AGM SGM

Executive Directors HITES =34 BRBAFAE BRERBBRE
Mr. Zhang Hengxin (Chairman and RTFELE (FEHR 8/8 1/1 1/1

Managing Director) (Note 1) EFRALE) (M)
Mr. Jia Minghui BB L L 8/8 1/1 11
Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin HEmEE (BTEEF 0/1 0/0 0/0

(Former Chairman and EFparE) (sx2)

Managing Director) (Note 2)
Mr. Peng Shiyuan (Note 3) TEREE (HEE3) 8/8 1/1 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BUYKHITES
Mr. Chan Tsz Keung (Note 4) PR B o8 5t 4 (Fi5E4) 0/0 0/0 0/0
Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon (Note 5) B3 84 & 58 4 (B 5E5) 0/0 0/0 0/0
Mr. Guo Zhenhui (Note 6) FEE L AL (FI5E6) 0/0 0/0 0/0
Mr. Wong Siu Ki (Note 7) =R oA (MEE7) 8/8 11 1/1
Mr. Chan Ngai Sang Kenny (Note 8)  BR3& 4 e 4 (Hf5E8) 4/6 11 0/1
Mr. Li Kwok Fat (Note 9) FEEEE (FFRE9) 8/8 171 11
Notes: B 5

1. Mr. Zhang Hengxin was appointed as the Chairman and the Managing 1.

Director of the Company on 31 January 2017.

2. Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin resigned as an Executive Director, the Chairman 2.

and the Managing Director of the Company on 31 January 2017.

3. Mr. Peng Shiyuan resigned as an Executive Director on 27 December 3.

2017.

4. Mr. Chan Tsz Keung was appointed as an Independent Non-executive 4.

Director on 11 October 2017 and there was nil Board meeting held after

his appointment.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

5. Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon was appointed as an Independent

Non-executive Director on 15 March 2018.

6. Mr. Guo Zhenhui was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director on 15 March 2018.

7. Mr. Wong Siu Ki passed away on 7 March 2018.

8.  Mr. Chan Ngai Sang Kenny resigned as an Independent Non-executive

Director on 1 August 2017.

9.  Mr. Li Kwok Fat resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director on

27 December 2017.

Directors’ Training and Continuous Professional
Development

During the year, a newly appointed Director was given an induction after
his appointment so as to ensure that he has appropriate understanding
of the Group's business and of his duties and responsibilities under the
Listing Rules and the relevant statutory and regulatory requirements.
The Company provides regular updates on the business performance
of the Group to the Directors. The Directors are continually updated on
the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
statutory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeeping of good

corporate governance practices.

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuing professional
development to develop and refresh knowledge and skills. The Company
has maintained a training record in order to assist the Directors to record
the training that they have undertaken and they are asked to submit a

training record to the Company on annual basis.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ Training and Continuous Professional

Development (continued)

During the year, each of the individual Directors has attended training

courses or workshops or read materials relevant to his professional

and/or duties as Director.

The individual training record of each Director received for the year

ended 31 December 2017 is summarised below:
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Course/Seminar
provided/accredited

by professional Reading
body materials
HEMBRM
Executive Directors HITES RAZRE AR HEER
Mr. Zhang Hengxin REFESLA - v
Mr. Jia Minghui BHELE - v
Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin EEmAE(RZT—1F - v
(resigned on 31 January 2017) —RA=+—H#&1F)
Mr. Peng Shiyuan TZEHREE (RZT—+F - v
(resigned on 27 December 2017) +-—AZ+tHBEE)
Independent Non-executive Directors VHHITES
Mr. Chan Tsz Keung PRE®EE (RZT—LF v v
(appointed on 11 October 2017) +A+—BEEZT)
Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon BB rE (RZE—\F N/AT i F N/AT i AR
(appointed on 15 March 2018) —AtTHBEEZHE)
Mr. Guo Zhenhui WHEEBEE (R _T—N\F N/AT i FA N/A 8 A
(appointed on 15 March 2018) “ATHBEEZT)
Mr. Wong Siu Ki BB EE (RZZE—N\F N/A 3 N/AT i A
(passed away on 7 March 2018) (Note) = A+t BEt) (#:E)
Mr. Chan Ngai Sang Kenny BRBELEE (RZT—EF v v
(resigned on 1 August 2017) JARA—HEE)
Mr. Li Kwok Fat FEBEE(RZT—+F v 4

(resigned on 27 December 2017)

+=-A=-++HET)

Note: Mr. Wong Siu Ki passed away on 7 March 2018 and the Company has

not received the record of training.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ Training and Continuous Professional
Development (continued)

All Directors also understand the importance of continuous professional
development and they are committed to participating any suitable

training to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance

duties as set out below:

(@) To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on

corporate governance;

(b) To review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

(c) To review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and

compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors and employees;

and

(e) To review the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance and
Indemnity

To indemnify Directors and officers of the Company against all costs,
charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by them in the execution
of and discharge of their duties or in relation thereto, the Company has

arranged insurance cover for this purpose.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the

same individual.

Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin, a former Executive Director, was the Chairman
and the Managing Director of the Company (the Company regards the
role of its managing director to be the same as that of chief executive
under the CG Code) during the period from 1 January 2017 to
30 January 2017. On 31 January 2017, Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin resigned
as an Executive Director, the Chairman and the Managing Director of
the Company and Mr. Zhang Hengxin, was appointed as the Chairman
and the Managing Director of the Company on the same date so that
Mr. Zhang Hengxin was the Chairman and the Managing Director of
the Company during the period from 31 January 2017 to 31 December
2017. During the year under review, the Group has been streamlining
its operations, including business development, operation efficiency and
financial management. The Board considers that it would be in the best
interest of the shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) that the
roles of the Chairman and the Managing Director of the Company be
combined to enable a strong and dedicated leadership to reposition the
Company and implement effective measures to improve Shareholders’
value. In this light, the Company has maintained Mr. Zhang Hengxin as
the Chairman and the Managing Director of the Company. The Company

will review the current structure when and as it becomes appropriate.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established with a specific written
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the

Company.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on, among other things, the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and senior
management of the Company. No individual director is involved
in decisions relating to his own remuneration. The Remuneration
Committee has adopted the model under code provision B.1.2(c)(ii)
of the CG Code to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and senior

management.

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three Directors, a
majority of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors. During the

year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting.

The members of the Remuneration Committee and the attendance of

each member during the year are as follows:

FWEES
AARERUFWEAS FYETIHTEER
HEHOIE - ST B 2 T 0 L OB AT A
ARBIEE -

YFHEZEeRARNESTSRHAR (AR
ARBIFBEEERSRERABFHBERR
BeEBR-BEEE2EBTEEAG ZHM-
FMEZEEERMEEEARTRIZ TGRS
B 2()i) ATt 2 R sLEARATEZE R EHR
ERABZHFMEENEETSREESR-

YFHMEZESRRH-REEEN ETPRZHR
BYIFATEE-FAN FHEESRT—RE

FA FHEEENERERB ZHEBRAT

Attended/
Eligible to attend
Independent Non-executive Directors BAKBITES HE SEELE
Mr. Chan Tsz Keung (Chairman) (appointed as PRE®EE (FE)(R_E—1F 0/0
chairman on 11 October 2017) TA+—BEZEARER)
Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon BB rE (RZE—\F=A+HHAH 0/0
(appointed as member on 15 March 2018) BEZERKE)
Mr. Wong Siu Ki (passed away on 7 March 2018) FHhBELE (RZTE—NF= At HEH) 1/1
Mr. Chan Ngai Sang Kenny (Former Chairman) PR L E (FTERE) 01
(resigned as chairman on 1 August 2017) (RZE—+tFN\A—HETEXE)
Executive Director HITES
Mr. Zhang Hengxin (appointed as member on wEFEEE (RZE—+EF—H—H 11
1 January 2017) BEERKE)
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year, the Remuneration Committee performed the following

duties:

—  reviewed and recommended the remuneration packages of the
Executive Directors and senior management for the year ended

31 December 2017; and

—  reviewed and recommended the remuneration package of the

newly appointed Director for the year ended 31 December 2017.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established with a specific written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the Stock

Exchange and the Company.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration
of a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional qualification, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
The Company will also take into consideration factors based on its own
business model and specific needs from time to time in determining the

optimum composition of the Board.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three Directors, a
majority of whom are Independent Non-executive Directors. During the

year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The members of the Nomination Committee and the attendance of each

member during the year are as follows:

FA REZBENEREKB ZHEBRAT

Attended/
Eligible to attend
Executive Director HITES HEAEEHE
Mr. Zhang Hengxin (Chairman) (appointed as RFELEE (FE)R_E—LF 1/1
chairman on 31 January 2017) —A=+—BEZEAEERE)
Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin (Former Chairman) ERmrE (HEE)(RZT—tF 0/0
(resigned as chairman on 31 January 2017) —A=+—BEEExE)
Independent Non-executive Directors BUKHTES
Mr. Chan Tsz Keung (appointed as member on RERLEE (RZTE—tF+AT—H 0/0
11 October 2017) BEERKE)
Mr. Guo Zhenhui (appointed as member on FEEEE(RZE—N\F=A+HH 0/0
15 March 2018) ERIERKE)
Mr. Wong Siu Ki (passed away on 7 March 2018) FhBELE (RZE—NF= AL HEH) 11
Mr. Chan Ngai Sang Kenny (resigned as member on BRBRESRE (RZE—EFNA—H 0/1
1 August 2017) BEKE)
Mr. Li Kwok Fat (resigned as member on EEBELE (R E—+tF+=-_A=++tH 11
27 December 2017) BHERE)

During the year, the Nomination Committee performed the following

duties:

(@) reviewed the structure, size and diversity (including without
limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of

service) of the Board;

(b) identified individual suitably qualified to become Board member

and made recommendation to the Board on his appointment;

(c) assessed the independence of the Independent Non-executive

Directors; and

(d) made recommendations to the Board on the retiring Directors for

re-election at the AGM for 2017.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with a specific written terms of ARXFE&L

reference. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available

Corporate Governance Report
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on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. NEHE AR -

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and supervising the %8
financial reporting process and risk management and internal control 12
=

systems of the Group and providing advice and comments to the Board.
The Audit Committee currently comprises three Independent Non-

executive Directors, namely Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon (Chairman), &R

Mr. Chan Tsz Keung and Mr. Guo Zhenhui. During the year, the Audit %

Committee held two meetings.

The members of the Audit Committee and the attendance of each

member during the year are as follows:
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Attended/
Eligible to attend
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYQTES HE BB HE
Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon (Chairman) B8 %% (£/E) (RZE—NF=A+HH 0/0
(appointed as chairman on EZEAER)
15 March 2018)
Mr. Chan Tsz Keung (appointed as FRE®EE (R —tF+A+—H 0/0
member on 11 October 2017) EZITAEKE)
Mr. Guo Zhenhui (appointed as SPEBLEE(RZE—N\F=ZA+HAB 0/0
member on 15 March 2018) EEZEIRKE)
Mr. Wong Siu Ki (Former Chairman) mIKBLEAE (FrE/E) (RZE2—N\F=HAtHB) 2/2
(passed away on 7 March 2018)
Mr. Chan Ngai Sang Kenny (resigned as BRER AL E (R —tFN\A—HEFE) 0/1
member on 1 August 2017)
Mr. Li Kwok Fat (resigned as member on TEBELE (R —tF+_AZ+EHET) 2/2
27 December 2017)
SRERERAR
2017 F3§
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ERERRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year, the Audit Committee performed the following duties:

(a)

reviewed with the auditor the audited financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2016 and reviewed the unaudited interim
financial statements for the six months ended 30 June 2017, with

recommendations to the Board for approval;

reviewed report on risk management and internal control systems

covering financial, operational and compliance controls;

reviewed the compliance issues with the regulatory and statutory

requirements;

reviewed with the management of the Company the accounting

principles and practices adopted by the Group;

considered the independent auditor’s independence and fees in
relation to the audited financial statements for the year ended

31 December 2016; and

reviewed and recommended to the Board the auditor’s

re-appointment and remuneration.

Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon, chairman of the Audit Committee,

possesses appropriate professional qualifications,

or accounting or

related financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.21 of

the Listing Rules.
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INVESTMENT AND MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The investment and management committee of the Company
(“Investment and Management Committee”) was established by the
Board with written terms of reference. The terms of reference are

available on the website of the Company.

The Investment and Management Committee is responsible for reviewing
and evaluating daily operation of the Company and any investment
activities proposed by the Company and making recommendation to
the Board on the transactions which the percentage ratio equal to or
higher than 5% according to the testing result of the Listing Rules. It
also monitors the investment activities of the Group. The Investment and
Management Committee currently comprises two Executive Directors,

namely Mr. Zhang Hengxin (Chairman) and Mr. Jia Minghui.

During the year, the Investment and Management Committee performed

the following duties:

—  reviewed, evaluated and approved the investment activities which is
non-connected transaction and the percentage ratio is lower than

5% according to the testing result of the Listing Rules.
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AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

The Group incurred fees and charges by the auditor, Elite Partners CPA
Limited, in respect of audit and non-audit services during the year as

follows:

BB

6 1 7o B BRI R SR RS P BT B 7T
EREHTESFERATNLNZ RARRS
mF

Fees paid/payable

Bt/ ENER

HK$'000

Services rendered REH R FHET
Audit services 1ZER % 440
Non-audit services A% BUR 75 -

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Group for the relevant accounting periods under
applicable statutory and regulatory requirements which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs, the results of operations and the cash
flows of the Group. In preparing the financial statements for the six
months ended 30 June 2017 and for the year ended 31 December 2017,
the Directors have adopted suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently. The Directors have prepared the accounts for the reporting

year on a going concern basis.

The responsibility of the Company’s external auditor, Elite Partners CPA
Limited, with respect to these financial statements are set out in the

“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 78 to 85 of this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its overall responsibility for the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and reviewing
their effectiveness. Management is responsible for the design,
implementation and monitoring of such systems, while the Board which
delegated such duties and responsibilities to the Audit Committee,
oversees management in performing its duties on an ongoing basis. The
risk management and internal control systems are designed to assist in
the achievement of business objectives of the Group, safeguard assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, ensure proper maintenance of
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information
for internal use or publication and ensure compliance with relevant
legislation and regulation. The risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but not

absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages the risk
associated with its business and operations. The system comprises risk

identification, risk evaluation and risk management.

The management is entrusted with duties to identify and communicate
risks associated with any activity, function or process within its scope
of responsibility and authority. Risks are evaluated by the Board and
management based on (i) the severity of the impact of the risks on the
Company's financial results; (ii) the probability that the risks will occur;

and (iii) the velocity or speed at which risks could occur.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(continued)

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems (continued)

Risk Management System (continued)

B B E IR R BB ()

EREERABEZERGAZEIERH

(%)
B EERSE (E)

RBRBRTME REEBIZAT AN ERRR :

Based on the risk evaluation, the Group will manage the risk as follows:

Risk elimination — management may identify and implement certain

changes or controls that in effect eliminate the risk entirely.

Risk mitigation — management may implement risk mitigation plan
designed to reduce the likelihood, velocity or severity of the risk to

an acceptable level.

Risk monitoring — accidents and other situations involving loss or
near-loss will be investigated and properly documented as part of

the effort to manage risks.

Risk retention — management may decide that the risk rating is
low enough that the risk is at acceptable level and no action is
required. The risk will continue to be monitored as part of the risk

management program to ensure the level of risk does not increase
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to an unacceptable level.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(continued)

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems (continued)

Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which enables
the Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness and efficiency
of operations, reliability of financial reporting and compliance with

applicable laws and regulations. The key components of the internal

control system are shown as follow:

Control environment — A set of standards, processes and structures
are established to provide the basis for carrying out internal control

across the Group.

Risk assessment — A dynamic and iterative process is conducted for
identifying and analyzing risks to achieve the Group’s objectives,

forming a basis for determining how risks should be managed.

Control activities — Actions established by policies and procedures
to help ensure management mitigates risks in the achievement of

objectives of the Group are carried out.

Information and communication - Internal and external
communication are made to provide the Group with the information

needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

Monitoring — Ongoing and separate evaluations are conducted to
ascertain whether each components of internal control is present

and functioning.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(continued)

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems (continued)

Internal Control System (continued)

In addition, the Company regulates the handling and dissemination of
inside information to ensure inside information remains confidential until
the disclosure of such information is appropriately approved, and the
dissemination of such information is efficiently and consistently made.
The Company has taken various procedures and measures to prevent
a breach of disclosure requirement, including arousing the awareness
to the Directors and employees to preserve confidentiality of inside
information and disseminating information to specified persons on a

need-to-know basis.

Internal Audit

The Company has not established an internal audit department and the
Directors are of the view that given the size, nature and complexity of
the business of the Group, it would be more cost effective to appoint an
independent internal control review advisor (“Internal Control Advisor”),
which is independent of the Group’s daily operation and consists of
professional staff with relevant expertise, to perform the review on risk
management and internal control systems of the Group in order to meet

its needs.

Risk Management and Internal Control Review

The Board itself and through the Audit Committee and the Internal
Control Advisor has conducted an annual review on the effectiveness of
risk management and internal control systems of the Group, which cover
all material controls including financial, operational and compliance

controls.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2017

B B E IR R BB ()

EREERABEZERGAZEIERH

(%)
AEBEZERL (E)

IS ANER B ROE B AR IR B TR
NERAR BB EEEE M ENEN —ERE
WHRER R —BUEEMARER - ARAER
MEERFRERDLERBERE RS
EXEREEHARGEMNREEIREFTEAN
BOER EREEABEMER -

W AP T

RRARHARINEEZAFT EFRS ER
AEEREB AR HERERER ZEBEY
MEREE 1R BIE M ([ A RREZ =AM | - B
AEEZAFLELBRABRBEEENBZ
BRXBT)RIASEZAREERARPERER
LR E AR A s MR R EFE K

R R EE R AR EN

EXeC A NEBRBERLZE S NAMERE
M AEENRREREMABEZERGNEX
MHETFERMN HREERMBE 2ERAR
EREANMAEREE T @E:



RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control Review

(continued)

The Internal Control Advisor has conducted interviews with relevant
staff members, reviewed relevant documentation of risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, evaluated findings of
any deficiencies in the systems and provided recommendations for
improvement. The scope and findings of review on the systems have
been reported to and reviewed by the Audit Committee, who has further

reported to the Board for its review at Board meeting.

In addition to the work of the Internal Control Advisor and review by the
Audit Committee, several areas have been considered during the Board's
review, which include but not limited to (i) adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company's accounting and financial reporting functions; (ii) the changes
in the nature and extent of significant risks since the last annual review,
and the Group's ability to respond to changes in its business and the
external environment; and (iii) the scope and quality of management'’s

ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal control systems.

As a result of the above review, the Board considers that the Group's risk
management and internal control systems are effective and adequate for

the year ended 31 December 2017.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with all
Shareholders. The AGM is a valuable avenue for the Board to enter
into direct dialogue with Shareholders. The Chairman of the Board
and the chairman of Board committees will attend the AGM to answer
any question. In addition, the Company will convene SGM to approve
transaction and/or matter in accordance with the Listing Rules and the
corporate governance procedures of the Company. These will provide
further opportunities for Shareholders to comment and vote on specific

transaction and/or matter.
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ERERRE

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

(continued)

The interim and annual reports of the Company are despatched to
Shareholders in a timely manner before the time limits laid by statutory
and Listing Rules requirements to ensure effective communication with

Shareholders.

All the Shareholders are given at least 20 clear business days' notice
before the date of AGM and at least 10 clear business days’ notice for

all other general meetings.

All the annual and interim reports, circulars, announcements and notices
of Shareholders’ meetings as required under the Listing Rules will be

available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Company has also complied with the requirements concerning voting
by poll under the Listing Rules. Details of the poll voting procedures and
the rights of Shareholders to demand a poll are included in circulars to
Shareholders despatched by the Company and explained by the chairman
of general meeting at the meeting. All resolutions proposed at general

meeting are voted separately.

Procedures for Convening a SGM

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene a
SGM. Shareholders holding in aggregate of not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company may send a written request to the

Board to request for a SGM.

The written requisition, duly signed by the Shareholders concerned,
must state the purposes of the meeting and must be deposited at the
Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit 1104,
Crawford House, 70 Queen’s Road Central, Central, Hong Kong or at
the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Tricor Standard Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

(continued)
Procedures for Convening a SGM (continued)

The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangements, and the Shareholders concerned would be responsible
for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the
requirements under Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda

("Companies Act”) once a valid requisition is received.

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward
Proposals at General Meetings

The following Shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal (which
may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general

meeting of the Company:

(@) any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth
of the total voting rights of the Company on the date of the

requisition; or
(b) not less than 100 members holding shares in the Company.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the Shareholders
concerned, together with a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in the proposal must be deposited
at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit 1104,
Crawford House, 70 Queen's Road Central, Central, Hong Kong or at
the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Tricor Standard Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong. The Company would take appropriate actions
and make necessary arrangements, and the Shareholders concerned
would be responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto
in accordance with the requirements under Sections 79 and 80 of the

Companies Act once valid documents are received.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring Director
for election as a Director at a general meeting, the Shareholder should
follow the “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election

as a Director”, which can be found on the website of the Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

(continued)

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns to the

Board in writing via the following channel:

The Board of Directors/Company Secretary
AMCO United Holding Limited

Unit 1104, Crawford House

70 Queen’s Road Central, Central

Hong Kong

E-mail: info@amco-united.com

Telephone: (852) 2961 4871

Facsimile: (852) 2125 7001

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general

meetings of the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the period from 1 January 2017 to 5 July 2017, the Company's
secretarial functions were outsourced to an external service provider.
Mr. Man Kong Ming, the Financial Controller of the Group, was the
primary contact person of the Company with the external service
provider. On 5 July 2017, Mr. Chan Kwong Leung Eric resigned as the
Company Secretary. On 25 August 2017, Ms. Hung Tsz Ching was

appointed as the Company Secretary.

According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Hung Tsz Ching has
taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the

year ended 31 December 2017.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional

documents during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

INTRODUCTION
Corporate Profile

AMCO United Holding Limited (the “Company”) is principally engaged
in Medical Devices Business, Plastic Moulding Business, Building Contract
Works Business, Money Lending Business and Securities Investment
through its subsidiaries. As a diversified corporation, the Company has
been implementing corporate sustainability as a core element of its
growth strategy. The Company attempts to integrate sustainability by
taking into account environmental, social and economic considerations

in its operations and planning.

About this Report

The Company reaffirms its commitment towards sustainability with the
publication of its second Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG")
report. This report is prepared in compliance with the ESG Reporting
Guide issued by the Stock Exchange as set out in Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules.
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RE HERERHRS

INTRODUCTION (continued)
Reporting Period and Scope

This report covers all operations of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) and describes the initiatives
of the Group and progress in respect of ESG issues for the year from
1 January 2017 to 31 December 2017. Additional information pertaining
to our sustainability performance, including comprehensive financial

information and data, can be found in this annual report.

Feedback

The Group considers sustainability is the right direction for its long-term
development. We would appreciate any comments on improving the
content and delivery of the information provided in this report. Any
queries or suggestions regarding the content of this report can be

directed to:

AMCO United Holding Limited

Address: Unit 1104, Crawford House, 70 Queen’s Road Central, Central,
Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2961 4871

Fax: (852) 2125 7001

Email: info@amco-united.com

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2017
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ESG MANAGEMENT APPROACH

Contributing to sustainable development of Hong Kong is central to
our growth strategy. As a listed company with a diversified business
portfolio, we strive to contribute to the environment and the society

while minimising the negative impacts of our operations.

The Group acknowledges that engaging stakeholders is critical in
implementing ESG initiatives and therefore holds regular face-to-face
meetings and grievance handling sessions for internal stakeholders, i.e.
Directors and employees. Multiple channels of engagement with external
stakeholders, including customers, suppliers, the government and the

community, have been embedded into our daily operations.

As most of our operations are conducted by contractors, the most
significant impact of our businesses on the environment is emissions
generated from office premises and company vehicles. Various
approaches have been adopted to ensure that our operations are
conducted in an environmentally responsible manner. Internally, we
are devoted to protecting employees’ rights, providing employees with
training for continuous development and creating a safe and healthy
working environment. Externally, we actively allocate resources and

contribute to the society.

To effectively manage its ESG performance, the Group's Building
Contract Works Business has established an Integrated Management
System (IMS) which abides by international standards I1SO 9001,
ISO 14001 and OHSAS 18001. The IMS has established policies and
objectives, it identifies and defines responsibilities of employees and the
monitoring process for management procedures, providing customers

with high quality, environmentally friendly and secure services.

OPERATING PRACTICES

We are committed to serving the community in Hong Kong. As the
Group continues to evolve, our operational initiatives will grow in a

responsible manner.
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RE - HE2RERRE

OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)
Supply Chain Management

As most of our operations are outsourced, supplier and contractor
management constitute a crucial component of the Group's ESG
management. The Group strives to establish mutually beneficial working
relationships with suppliers and contractors to jointly enhance product

and service quality.

To promote fair and open competition in procurement of supplies and
services, procurement policies and procedures are well defined. In
addition to price, quality, reputation, delivery time and service provided,
corporate social responsibility is also one of the key performance
indicators for selecting appropriate suppliers and contractors. During
the process of selecting suppliers and contractors, their environmental
and social performances are assessed, so that the Group can evaluate
and monitor how they deal with ethical issues, human rights, product
responsibility and environmental impact. We ensure that all suppliers
and contractors adhere to our code of conduct and procurement policies

regarding corporate social responsibility.

The Group's Building Contract Works Business closely monitors and
supervises works carried out by contractors. Reviews are carried out
by project managers to analyse whether the materials or services
provided by subcontractors are in accordance with the specifications and
requirements and are delivered within the stipulated time-frame under
the relevant contract. Materials and equipment required for projects are
sourced either by subcontractors or by the Group, ensuring criteria of

quality assurance are satisfied.

Product Responsibility

We are dedicated to ensuring the quality of services and products meets
clients’ expectations and abides by the relevant international standards.
The Group’s products including medical devices and plastic moulding
products undergo strict quality control testing which are certified by
third parties before being sent to the market. Since 2007, the Group’s
Medical Devices Business unit has obtained the ISO 13485 Quality
Management System Certification for moulding and assembly of medical

device components for diabetics care.
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OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)
Product Responsibility (continued)

The Group’s Building Contract Works Business has incorporated all
requirements of services and products provided in the IMS. From
tender, design, through to construction and operation, all procedures
are supervised by project managers. Since 2004, the Group’s Building
Contract Works Business unit has obtained the ISO 9001 Quality
Management System Certification for provision of building activities to
keep, restore and improve the facilities of buildings and surroundings
and provision of maintenance and repairing services for plumbing, pump,

drainage air-conditioning systems.

The Group follows all applicable laws and regulations as well as
relevant international standards when conducting quality inspection
in the designated construction phase and prior to product delivery. All
non-conforming products are investigated, followed up and reported
by IMS managers based on the documented procedures. Appropriate
corrections are made to ensure that quality control process is
implemented properly and recurrence of similar incidents is avoided. The
Group was not aware of any incidents of non-compliance with laws and
regulations having a significant impact on the Group, relating to health
and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters concerning products

and services provided during the year.

Data Privacy and Customer Satisfaction

The Group respects the privacy of its customers and maintains the
highest security and confidentiality on customer data. We strictly comply
with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance by enforcing the code of
conducts for all employees, making sure all employees are responsible
to protect customer information from improper disclosure, misuse or

unauthorised use, loss, damage or corruption.

We are committed to providing customers with efficient and high-quality
services and products to meet their needs and ensuring their satisfaction.
Based on the standards established, we regularly collect and analyse

customer feedback and satisfaction.
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OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)
Anti-corruption

The Group has established a robust internal control framework to
prevent behaviours such as bribery, blackmail, fraud and money
laundering. A code of conduct has been stipulated in the staff handbook
which lists proper business practices as well as prohibited acts, including
solicitation of advantages and accepting gifts. We strive to safeguard
assets and interests of our Shareholders and abide by all applicable laws
and regulations, including the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance in Hong
Kong. During the year, there were no cases of non-compliance with

anti-corruption and money laundering related laws and regulations.

To avoid Directors and employees engaging in business, investments
or activities that might conflict with interests of the Group, Directors
and employees are constantly reminded that they must declare for any

conflict of interest that may arise or has arisen.

Whistle-blowing Policy

To facilitate identification of suspected cases of misconduct, the Group
encourages whistleblowing. Any staff member who becomes aware of
any existing or potential breach of the code of conduct is encouraged
to report promptly to the human resources department. The Group then
takes appropriate actions, including disciplinary action, termination of
employment or preventive action. Cases of suspected corruption or other
criminal offences are reported to the Independent Commission Against

Corruption (ICAC) or other appropriate authorities.

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

The Group strives to minimise the environmental impact of its operations,
ensuring business is conducted in an environmentally responsible

manner.
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ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT (continued)

The most significant impact of our operations on the environment is
emission of greenhouse gas and air pollutants generated by energy
consumed in office premises and by vehicles. We strictly comply with
all environment related regulations, including Air Pollution Control
Ordinance, Ozone Layer Protection Ordinance, Water Pollution Control
Ordinance and Waste Disposal Ordinance. During the year, there were
no cases of non-compliance of applicable environmental laws and
regulations. The Group’s environmental management approach is

depicted as below.

Compliance &%
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Compliance with all applicable environmental legislation, standards and regulations
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Management &

Effective environmental management throughout all business practices
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Implementation #11T

Implementation of measures to prevent pollution, minimise energy and material consumption
and reduce waste at source by reduce, reuse and recycle (3R) initiatives

TR LSR - BARRRMEERIEBRI R - EEFARBRBERGR)

JR R IR SRR B

Incorporation &%

Incorporation of environmental considerations into the purchasing process, and improved

environmental performance throughout the supply chain

HREEBEEFARBAER  YRAMBENERRRRR

Education % &

Raise environmental awareness among staff through education and training

BRAEZIRABTINRARRE

Review the policy regularly and ensure the continual improvement of environmental performance
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ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT (continued)

A majority of our operations are carried out by contractors. The Group
strives to minimise the environmental impact of resources usage and
emissions from its outsourced operations, ensuring that all operations
and activities are conducted in an environmentally responsible manner
through implementing a comprehensive environmental policy. Since
2009, the Group’s Building Contract Works Business unit has obtained
the I1SO 14001 Environmental Management System Certification in Hong

Kong.

Resources Consumption

In 2017, total direct energy consumption attributable to gasoline used
by vehicles was 4,830 litres. Total indirect energy consumption by way

of purchased electricity was 49,117 kWh. The Group’s total water
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consumption was 5.82 tonnes. Our operations do not involve any ISR ™S REAFERABEME -
material use of packaging material.
Types of Resources ERER Unit B
Electricity B kWh T R 49,117
Gasoline bam litres F 4,830
Tap Water ERYN tonnes A 5.82
Emission HE ik

The Group's carbon emissions include direct emissions from gasoline
used and indirect emissions due to consumption of purchased electricity.
In 2017, total carbon emissions were 42.3 tonnes. The SOx, NOx and PM
emissions from vehicles were 0.071 kg, 4.698 kg and 0.346 kg, respectively.
Due to our office-based operations, the volume of hazardous waste and

non-hazardous waste produced is considered to be immaterial.

g Unit

Types of Emission
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Direct (Scope 1) Carbon Emission B (8E) kR tCOse W —E/tikE 2 12.85
Indirect (Scope 2) Carbon Emission  fE# (&5 E2) #ix HE iR tCOse Wo—a/tirg s 29.45
Sulphur Oxides (SOx) W E b ¥ (SOx) kg Fr 0.071
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) RE/LP(NOX) kg T 4.698
Particulate Matters (PM) B8R (PM) kg T 0.346
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ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT (continued)
Green Office: Let's GO

While the Group’s operations are primarily office-based, we strive
to ensure an environmentally friendly workplace by participating in
“Let's GO", a green office scheme designed by a third-party consulting
firm.

Contributing to a greener workplace, the scheme helps embed
environmental sustainability into our daily operations by recommending
simple yet feasible initiatives regarding energy and resources
conservation. The scheme evaluates the environmental performance of
our offices. During the year under review, relevant stickers and posters
were provided to encourage our staffs to develop greener habits.
For energy saving, we switch off all lights, air-conditioners and office
equipment before leaving the office, adjust indoor temperature to 25°C,
use office equipment certified for higher energy efficiency, maximise
the use of natural light, etc. Regarding resources conservation, we use
double-sided printing, use email instead of fax, reuse envelopes for
internal mailing, recycle papers and plastics, conserve water resources

and use web-conferencing to avoid travel.
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ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT (continued)
Subcontractors Management

Multiple approaches have been implemented to alleviate the
environmental impact from our outsourced operations. The Group's
Building Contract Works Business has adopted various waste
management approaches which include disposing construction
waste in accordance with the Waste Disposal (Charges for Disposal
of Construction Waste) Regulation, collecting wastewater and then
discharging it into sewage system, collecting waste oil cans for
centralised disposal, and examining the Material Safety Data Sheet
(MSDS) of solvents used. The Plastic Moulding Business also recycles

scrap plastic materials and resells to upstream suppliers.

OUR PEOPLE AND COMMUNITY

The Group regards people as the most valuable asset and an
indispensable part to its business operations. We conduct
people-oriented management and strive to provide a safe and healthy

workplace for all employees.

Our employee management system complies with domestic labor laws and
regulations, including Employment Ordinance, Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance and Minimum Wage Ordinance. The employee handbook of the
Group clearly states our policies about salaries and dismissal, recruitment,
promotion, working hours, holidays, equal opportunities, diversity,
anti-discrimination and other welfare measures. We are committed to
providing a non-discriminating workplace which is free of intimidation and
harassment. The Group also provides equal opportunities in all aspects of
employment regardless of age, gender, family status, sexual orientation,

ethnicity, creed, religion and other characteristics.
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OUR PEOPLE AND COMMUNITY (continued)

While the Group does not operate in locations where child labour risk
is relatively high, we are striving hard to work with our suppliers and
sub-contractors to ensure they do not use forced or child labour in their
production facilities. During the year, the Group did not receive any

reports relating to the use of child or forced labour.

The Group aims at attracting talents who share the mission and values
of the Group. The recruitment processes are based on the principles
of "openness, fairness, impartiality and lawfulness”. To retain talents,

competent employees are promoted to senior positions based on merit.

The Group advocates the concept of work-life balance. Working
hours are set in accordance with guidelines issued by the local labour
authorities. Our employees are entitled to paid annual leave, sick leave,
maternity leave, jury service leave, compensation leave, marriage leave,
compassionate leave, paternity leave and holidays with pay under the
Employment Ordinance. In addition to the basic salary paid to our
employees, the Group also offers discretionary bonus and carries out
salary reviews to attract and retain staff. All employees are entitled to
benefits such as Mandatory Provident Fund, medical care and employee

compensation insurance.

Occupational Health and Safety

The Group strives to provide a safe and healthy working environment for
all employees, and to provide such information, training and supervision
as they need for the purpose. We strictly comply with all occupational
safety related laws, including the Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance. During the year, there were no cases of non-compliance with

occupational safety related laws and regulations.
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OUR PEOPLE AND COMMUNITY (continued)
Occupational Health and Safety (continued)

Our operations do not involve any high-risk areas related to occupational
health and safety (OHS) of its staff, except for the construction sites
during project development stage where contractors’ workers are
working in respect of the Group’s Building Contract Works Business.
The Group takes initiatives to monitor the health and safety measures
implemented by the contractors to ascertain effective controls are in
place to mitigate health and safety risk at construction sites. Contractors’
performance in this regard is also evaluated during the selection process.
Since 2009, the Building Contract Works Business unit has obtained
the OHSAS 18001 Occupational Health and Safety Management System
Certification in Hong Kong. In addition to obtaining the certification, the
Group has established OHS objectives which include strengthening OHS
awareness and achieving zero violation of rules and regulations, aiming

to strive for zero work accident.
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OUR PEOPLE AND COMMUNITY (continued)
Occupational Health and Safety (continued)

To monitor the OHS performance of our contractors, regular site visits are
conducted by project managers regarding the Group's Building Contract
Works Business. The project managers are required to ensure that safety
managers are performing their duties properly. The safety managers
need to carry out work hazard analysis and risk assessment and ensure
that employees properly use the personal protective equipment (PPE)

including ear plugs, safety vests and safety goggles.

Training and Development

The Group considers training of staff an important issue for their
continuous development. We provide continuous training and
development opportunities for employees, at both professional and
personal levels, to motivate and up-skill existing staff to align with our

business needs and ever-changing environment.

All new employees receive appropriate induction training when they
join the Group. On-job training including professional skills, machine
operation, customer service skills or environmental knowledge is offered
to help staff practice and be familiar with job duties. In addition, to
encourage employees to proactively identify their training needs and
seek development opportunities to fulfill their career aspirations, the
Group has a tuition reimbursement scheme for staff who participate in

external training courses, workshops and seminars.

The Group values the feedback from employees and has opened all
possible channels to collect and analyse comments from employees for

ongoing improvements.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

OUR PEOPLE AND COMMUNITY (continued)
Community Care

Community care is an integral part of sustainable development of
Hong Kong and therefore we encourage our staff to participate in and
contribute their expertise to community activities on a voluntary basis,
for the benefit of the public. In 2017, the Group actively participated
in several charitable activities, including the “Community Chest Dress

Casual Day”, "Community Chest Love Teeth Day” and “Goodman

Interlink Magic Mile Charity Ramp Run”. We believe that these activities
can help create a harmonious society, bearing our fair share of social

responsibility.
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The Directors submit herewith their report together with the audited

consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 32 to the

consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017
is set out in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 6 to 8 and pages 9 to 20 respectively of this

annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income on pages 86 to 87 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out on page 204 of this annual

report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated

financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital are set out in

Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

In the opinion of the Directors, there is no reserve of the Company
which is available for distribution to Shareholders at 31 December 2017
and 31 December 2016.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Hengxin (Chairman and Managing Director)

(appointed as Chairman and Managing Director on 31 January 2017)

Mr. Jia Minghui

Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin (Former Chairman and Managing Director)
(resigned on 31 January 2017)

Mr. Peng Shiyuan (resigned on 27 December 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Tsz Keung (appointed on 11 October 2017)
Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon (appointed on 15 March 2018)

Mr. Guo Zhenhui (appointed on 15 March 2018)
Mr. Wong Sin Ki (passed away on 7 March 2018)
Mr. Chan Ngai Sang Kenny (resigned on 1 August 2017)
Mr. Li Kwok Fat (resigned on 27 December 2017)

Each of Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin and Mr. Peng Shiyuan resigned as
an Executive Director and each of Mr. Chan Ngai Sang Kenny and
Mr. Li Kwok Fat resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director as

they wished to allocate more time to their personal commitments.

In accordance with Bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Chan Tsz Keung,
Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon and Mr. Guo Zhenhui shall retire from
office at the forthcoming AGM, and being eligible, will offer themselves

for re-election.
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ESEHE

DIRECTORS (continued) %% (%)

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws, Mr. Zhang Hengxin and B EAR A RIAMA 2 HBIES7IE K=HZ LR
Mr. Jia Minghui shall retire by rotation from office at the forthcoming ERABLAEREREBRRBEFAE LHELSR:
AGM, and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election. BEHEERLEEEEET-

The directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries of the FARBEARKEBPZERQTHEBRATE

Company during the year and up to the date of this report were: FERERBIESNT
Mr. Zhang Hengxin REETE

Mr. Peng Shiyuan TEREAE

Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin EEfmiE

Mr. Wong Wai Keung Alfred FE®TE

Mr. Cheng Kin Chor EER A S

Ms. Yam Wai Wah Jenny FEEL+

Mr. Lee King Yi EXC s

Ms. Chung Wai Fong EEF LT

Mr. Fong Kwok Wai FEERE

Mr. Deng Zichao BFEEEAE
DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS EEZBRBEN

Mr. Chan Tsz Keung, an Independent Non-executive Director, has entered BV 3 ERITEEREMAECEHARAFI L E
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years - FHE = —+tF+A+— AT AH=
commencing from 11 October 2017, which may be terminated by one 4 AIHAR B ERELZH — (@A 2 E @ M4
month’s notice in writing served by the Company on Mr. Chan or by SEMRIEERARFZEHENBFEmMBA T IUK

instant notice in writing served by Mr. Chan on the Company. 1k

Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon, an Independent Non-executive Director, B IFHITEEBSGHRBE A ED EANREIL
has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a ZI K FHE - ZE—N\F=ZA+HB#AH
term of three years commencing from 15 March 2018, which may be =% A@ARAAKBEEEN—@AZE®R
terminated by one month’s notice in writing served by the Company on 3 %18k /i B [5 5t 4 8] A8 & 7] 2% ) BB 22 T 4R 41
Mr. Au Yeung or by instant notice in writing served by Mr. Au Yeung on  FIA%IFe

the Company.
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DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS (continued)

Mr. Guo Zhenhui, an Independent Non-executive Director, has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 15 March 2018, which may be terminated by
one month’s notice in writing served by the Company on Mr. Guo or by

instant notice in writing served by Mr. Guo on the Company.

Apart from the foregoing, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other

than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company had interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and

the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTIONS
Share Option Scheme

On 30 June 2015, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(“Share Option Scheme”), which was approved by the Shareholders at
the AGM held on the same date.
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SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
Share Option Scheme (continued)

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to grant
share options to the eligible participants as incentives or rewards for

their contributions to the Group.

According to the Share Option Scheme, the Board may grant share
options to the eligible participants as defined in the Share Option
Scheme to subscribe for such number of shares as the Board may
determine. Share options granted should be accepted within 28 days
from the date of the letter of grant. Upon acceptance of the share
options, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company by way of
consideration for the grant. Subject to the terms of the Share Option
Scheme and all applicable laws, the Board has the power to determine

the period within which payments or calls must or may be made.

The exercise price of share options shall be determined by the Board,
which shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of
the grant, which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price of
the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of the grant;

and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon the exercise
of all share options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme(s) of the Company must not exceed 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company on the date of approval and
adoption of the Share Option Scheme provided that the Company may at
any time seek approval from the Shareholders to refresh the limit to 10%
of the shares in issue as at the date of approval by the Shareholders in
general meeting where such limit is refreshed. Share options previously
granted under any share option schemes of the Company (including
those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in accordance with such schemes or
exercised options) will not be counted for the purpose of calculating the

limit as refreshed.
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SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
Share Option Scheme (continued)

The total number of shares issued and may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the share options granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to each eligible participant
in any 12-month period up to and including the date of grant shall not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the date of grant unless such
grant has been duly approved by ordinary resolution of the Shareholders
in general meeting at which the relevant eligible participant and his
associates abstained from voting. Share options granted to substantial
Shareholders or Independent Non-executive Directors or any of their
respective associates in any 12-month period in excess of 0.1% of
the Company’s issued share capital on the date of grant and with a
value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the

Shareholders.

The period during which a share option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no share
option can be exercised more than 10 years after it has been granted.
There is no general requirement that a share option must be held for any
minimum period before it can be exercised. The Share Option Scheme is
valid and effective for a period of ten years and will expire at the close

of business on 29 June 2025.

At the SGM held on 12 July 2017, the Company was authorised to
refresh the scheme mandate limit to issue a maximum of 186,267,948
share options under the Share Option Scheme. Notwithstanding
the forgoing, the shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company at

any time shall not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.
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SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
Share Option Scheme (continued)

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share
options granted under the Share Option Scheme during the year ended

31 December 2017:

B
ARS8 ()

TEREEHE T —tF+-_A=1T—BL#F
EARRREBERESS RO 2 BREZES):

Outstanding at Cancelled/
beginning of  Granted during Exercised  lapsed during  Outstanding at
Participants Date of grant the year the year  during the year the year end of the year  Exercise price  Exercise period
RERE
2EE BREBH RENERTR  REABEN RERBTE HE/ AN REREATE TEE &S
HKS
B
Eligible employees 26.7.2017 (Note) - 186,200,000 - - 186,200,000 0.123  26.7.2017-25.7.2022
RERESR B-tF ZE-+E+A
tA=F7~H ZthAZ
(Hi) it St
—+hA
Other eligible participants 1.6.2017 (Note) - 186,200,000 - - 186,200,000 0.654  1.6.2017-31.5.2022
KAk aE E-tF Sl Y d=
~RE—B (M) E_Z-_FIA
=t-H
Approximate
percentage to total
number of Company’s
shares in issue at end
of the year
BEREAR
BRTRGEH
BAEA
Total under Share Option Scheme - 372,400,000 - - 372,400,000 19.99%

BRESIET 28

Note: The closing prices of the Company’s shares immediately before 1 June
2017 and 26 July 2017, the dates of grant of the share options, were
HK$0.590 and HK$0.118 respectively.

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme is 372,467,948, which represents
approximately 20.00% of the total number of shares in issue of the

Company as at 28 March 2018 (i.e. 1,862,679,481 shares).
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option holdings disclosed above, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other

body corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Apart from the transactions disclosed under the heading “RELATED

PARTY TRANSACTIONS” as set out in Note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements, there were no other contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business, to which the Company, its holding
company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisting at the end of the year or at anytime during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for service contracts, no contracts concerning the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business
of the Company were entered into or subsisting during the year ended

31 December 2017.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year are set out in Note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements. None of these related party transactions during the
year constitutes a connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2017, so far as are known to the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company, no persons or corporations (other than
Directors or chief executive of the Company) had, or deemed or taken
to have, interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or who was directly or
indirectly, to be interested in 5% or more of the number of any class
of shares in issue of the Company, carrying the rights to vote in all

circumstances at general meetings of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2017, sales attributable to the Group’s
largest customer accounted for approximately 43% of the Group’s
consolidated revenue and aggregate revenue attributable to the five
largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 67% of the

Group's consolidated revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, purchases attributable to the
Group's largest supplier accounted for approximately 45% of the
Group's total purchases and aggregate purchases attributable to the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 86% of the

Group's total purchases.

To the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, or their
respective associates, or Shareholders owning more than 5% of the
Company’s number of shares in issue had any beneficial interests in any

of the five largest customers or suppliers.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the

Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and

competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed and recommended by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating

results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in

Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in
the "Corporate Governance Report” on pages 24 to 48 of this annual

report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to reducing its carbon footprint and
consumption of natural resources in all possible aspects of business
operations. Our environmental strategy is to achieve a balance between
the quality and efficiency of our services and the minimization of
greenhouse gas emissions and environmental degradation. Accordingly,
the Group has taken a proactive approach to effect internal and external
communications by means of telephone, emails and conferences or such
other communication means which are efficient yet environmentally
friendly. Also, the Group are able to minimize physical travelling and

printing.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES (continued)

Details of the Company’s environmental policies and practices are set
out in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 49

to 63 of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

The employees of the Group are one of the most important assets and
stakeholders of the Group and their contribution and support are values
at all times. The Group regularly reviews compensation and benefit
policies accordingly to industry benchmark as well as the individual
performance of employees. Other fringe benefits, mandatory provident
fund and share options are provided to retain loyal employees with the
aim to form a professional staff and management team that can bring

the Group to different levels of success.

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Directors believe that maintaining good relationships with customers
has been one of the critical reasons for the Group’s success. Our
business model is to maintain and build on our strong relationships
within our client base. Our mission is to provide the finest service to our
customers and the Group is constantly looking ways to improve customer
relations through enhanced services. Regarding Money Lending Business
and Securities Investment, the Group has no major suppliers. Whereas
regarding the other principal businesses, the Group has maintained good
relationship with the suppliers to ensure their continued support to the

Group in the foreseeable future.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include strategic,

operational and financial risks.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (continued)
Strategic Risks

The Directors maintain a strategic plan based on the knowledge to the
external environments. The Group will invest in projects and investments
based on the strategic plan in order to cope with the market demand
and expectation. Given the rapid change of unforeseeable external
environments in the financial and equity markets, the Group is facing
significant strategic risks on its investments when changing the strategic

plans to adopt the unexpected changes of external environments.

Operational Risks

Management regularly reviews the Group's operations to ensure that
the Group's risk of losses, whether financial or otherwise, resulting from
fraud, errors, omissions and other operational and compliance matters,

are adequately managed.

Financial Risks

The principal financial risks are set out in Note 40 to the consolidated

financial statements headed “FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT".

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for disclosed in the section headed “SHARE OPTIONS” on pages
67 to 70 of this annual report, the Company has not entered into any

equity-linked agreements during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Directors, secretary and other officers and
every auditor for the time being of the Company shall be entitled to be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which they or any of them, shall or may incur or sustain
by or by reasons of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the execution of their duties in their respective offices or otherwise in

relation thereto.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION (continued)

The Company has taken out insurance against all losses and liabilities
associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought

against Directors and other officers of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year, the Company was not aware of any non-compliance
with any relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact on

it.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific
enquiry, all Directors have confirmed that they have fully complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended
31 December 2017.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee currently comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Au Yeung Ming Yin Gordon (Chairman),
Mr. Chan Tsz Keung and Mr. Guo Zhenhui. The Audit Committee has
reviewed with the management the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, and discussed the risk management and internal
control systems and financial reporting matters including the review of

the audited results for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws, or the
laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares

on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the

year ended 31 December 2017.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events after 31 December 2017 of the Group

are set out in Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 were

audited by Elite Partners CPA Limited.
A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming AGM to re-appoint

Elite Partners CPA Limited as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Hengxin

Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 28 March 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report
8 3 A% B

elite
partners

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of AMCO United
Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “"Group”) set out on pages 86 to 203, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and the notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section to
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) issued by
the HKICPA, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Independent Auditor’s Report
BB RS

FAREFELER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, REESNIEEHE BREZEBEAETSEX
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial REZE-_ZT—tH&+_-_A=+—HILFEN4L
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017. These matters were AMEHEATREENEBH BSHEEREGAY
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial HHEEMLERERFEBNHSEE Mg

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do  FiULEFBEEBFERER -

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter
BREEXREHE

Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible assets

BB R B EE R B E T

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had goodwill of
approximately HK$10 million which relates to the acquisition
of ACE Engineering Limited in 2016 (see Note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements). Also, the Group had intangible
assets of approximately HK$5 million which relate to the
"Contracts backlog” and “Contractor registrations” as disclosed
in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements. The goodwill
and the intangible assets were allocated to the cash generating
unit for building contract works business (“CGU"). During the
year ended 31 December 2017, the Group had not recognised
impairment loss of goodwill and intangible assets.
—tF+ZA=+—H EEEEENR_T—RFUE
W IRARRAZEEL /10,000,000 T (REGEMBRE
BiEE16) o o - MRS M B |MRMT17PARE - EXEERH
[REKAEH] R[#AZBM] 2 EFE E 4 /5,000,000 7T
HELRBRVEEDOEZEBFABIRER 2 BSEEEM ([FR
CELEEMN]) REBEEZZE—+F+A=T—-HILFE- &
EEAERABERELEENRERE-

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEEERPUAEERREE

Our major audit procedures in relation to the
impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible
assets included the following:
EERBELRELEERENGETHIEERER
B

e We discussed with management as to whether

there was any indicator of impairment.

EEREBEIBEEFEEARETR-

e We obtained cash flow forecasts relating to the
CGU prepared by management and approved by
the directors of the Company.

EERISH ERREEERENEFHERH
ReELEU s RSN -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

BREEREHE

Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible asset
(continued)

BERRELEER B ETE (&)

For the purpose of the impairment assessment of goodwill and
intangible assets, the Group appointed an independent external
valuer to assess the recoverable amount of the CGU at the end of
the reporting period.

REBERBEVEENRENATNE BEXEEEEBELINGMGEE
AhRF IR S EA B N HRE RN ATKRE S 5E -

We had identified impairment assessment of goodwill and
intangible assets as a key audit matter because significant
management judgement was required to determine the key
assumptions including estimated future income, operating
margins and discount rate, etc. and the amounts involved were
significant.
EECHAERENEENRETLI RBEREZEE RAR
ErRRBRREBEMFARLUAN CEMNBXRRURREHAEE
EBELREHE RIS REBEK-
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEEERPUNAEERREE

We discussed with management and independent
external valuer engaged by the Company
in relation to the methodology, basis and
assumptions used in arriving at the forecasts
(e.g. estimated sales growth rate and discount
rate etc.) to see whether the methodology and
assumptions used were reasonable.
EEREBRER EQARZENBUINLEER
A A BERTRRA AR A BERRR (§:
LEFHERBRENBREXREF) AT BB T E
RBRREEAE-

We checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
reliance of the input data used.
BEAMETT NiE A EABIENEREE R
FEE

We evaluated the competency of the independent
external valuer taking into account its experience
and qualifications.

EERFA MBI EEMNERIEREK
EHE BT



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
BREERSEHE

Impairment of loan receivables

FEW B 589 6 18

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had loan receivables of
approximately HK$110 million, as set out in Note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements. During the year ended 31
December 2017, no impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

RZEBE—+tHF+_A=+—HB HAUOEGEEHHHREMT220m
#H BESEEBEWEL110,000,0008 T - REE-T—LF
TZA=T-BLFE BENEEARREARERE-

We had identified impairment assessment of loan receivables
as a key audit matter because the amounts of loan receivables
were significant and significant management judgement had
to be made for the assessment of the recoverability of the loan
receivables (e.g. credit history and estimated future cash flows).

S HRKREROBENGEIAERERFER RERENRE
AEEBEARRAEERERTREEAEREELDREH
B (BMEEE L REGFARRELRE)

Independent Auditor’s Report
BB RS

FREMREIE ()

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEEERPUNAEERREE

Our major audit procedures relating to the impairment
assessment of loan receivables included the following:

EREREFRREFEETHEIEZEREFRRE:

e We assessed the controls over the approval,
recording and monitoring of the loan receivables,
and evaluated the methodologies, inputs and
assumptions used by the Group in determining
individual impairment allowances.
LAY E CHREEEKERNIZES
ARG BESEBEFEEMNBERBRABNA
EBABBREBR-

e  We assessed whether the financial statement
disclosures appropriately reflect the Group's
exposure to credit risk.
BAMTEHBRREEZEREUARR 5%
EeEERR-
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and

our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that

fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures

made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the

group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017 and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent

auditor’s report is Siu Jimmy with Practising Certificate Number P05898.

Elite Partners CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 March 2018
10/F., 8 Observatory Road

Tsim Sha Tsui

Kowloon, Hong Kong
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meBEskEMEEKS

&=

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-ZE—+#F+-H=+—HIFEE

2017 2016
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(Re-presented)
e L —E—AF
B FHERT FHET
(g&E5)
Continuing operations BEKEEL
Revenue WA 6,7 87,932 98,400
Cost of sales and services S I AR 7% A AR (67,579) (81,444)
Gross profit EF 20,353 16,956
Other income and other gains or losses  H b iz &5 & E Ab Ug A sk /&5 48 8 (128,203) 5,180
Distribution costs 2 EH A AR (299) (282)
Administrative expenses TR X (39,757) (38,492)
Finance costs 1% & A 9 - (120)
Share of loss of an associate B —HEBE AR ZEE 18 = (1,612)
Loss before income tax BrETBRAIERE 10 (147,906) (18,370)
Income tax credit FRe i R 11 47 426
Loss for the year from REBERLEXEBZFERIE
continuing operations (147,859) (17,944)
Discontinued operations DRIEEEEK
Loss for the year from REDRIEEEER 2 FEREE
discontinued operations 35 (71) (465)
Loss and total comprehensive EARBEEANELREEFER
income for the year attributable 2HBALRE
to owners of the Company (147,930) (18,409)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ_=%

K H At 2 W & &

E—tFF+ZA=1+—HAULFE

2017 2016
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
(Re-presented)
—ZE2—+tF —E-RF
B FHERT FHET
(g&E=5)
Loss and total comprehensive EATEEANEEFEFEAR
income for the year attributable 2HEHIBALRH
to owners of the Company
— from continuing operations —RAEFBEEED (147,859) (17,944)
— from discontinued operations —REDRIEREER (71) (465)
(147,930) (18,409)
Loss per share BREE 12
Basic and diluted BERREE
— from continuing operations —REFELEER HK(7.94) centsiE HK(0.99) cent {l
— from discontinued operations —REERIEEEER = HK(0.03) cent 1l
HK(7.94) centsi& 1l HK(1.02) centsi&{ll




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e BRI R

As at 31 December 2017 R=—ZT—+tF+=-F=+—H

2017 2016
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
s —E—AF
B 5 FET FAET

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE

Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y- WER&EE 15 2,087 2,652
Goodwill EES 16 10,196 10,196
Intangible assets mEAE 17 5,056 5,297
Available-for-sale financial asset A EMEEE 19 - 15,300
17,339 33,445

Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 20 11 1
Held-for-trading investments HIEEERE 21 35,223 166,311
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E A FE R FIE 22 149,184 103,758
Tax recoverable Ay W B #5418 78 -
Cash and cash equivalents Be MRS EEBY 24 26,276 30,479
210,872 300,559
Current liabilities FREBAE

Trade and other payables B 5 I H th JE T 5018 25 61,675 30,260
Tax payable R IR 19 28
61,694 30,288
Net current assets REBEEFE 149,178 270,271
Total assets less current liabilities BEAEBERRBER 166,517 303,716
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e BRI R

As at 31 December 2017 R=—F—t#F+=-FA=+—A

2017 2016
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—®—tf —EAE
Bt 5 FERT FET

Non-current liability FRBEE
Deferred tax liability REBIEEE 26 834 874
Net assets EEFE 165,683 302,842

EQUITY i

Share capital & A 27 18,627 18,627
Reserves B 147,056 284,215
Total equity RSB 165,683 302,842

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on K&EEEeR _ZT—N\F=ZA -+ B EERK
28 March 2018. RET 3 -

On behalf of the Board

RREBE
Zhang Hengxin Jia Minghui
RTE EHE
Director Director
BF BF



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERREEX

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE-ZE—+#F+-H=+—HIFEE

Share Share Capital Translation Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total
B2 R EE EXRGEE ELRE RitEB Foh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiET TEL FET FAEL TET FiET
(Notes a & ¢) (Notes b & ¢) (Note ) (Note ¢)
(Mzrake) (MizEbRe) (Bizke) (MzEc)
As at 1 January 2016 RZZE-"5—-A—-8B 12,418 331,640 - 1,591 (101,879) 243,770
Loss and total comprehensive R E1E &
income for the year XL ONE - - - - (18,409) (18,409)
Net proceeds from open offer ~ AFI%E 2 B8 778
(Note 27) B (5E27) 6,209 71,272 - - - 77,481
As at 31 December 2016 and R =T~ &
1 January 2017 TZA=T—-RBR
I e = 18,627 402,912 - 1,591 (120,288) 302,842
Loss and total comprehensive R E1E &
income for the year L ONE - - - - (147,930) (147,930)
Recognition of equity-settled ~ LARRD AERERLEE 2
share-based payment expenses 51z 2 # 2 ([f5£29)
(Note 29) - - 10,771 - - 10,771
As at 31 December 2017 R_B—tF
+-A=+-H 18,627 402,912 10,771 1,591 (268,218) 165,683
Notes: s -

a)  The application of share premium account is governed by Section 40 of a) RPN EERZERAZERE—NAN—FAF
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. VEEA0IGIRE -

b) As at 31 December 2017, the capital reserve comprised the fair value b) R-ZZ—+E+_-_A=+—H0 EAHFEER

of unexercised share options granted to eligible employees and other ERBEARG BEMRMNFIRAZ 5TEER
eligible participants of the Group under the share option scheme of the BRZANFIEREANEBEBTIETEAERS
Company recognised in accordance with the accounting policy adopted BREEREMEERSEA L ZRITHERE
for share-based payments as further detailed in Note 4.16 to the REz AR BE E—THBHREEHG
consolidated financial statements. wEME4.16

c)  The total of these balances represents “Reserves” in the consolidated ¢) ZEHRBEZENMABEAMBRAIERNZ [

statement of financial position. 1l
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEBEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HE-F—+#+=-F=+—HAULFE

2017 2016
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—g—tF B
B FHExT FHT
Cash flows from operating activities REKEEIBHZRERE
Loss before income tax B P15 B4 Al S 18
— from continuing operations —RABEBEEER (147,906) (18,370)
— from discontinued operations —REERIEEEES 35 (71) (687)
Adjustments for: HTINIBEREEL 2 AR
Depreciation of property, ME- - BEREENE
plant and equipment 15 1,041 2,413
Amortisation of intangible asset M A EEE 17 241 2,505
Loss/(gain) on sale of held-for-trading HEFEEEREZEER,
investments (Wz5) 8 59,097 (1,954)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries LEMNRBAR 2 EE 8 - 1,285
Gain arising from disposal of HE—BEERRMEEZ
an associate Wz 8 - (412)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEANHEEMBEE 2 W a
financial asset 8 (3,360) -
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE HFER&E W
plant and equipment 8 (495) (140)
Loss/(gain) on change in fair value REEEREZANEEES
of held-for-trading investments B8 (W) 8 75,181 (1,528)
Share-based payment expenses LARRAD 1 5k 2 Bl 2 29 10,771
Interest income FEMA 8 (5) (211)
Interest expenses FMEXZH 9 - 120
Share of loss of an associate FE(L— B E QR EE 18 - 1,612
Operating loss before working EEESRBAIZKREER
capital changes (5,506) (15,367)
Increase in inventories FEIEM (100) -
Purchases of held-for-trading BERIEEEKE
investments (9,984) (226,322)
Proceeds from disposal of HEREBEERE ZMENIEA
held-for-trading investments 6,794 63,493
Increase in trade and B 5 K H th & WK IE 3 AN
other receivables (45,426) (120,704)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and B H hEMEMNE
other payables wn, O 31,415 (10,792)
Cash used in operations RETHHAZRES (22,807) (309,692)
Hong Kong tax paid EfREARIE (80) -
Net cash used in operating activities ETEE B2 FE (22,887) (309,692)

M?E?IHEEE AR

-
F
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-ZE—+F+-HA=+—HIEE

2017 2016
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
EF iy —E-AF
B FHExT FHT
Cash flows from investing activities RERETHZHERE
Payment for purchase of property, SNEEWE BEREHEZ
plant and equipment I8 (495) (794)
Proceeds from disposal of HENHRLENKERE 2
available-for-sale financial asset Fris 58 19 18,660 -
Proceeds from disposal of HEWE  HERZE
property, plant and equipment Fris50R 514 158
Interest received 2 H B 5 211
Acquisition of a subsidiary, kg —HKEAa -
net of cash acquired EHBRATKER S 34 = (10,376)
Acquisition of an associate U B — R B = A R 18 - (50,000)
Payment for purchase of XNEBERAHEENBEEY
available-for-sale financial asset I8 19 - (15,300)
Proceeds from disposal of LEME AT ZFTSHRIE
subsidiaries, net of cash EHBRATHERS
disposed of 36 - 112,164
Net cash outflow arising from HEERIEKEEBEEZ
disposal of discontinued operation e ML FEE 35(b) = (87)
Proceeds from disposal of s — R 2 A E 2 TS HIE
an associate 18 - 48,800
Net cash generated from investing KEZEELEZHEFHE
activities 18,684 84,776
Cash flows from financing activities REMETH2HERE
Repayment of bank and EERITRHEMEE
other borrowings - (6,201)
Interest paid B F & — (120)
Proceeds from open offer ANFEBEENIEA 27 - 80,716
Shares issue expenses IR TR X 27 - (3,235)
Net cash generated from financing BEZTHEL T EFHE
activities - 71,160
Net decrease in cash and ReRASEEYRLDERE
cash equivalents (4,203) (153,756)
Cash and cash equivalents R—B—BZzEERESEEY
at 1 January 30,479 184,235
Cash and cash equivalents R+=ZHA=+—-B2
at 31 December RERREEEY 26,276 30,479
Represented by: =
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHEH 24 26,276 30,479

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HE-F—+#+=-F=+—HAULFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

AMCO United Holding Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Bermuda with limited liability on 19 August 1994 as an exempted
company under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda with its
shares listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 28 November 1996. The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section

to the annual report.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
"Group”) are principally engaged in (i) manufacture and sale
of medical devices products; (i) manufacture and sale of plastic
moulding products; (iii) provision of construction services in building
construction, building maintenance and improvement works, project
management, renovation and decoration works; (iv) provision of

money lending; and (v) investment in securities.

—REH

ERERBRAT ([ARFHR—NAM
FAATNBERBEERE-NAN—FAF
FHEAREEMA LS —HEHRRERAD
A-EBROBE - NAARFE+—AZ+NR
EREBBMARXHMERAR ([BRAM])
IREF - ARBZEMPERRETEE
EWE MU RAFR[ARER] —EK

R o

RARREMBAR (HifEA[AEE])E
BRENRENHEBEREBER (NRE
NREEZBEAER: (MRHEFTEE.
BFEEERAEIR BEEEE RERE
8 TA2T5 < BAE RS - (WIRELE : ] (v)
BHEIE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-ZE—+F+-HA=+—HIEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(a) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs -

effective 1 January 2017

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time
the following new amendments and interpretation to HKFRSs
(hereinafter collectively referred to as “new and revised
HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"), which are effective for the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the annual period

beginning on 1 January 2017:
Amendments to HKAS 7  Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets

for Unrealised Losses

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2014-2016 Cycle

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the
current year has no material effect on the Group's financial
performance and position for the current year or the

disclosures set out in the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(b) Application of new and revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective

The following new and revised HKFRSs have been issued, but
are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the

RAEBMBERELEDN ([T

BRI EmEZER]) (&)

(b) EHCHEMERRENRZH
E&%@H?%Mﬁﬁ%ﬁ
|

VAT # 8] RARIERT &R B 15 3R 5 2 A
KEBEMm - ERARER BAREEY

Group.
HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15
HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 4

Amendements to
HKFRS 9

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 40

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRSs

IFRIC 22

IFRIC 23

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(and the related Clarifications)’
Leases?

Insurance Contracts*

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions’
Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts’

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures?
Transfers of Investment Property'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle?

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’
Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018, with earlier application permitted

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019, with earlier application permitted

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to

be determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021, with earlier applications permitted
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-ZE—+F+-HA=+—HIEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(b) Application of new and revised HKFRSs that

have been issued but are not yet effective

(continued)

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) anticipate that,
except as described below, the application of other new and
revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results and

the financial position of the Group.

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is to hold
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows (the business
model test) and that have contractual terms that give rise to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding (the contractual cash
flow characteristics test) are generally measured at amortised
cost. Debt instruments that meet the contractual cash
flow characteristics test are measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") if the objective of
the entity’s business model is both to hold and collect the
contractual cash flows and to sell the financial assets. Entities
may make an irrevocable election at initial recognition to
measure equity instruments that are not held for trading at
FVTOCI. All other debt and equity instruments are measured at

fair value through profit and loss.

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model for
all financial assets not measured at fair value through profit or
loss replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” and new general
hedge accounting requirements to allow entities to better

reflect their risk management activities in financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BNEBUBHRELERN ([&F
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued) BRMEHREER]) (2

(b) Application of new and revised HKFRSs that (b) ERCEMERMAKRERZH

have been issued but are not yet effective

(continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (continued)

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification and
measurement requirements for financial liabilities from HKAS
39, except for financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss, where the amount of change in fair
value attributable to change in credit risk of the liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income unless that would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS
9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of

financial assets and financial liabilities.

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 may
have an impact on the Group's results and financial position,
including the classification categories, the measurement of
financial assets and the disclosures. For instance, the Group
will be required to replace the incurred loss impairment model
in HKAS 39 with an expected loss impairment model that will
apply to the Group’s financial assets measured at amortised
cost with various exposures to credit risk. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of

HKFRS 9 until a detailed review has been completed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e gpy F e

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-ZE—+F+-HA=+—HIEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(b) Application of new and revised HKFRSs that

have been issued but are not yet effective

(continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue recognition
framework. The core principle of the framework is that an
entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services. HKFRS 15
supersedes existing revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and

related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5-step approach to

revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each performance

obligation

Step 5: Recognise revenue when each performance

obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular revenue
related topics that may change the current approach taken
under HKFRS. The standard also significantly enhances the

qualitative and quantitative disclosures related to revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BNEBUBHRELERN ([&F
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued) BRMEHREER]) (2

(b) Application of new and revised HKFRSs that (b) ERCEMERMAKRERZH

have been issued but are not yet effective

(continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with

Customers (continued)

The Directors consider that the performance obligations in
respect of the Group's revenue are similar to the current
identification of separate revenue components under HKAS
18 or HKAS 11, and the timing of revenue recognition
of these performance obligations are also expected to be
consistent with current practice. Furthermore, the Directors
consider that the method currently used to measure the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligations will continue to be appropriate under HKFRS
15. Apart from providing more disclosures on the Group’s
revenue transactions, the Directors do not anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the

Group's results and financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-ZE—+F+-HA=+—HIEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(b) Application of new and revised HKFRSs that

have been issued but are not yet effective

(continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede HKAS
17 "Leases”, introduces a single lease accounting model and
requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases
with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying
asset is of low value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee
is required to recognise a right-of-use asset representing
its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease
liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation of the
right-of-use asset and interest on the lease liabilities, and also
classifies cash payments of the lease liability into a principal
portion and an interest portion and presents them in the
consolidated statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use
asset and the lease liability are initially measured on a present
value basis. The measurement includes non-cancellable lease
payments and also includes payments to be made in optional
periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option
to extend the lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate
the lease. This accounting treatment is significantly differently
from the lessee accounting for leases that are classified as

operating leases under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its lease as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for these

two types of leases differently.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BNEBUBHRELERN ([&F
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued) BRMEHREER]) (2

(b) Application of new and revised HKFRSs that (b) ERCEMERMAKRERZH

have been issued but are not yet effective

(continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of approximately HK$4,132,000
as disclosed in Note 37(b). A preliminary assessment indicates
that these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease
under HKFRS 16, and hence the Group will recognise a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of
all these leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term
leases upon the application of HKFRS 16. The application
of the new requirements may result in changes in the
measurement, presentation and disclosure of the Group's
leases as indicated above which may have an impact on the
Group's results and financial position. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect until

a detailed review has been completed.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA,
which is a collective term for all individual HKFRSs, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations,
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing

the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.
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REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ_-F—

tEF=A=+—HILEFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b) Basis of measurement

()

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments which are measured at their fair value. The
measurement basis are fully explained in the accounting

policies set out below.

Functional and presentation currency

Other than subsidiary established in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC") of which the functional currency is Renminbi
("RMB"), the functional currency of the Company and its
subsidiaries is Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK$, which is the same

as the functional currency of the Company.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

4.1 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies together
with unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is

recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTHHREME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

4.1 Basis of consolidation (continued) 4.1 ZEEE (&)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the dates of
acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as appropriate.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the
acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets
transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by
the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are principally measured at acquisition-date

fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest.
Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the same
manner as would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities

were disposed of.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-ZE—+F+-HA=+—HIEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
4.2 Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all
three of the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure or rights to variable returns from the
investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of

these elements of control.

In the Company's statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses, if any. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividends received and

receivable.

4.3 Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is initially
recognised at cost being the excess of the aggregate
consideration transferred over the fair value of identifiable

assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units
("CGUs"), or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from

the synergies of the acquisition.

A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the
cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets. A CGU to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, by comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable
amount (see Note 4.17) and whenever there is an indication

that the unit may be impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTHHREME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

4.3 Goodwill (continued) 43 BHE (&)

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first,
and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis
of the carrying amount to each asset in the unit. However,
the loss allocated to each asset will not reduce the individual
asset’s carrying amount to below its fair value less cost of
disposal (if measurable) or its value in use (if determinable),
whichever is the higher. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed in subsequent

periods.

4.4 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but

is not control or joint control over those policies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ_-F—

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

4.4 Associates (continued)

tEF=A=+—HILEFE

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting, except when the
investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held for
sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations”. Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive

obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess
of the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the

period in which the investment is acquired.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTHHREME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
4.4 Associates (continued) 4.4 BENT] (#)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group's investment in an associate. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the

recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be an associate,
or when the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified
as held for sale. When the Group retains an interest in the

former associate and the retained interest is a financial asset,

the Group measures the retained interest at fair value at that RARBEFEREER MRZAR
date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial BEHRERRBEEEGHE JEE i
recognition in accordance with HKAS 39. The difference BRERRHALBE -BE QTR
between the carrying amount of the associate at the date RIERAERZE B REESE M

the equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of
any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a
part interest in the associate is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
on the same basis as would be required if that associate had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore,
if a gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate would be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is

discontinued.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-ZE—+F+-HA=+—HIEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
4.5 Property, plant and equipment

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an

operating lease.

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings are classified as
finance leases and accounted for as property, plant and

equipment.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance, are recognised as an expense in profit or loss

during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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mf\éﬂjﬁiﬁi M;J.%I

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTHHREME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
45 ¥ -BMERRE (&)
M HERRERGETERFEH

4.5 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to

write off their cost net of expected residual value over their
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The useful lives,

residual value and depreciation method are reviewed, and

REBORFHRITE AMUE E A (40
BRIEEARIEREE) - AT A5 - RIR
BEIFEDZHENEHREH R

adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. MW EEERELFAE A EAE
The useful lives are as follows: BROAT -

Leasehold land and buildings Shorter of remaining HELRETF &4 FH HA =k

lease term or Bt A A

estimated useful life FHsoBES

Plant and machinery 5 - 10 years 57 Be e 28 52104

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years R HE R 54

Motor vehicles 3 - 5 years R 3&E545F

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets, or

where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and

equipment is the difference between the net sale proceeds

REBEREREZEENRERE
BEMR 2 EERETAR A B 55
HABHEHEH (UBREERE)NGE
FrE-

HEME BELRBER ZKEHK
BEALEMSIRFRERREE

and its carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on Mz Z% WHHERERDTER-
disposal.
4.6 Leasing 46 HE

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to lessee. All other leases are classified as operating

leases.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-ZE—+F+-HA=+—HIEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.6 Leasing (continued)

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised
as assets at their fair value or, if lower, the present value
of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding lease
commitment is shown as a liability. Lease payments are
analysed between capital and interest. The interest element
is charged to profit or loss over the period of the lease and is
calculated so that it represents a constant proportion of the
lease liability. The capital element reduces the balance owed to

the lessor.

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised as an
integrated part of the total rental expense, over the term of

the lease.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
The aggregate cost of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental income on a straight-line basis over the term of the

relevant lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTHHREME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
4.7 Intangible assets 47 BEREE
(a) WiBzBTEEE

(a) Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets
are assessed to be finite or indefinite. Subsequently,
intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated impairment

losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of the reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being

accounted for on a prospective basis.

Intangible asset with indefinite useful lives is not
amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with an
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
the indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable.
If not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective

basis.

No amortisation is provided on intangible asset under
development until it is completed and ready for its

intended use.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-ZE—+F+-HA=+—HIEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Intangible assets (continued)
(b) Internally generated intangible assets

Expenditure on internally developed products is

capitalised if it can be demonstrated that:

— it is technically feasible to develop the product for it

to be sold or used;

— adequate resources are available to complete the

development;

—  there is an intention to complete and sell or use the

product;

—  the Group is able to sell or use the product;

— sale or use of the product will generate future

economic benefits; and

— expenditure on the product can be measured

reliably.

Capitalised development costs are amortised over the
periods the Group expects to benefit from selling or using

the products developed.

Development expenditure not satisfying the above
criteria and expenditure on the research phase of internal

projects are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTHHREME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
71 BELEE (&)
(c) Impairment (c) HE

4.7 Intangible assets (continued)

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired (see Note 4.17). Intangible assets with
indefinite lives and intangible assets not yet available for
use are tested for impairment annually and whenever
there is an indication that the asset may be impaired by
comparing their carrying amounts with their recoverable
amounts (see Note 4.17). When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU
to which the asset belongs. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised

as an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount; however, the carrying
amount should not be increased above the lower of
its recoverable amount and the carrying amount that
would have been resulted had no impairment loss been

recognised for the asset in prior years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ_-F—

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

tEF=A=+—HILEFE

4.8 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following categories —
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"),
available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. A regular way purchase or sale is a purchase or sale
of a financial asset that require delivery of the asset within the
time frame established generally by regulation or convention

in the marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTHHREME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

4.8 Financial instruments (continued)

48 BfiIE T H (&)

Financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are financial assets held for trading.
A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short term. Assets
in this category are classified as current assets if expected to
be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as

non-current.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income under “Other income
and other gains or losses”. Fair value is determined in the

manner described in Note 39.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as loans
and receivables, or held-to-maturity investments or financial
assets at FVTPL.

Dividends on AFS equity instrument are recognised in profit
or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is
established.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market price
in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at the end of each reporting period (see accounting

policy in respect of impairment loss on financial assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-ZE—+F+-HA=+—HIEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.8 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables, loan
receivables, retention receivables and cash and bank balances)
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment (see the accounting policy on

impairment of financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been

affected. Objective evidence of impairment may include:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial reorganisation; and

—  the disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTHHREME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

4.8 Financial instruments (continued) 48 BT R (#&)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period of 30 to 90 days, and observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original

effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will

not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are

credited to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-ZE—+F+-HA=+—HIEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.8 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on
the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred. Financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and financial liabilities at amortised
costs are initially measured at fair value, net of directly

attributable costs incurred.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to a
creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in part
as a result of renegotiating the terms of that liability, the
equity instruments issued are the consideration paid and are
recognised initially and measured at their fair value on the
date the financial liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the
fair value of the equity instruments issued cannot be reliably
measured, the equity instruments are measured to reflect the
fair value of the financial liability extinguished. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is recognised

in profit or loss for the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTHHREME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

4.8 Financial instruments (continued) 48 BT R (#&)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and other
payables, are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method. The related interest expense is

recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation

process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments through
the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of

the financial asset or liability.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual
rights to the future cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has been transferred and
the transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in accordance
with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or

expires.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mREMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-ZE—+F+-HA=+—HIEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

4.9 Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently at

the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises all
costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their designated location. Cost is
calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs necessary to make

the sale.

4.10 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand
deposits with banks, short-term deposits with bank with
original maturities of three months or less, and short
term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose
of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and at bank and
short-term investments as defined above, net of outstanding

bank overdrafts.

4.11Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sales of goods and rendering of services

in the normal course of business, net of discounts.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on transfer of risks
and rewards of ownership, which is at the time of delivery and

the title is passed to customer.

Income from the provision of services is recognised upon the
provision of the relevant services or on a time apportionment

basis over the terms of the service contracts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTHHREME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
411 WA FER (#)

4.11Revenue recognition (continued)

The Group’s policy for recognition of revenue from
construction contracts is described in the accounting policy for

construction contracts below.

Rental income in respect of properties under operating leases
is recognised on a straight-line basis over the respective lease

term.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the principal

outstanding at the applicable interest rate.

4.12 Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised with
reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity
at the end of the reporting period, as measured by the
proportion that the value of work carried out during the year.
Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments
are included to the extent that the amount can be measured

reliably and its receipt is considered probable.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the
extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be
recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses in
the period in which they are incurred. When it is probable
that estimated total contract costs will exceed estimated
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an

expense immediately.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-ZE—+F+-HA=+—HIEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

4.12 Construction contracts (continued)

When contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus
is shown as an amount due from customers for contract
work. For contracts where progress billings exceed contract
costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised
losses, the surplus is shown as an amount due to customers
for contract work. Amounts received before the related work
is performed are included in the consolidated statement of
financial position, as a liability, as trade and other payables.
Amounts billed for work performed but not yet paid by the
customers are included in the consolidated statement of

financial position under trade and other receivables.

4.13Income taxes

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current

and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at

the end of the reporting period.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax

payable in respect of previous years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTHHREME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
413 FREH (&)

4.13Income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amount in the financial statements. Except
for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured
at the tax rates expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of

the reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will

not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in other

comprehensive income.

4,14 Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies other
than the currency of the primary economic environment in
which they operate (“functional currency”) are recorded at
the rates ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency
monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency

are not retranslated.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-ZE—+F+-HA=+—HIEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

4.14 Foreign currency (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are

recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the rates on the dates of transactions
are used. All assets and liabilities of foreign operations are
translated at the rate ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as
translation reserve. Exchange differences recognised in profit
or loss of group entities’ separate financial statements on the
translation of long-term monetary items forming part of the
Group's net investment in the foreign operation concerned are
reclassified to other comprehensive income and accumulated

in equity as translation reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange
differences recognised in the translation reserve relating to
that operation up to the date of disposal are reclassified to

profit or loss as part of the profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised

in the translation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTHHREME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

4.15Employee benefits L5 EEER

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits (other
than termination benefits) that are expected to be settled
wholly before twelve months after the end of the annual
reporting period in which the employees render the related
service. Short term employee benefits are recognised in the

year when the employees render the related service.

Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss when the services

are rendered by the employees.

4.16 Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the
grant date. Details regarding the determination of the fair
value of equity-settled share-based transactions are set out
in Note 29. Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled to the
options, the total estimated fair value of the options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the probability

that the options will vest.
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mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-ZE—+F+-HA=+—HIEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.16 Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment to equity. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to equity) except where forfeiture
is only due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the capital reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is transferred to the share premium account)
or the option expires (when it is released directly to retained

profits/accumulated losses).

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at the fair value of the
goods or services received, except where that fair value cannot
be estimated reliably, in which case they are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments granted. The fair value of
the goods or services received are recognised as expenses, with
a corresponding increase in equity (capital reserve), when the
Group obtains the goods or when the counterparties render
services, unless the goods or services qualify for recognition as

assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4., FESTHEME =)

417 Rt EERE

4.17 Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of the following assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss or an impairment loss previously recognised

no longer exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment; and

—  intangible assets

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value less
costs to sell and value in use) of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is

recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised as income immediately.
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mREMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-ZE—+F+-HA=+—HIEE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

4.18 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which require a
substantial period of time to be ready for their intended use or
sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Income
earned on temporary investments of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are

incurred.

4.19 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, which it is probable
will result in an outflow of economic benefits that can be

reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the

probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.20 Related parties

(a)

(b)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group; or

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is @ member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Company'’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).
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mREMBRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ_-F—

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

tEF=A=+—HILEFE

4.20 Related parties (continued)

(b) (continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key management

personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel services

to the Group or to the Company's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(ii)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or

domestic partner.

4.21 Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the chief operating
decision-maker i.e. the most senior executive management
for the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the

performance of, the Group's various lines of business and

geographical locations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTHHREME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

4.21 Segment reporting (continued) 4.21 75 &R & ()

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature

of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
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not individually material may be aggregated if they share a Hate
majority of these criteria.
4.22 Discontinued operations 42 ERIEREERE

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group's
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which
represents a separate major line of business or geographic
area of operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with

a view to resale.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, which comprises
the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation and
the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement to
fair value less costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets or

disposal group(s) constituting the discontinued operation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-ZE—+F+-HA=+—HIEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies which are
described in Note 4, the Directors are required to make estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ

from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods

if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within

the next financial year.

Assessment of impairment of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets

The Group assesses impairment at each reporting date by evaluating
conditions specific to the Group that may lead to impairment of
assets. When an impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is determined. Value-in-use calculations performed
in assessing recoverable amounts incorporate a number of key
estimates and assumptions about future events, which are subject
to uncertainty and might materially differ from the actual results.
In making these key estimates and judgements, the Directors take
into consideration assumptions that are mainly based on the market
conditions existing at the reporting dates and appropriate market

and discount rates.

These estimates are regularly compared to actual market data and

actual transactions entered into by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The management of the Group determines the estimated useful
lives and consequently the related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. These estimates are based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment. Management will increase the depreciation charges
when useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, it will
write off or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned. Actual economic lives may differ from
estimated useful lives. Periodic review may result in a change in

useful lives and therefore the depreciation expenses in future years.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The policy for impairment of trade and other receivables of the
Group is based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing
analysis of the trade and other receivables and on management’s
estimation. A considerable amount of estimation is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these trade and other
receivables. Factors considered include the current creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each customer. If the financial
conditions of customers of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting
in impairment of their ability to make payments, additional

impairment may be required.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-ZE—+F+-HA=+—HIEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated in
Note 4.3. The recoverable amounts of CGUs have been determined
based on value in use calculations. These calculations require the
use of estimates about future cash flows, growth rates and discount
rates. In the process of estimating expected future cash flows,
management makes assumptions about future revenues and profits.
These assumptions relate to future events and circumstances, the
actual results may vary and may cause a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of goodwill within the next financial year.
Determining the appropriate discount rate involves estimating the
appropriate adjustment for market risk and for asset specific risk

factors.

Construction contracts

As explained in accounting policy in Note 4.12, revenue recognition
on a project is dependent on management’s estimation of the
total outcome of the construction contracts, with reference to the
progress certificate issued by the customer. Significant assumptions
are required in estimating the contract revenue, contract costs
and variation work which may have an impact on percentage of
completion of the construction contracts and the corresponding
profit taken. The Group reviews and revises the estimates of
contract revenue, contract costs and variation orders, prepared for

each construction contract as the contract progresses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Valuation of share options

As mentioned in Note 29, the Group has granted share options
to eligible employees and other eligible participants of the Group
under the share option scheme of the Company. The Directors have
used an option pricing model — Binomial Option Pricing Model
to determine the fair value of the options granted. The Binomial
Option Pricing Model requires the input of subjective assumptions,
such as risk-free rate, dividend yield, expected volatility and
expected term, to be made by the Directors based on their best
estimate of the values in applying the model. Changes in these
variables and assumptions may result in changes in the fair value of

the options.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker that are used to

make strategic decisions.

The Group has six (2016: seven) reportable segments. The segments
are managed separately as each business offers different products
and services and requires different business strategies. The following
summary describes the operations in each of the Group's reportable

segments:

(1)  Manufacture and sale of medical devices products (“Medical

Devices Business”);

(2) Manufacture and sale of plastic moulding products (“Plastic

Moulding Business”);

(3) Provision of public relations services (“PR Business”);
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-ZE—+F+-HA=+—HIEE

6.

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(4) Provision of construction services in building construction,
building maintenance and improvement works, project
management, renovation and decoration works (“Building

Contract Works Business”);

(5) Provision of money lending (“Money Lending Business”); and

(6) Investment in securities (“Securities Investment”).

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the business segment
for the PR Business was discontinued effective from 1 April 2017.
Information about this discontinued segment is disclosed in

Note 35(a).

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group commenced
the Money Lending Business and Securities Investment. In addition,
the Group acquired the Building Contract Works Business in
January 2016. Information about this acquired business is disclosed
in Note 34. In June 2016, the business segment for the provision
of human resources management services (“HR Business”) was sold
and discontinued. Information about this discontinued segment is

disclosed in Note 35(b).

Inter-segment transactions, if any, are priced with reference to
prices charged to external parties for similar products. Corporate
revenue and expenses are not allocated to the operating segments
as they are not included in the measure of the segments’ profit/loss
that is used by the chief operating decision-maker for assessment

of segment performance.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. DHEBEE (&)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by LT AREEZIREDEE D 2 WA R
reportable segment: KED:
(a) Business segments (a) %2
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-—Z—tHFt+-A=+—HLEE
Discontinued
operation
Continuing operations (Note 35(a)
BAL
Bexn
RELERR (H&E35(a))
Building
Medical Plastic Contract Money
Devices Moulding Works Lending Securities
Business Business Business Business  Investment Sub-total PR Business Total

HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
BRARE ZBHA BFEE

E3 ES IRER BEER BERE N DEER @
TiEx FER iR TEx TEx TiEx iR TiEx
Reportable segment revenue AREFBHA 38,023 1,938 41,848 6,123 - 87,932 - 87,932
Revenue from external customers —~ RESMEEMA 38,023 1,938 41,848 6,123 - 87,932 - 87,932
Reportable segment profitfloss) — W&EH HEH / (H8) 2,04 (326) (117) 5758 (134,371) (126,115) 1) (126,186)
Reportable segment assets TRESPEE 3,434 890 43,645 110,170 42,002 200,141 - 200,141
Reportable segment labilities AREANTAE (7.379) (610) (14,827) (28,799) (19 (51,634) - (51,634)
Amounts included in the measure ~ FE A HEH/ (BE) &
of segment profit/(loss) or PHEEHAZLE
seqment assets
Interest income F8HA - 1 - 2 - 3 = 3
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH (2) (397) (407) - - (806) 3) (809)
Gain on disposal of property, HENE BERRELE
plant and equipment 170 - 65 - - 235 - 235
Additions to non-current assets ~ AEEFEEE - - 493 - - 493 - 493
EREZERERAT
2017 &3
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HEZ_-F—+&+=-F=+—HAULFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. DEIRE (&)
(a) Ko (&)

BE-T-AET-AST-ALE

(a) Business segments (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Re-presented)

138

B (&8E75))
Continuing operations Discontinued operations (Note 35)
HEEERE BRIEEE R (H335)
Building
Medical Plastic Contract Money
Devices  Moulding Works lendng  Securities
Business Business Business Business  Investment Sub-total PR Business  HR Business Sub-total Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EERE  HBRE  BTAR ANER
£% 5% IRXE  HERE  E5RE P REEE % Nt @t
TR T Fi#n FiEn Fi#n TiEn TR Thr Tin T
Reportable segment revenue TREFBRA 38,761 2,540 53,650 3,554 - 98,505 479 1,641 2,120 100,625
Inter-segment revenue LELON - - - (105) - (109) - - - (105)
Revenue from external customers ~ RESNSEEMA 38,761 2,540 53,650 3,449 - 98,400 479 1,641 2,120 100,520
Reportable segment profitloss) ~ AIRES ikl / (BE) 1,186 347 (1,611) 2,765 2410 5,007 (86) (379) (465) 4632
Reportable segment assets TRENPEE 2577 578 41,698 74,557 166,311 285,721 45 - 45 285,766
Reportable segment liabilities TREHHEE (4243) (660)  (13948) - (19 (18870) (4) - W (18874
Amounts included in the measure T2 ATER]/ (BB %
of segment profit/loss) or APEEFAL LR
segment assets
Interest income ELON - 1 196 5 2 204 - - - 204
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 2) (397) (2633) - - (3.032) (14) (16) (30) (3.062)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property,  HEN% HER
plant and equipment HEhs/ (BB - 128 0 - - i - - - 121
Additions to non-current assets  FEFERHEE - - 525 - - 525 - 1 n 536
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. DEHE (&)
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment (b) THETHBA B - EE
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities REEZHE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Re-presented)
e —EAE
FAx FHE
(&%)
Revenue L ON
Reportable segment revenue Al ¥R & D UL A 87,932 100,625
Inter-segment revenue 73 EB WA = (105)
Segment revenue from discontinued REDRIEEEEB 2D WA
operations - (2,120)
Consolidated revenue from continuing R EFELCEEBFZHEERA
operations 87,932 98,400
Loss before income tax and BRETESHATIBEREAL
discontinued operations REER
Reportable segment (loss)/profit Al RE S (E518) % F (126,186) 4,632
Segment loss from discontinued REBRIEKREEB 2 HHBER
operations 71 465
Finance costs B 7% & A - (120)
Share of loss of an associate B — B E R R 2 EE - (1,612)
Unallocated corporate income AOoMEERA 5,376 1,530
Unallocated corporate expenses RO (27,167) (23,265)
Consolidated loss before income REBESEEKZ
tax from continuing operations BRETERATGEERE (147,906) (18,370)
Assets 5E
Segment assets DEEE 200,141 285,766
Available-for-sale financial asset AHPEMKEE — 15,300
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEEY 26,276 30,479
Unallocated corporate assets ROMEEEE 1,794 2,459
Consolidated total assets LAEREE 228,211 334,004
Liabilities =R
Segment liabilities HEAEE 51,634 18,874
Amounts due to related parties FEATREE A 3B - 9,200
Unallocated corporate liabilities APBE¥EE 10,894 3,088
Consolidated total liabilities REBaE 62,528 31,162
ERERERAT
2017 £ 139
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-ZE—+F+-HA=+—HIEE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment

(c)

revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

(continued)

Reportable segment profit/loss represents the profit/loss
attributable to each segment without allocation of corporate
administrative expenses, share of loss of an associate, finance
costs, corporate directors’ emoluments, corporate interest
income and income tax credit/expense. This is the measure
reported to the chief operating decision-maker for the

purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than

available-for-sale financial asset and cash and cash equivalents.

All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than

amounts due to related parties.

Geographic information

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the goods delivered or services provided. The
geographical location of the non-current assets is based on

the physical and operating location of the assets.

The Group's operations and workforce are mainly located in

Hong Kong.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(c) Geographic information (continued)

The following table provides an analysis of the Group's

revenue from external customers.

Continuing operations

BHESEER
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000

(Re-presented)
“E-tF ZERE

6. DL (&)

(0 HEEM )
TEREFIAEERENBES ZHA

Z e

Discontinued operations

BALEEXE
2017 2016
HKS'000 HK$'000

(Re-presented)
Z¥-tF  “TAF

Total

o
2017
HK$'000

2016
HK$'000

“E-tf  —T-5F

FER FHEL TER FET FHEL FET
(EE5) (EE3)
Asia oM
- Hong Kong ~&% 48,025 57,099 = 2,120 48,025 59,219
- other region —EfiE 94 858 - - 94 858
Europe BN 776 1,394 - - 776 1,394
North and South America  E 3t =M 39,037 39,049 = - 39,037 39,049
87,932 98,400 = 2,120 87,932 100,520

The following table provides an analysis of the Group's

non-current assets.

Continuing operations

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000

(Re-presented)
“E-tf§ ZZ-RE

TRIJIAEEFRBEEZ DM -

Discontinued operations

BRLESEEY
2017 2016
HKS'000 HK$'000

(Re-presented)
“E-tE ZZ-RE

Total

o
2017
HK$'000

2016
HK$"000

Bt —ET-5%

THR FEL THR FEL TER TER
(B=E7) (BE5)
Asia S
- Hong Kong -5 17,339 33,400 - 45 17,339 33,445
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-ZE—+F+-HA=+—HIEE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. DEEE (#)
(d) Information about major customers d EEEFEHR
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total REEMAERBELCEEBRER
revenue of the Group for both continuing operations and IHE 2 EBBIWABRBIO% L TP Z
discontinued operations are set out below: WAF R T
2017 2016
“E-t% K%
% of total % of total
HK$"000 revenue HK$'000 revenue
HEBAZ fFERAZ
TET BAL FET BAl
Customer A - Medical Devices REA-EBERELER
Business 38,023 43% 38,761 39%
Customer B - Building Contract ~ BFB—EFE&ATRER N/A (Note) N/A (Note)
Works Business TER (KZE) TER(ME) 13,070 13%
Note: The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of Het: MHEMBATLREBBBAERSE
the total revenue of the Group. E B AKI10% °
7. REVENUE 7. WA
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, net of WARBHBRRRARESGFINEZEEE
returns and trade discounts, revenue from construction contracts M2 FHE RERESH 2 WA REFF
and loan interest income. BUA e
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
(Re-presented)
By x4
FERT FHT
(e E510)
Continuing operations BEREXER
Sales of goods HESm 39,961 41,301
Revenue from construction contracts RERESLHZWA 41,848 53,650
Loan interest income BN B A 6,123 3,449
87,932 98,400

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS OR 8. Htzm=REMBAREE
LOSSES
Analysis of the Group's other income and other gains or losses RAFEANDBRAEE 2 Al R
recognised during the year is as follows: MU A EIE ST T
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Re-presented)
—E—+F —E—RF
FTER FHET
(g&E:51)
Continuing operations BREKEER
Exchange gain, net e H Wz - 588 182 -
(Loss)/gain on sale of held-for-trading HEFIEEEHREZ (BER),/
investments (Note 21) Wz (ME5E21) (59,097) 1,954
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 36) HEN B ARz EE (Mi36) - (1,285)
Gain arising from disposal of HE—fREE R EE 2 Wm
an associate (Note 18) (Mt3E18) - 412
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HER N ERNBEE 2 W
financial asset (Note 19) (KMt5E19) 3,360 -
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE BMEL&KEZ W
plant and equipment 495 140
(Loss)/gain on change in fair value of FBIEEBEREZ AR BESE
held-for-trading investments (Note 21) (E518) s (KiaE21) (75,181) 1,528
Interest income B WA 5 211
Rental income e A - 273
Others HAl 2,033 1,947
(128,203) 5,180
FINANCE COSTS 9. MKEH
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
L e
FTERT FHET
Continuing operations HEREETE
Interest on bank and other borrowings ARAFREBEHEEZ
wholly repayable within five years HITREMEEZF B - 120
ERERERA T
2017 F 3§
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-ZE—+F+-HA=+—HIEE

10.LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 10. BRFTEBL AT 18
The Group's loss before income tax is arrived at after charging: REE 2 BRTERAIEBD HBR T FIE -
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Re-presented)
B x4
FERT FHT
(E51)
Continuing operations HEREXEK
Employee costs (including Directors’ EERAK (BREESHE)
emoluments)
— Salaries, wages and other benefits —%Fe IERHMER 11,500 13,438
— Contributions to defined contribution — R EHFERRE B R
retirement plan (Note 28) (FF5E28) 296 417
— Share-based payment expenses (Note 29)  — AR5 2 BASZ (M 7E29) 3,751 -
15,547 13,855
Depreciation of property, plant and M- BERRBEITE
equipment 1,038 2,383
Amortisation of intangible asset (Note 17) & E## (M:E17) 241 2,505
Auditor's remuneration 1% BRI B & 440 400
Operating lease charges in respect of BEMEZKREHEER
properties 1,978 1,833
Share-based payment expenses (other than — BARRD 3k 2 B9 %
employee costs) (Note 29) (TEEEEMA) (MEE29) 7,020 -
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses R ARZ ZFEKAK 30,554 32,342
Cost of services PR 75 B AN 36,918 48,024
11. INCOME TAX CREDIT M. FrEHER
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—®_t% x4
FERT FHT
Continuing operations BREREER
Hong Kong Profits Tax EEBNEH
— Tax for the year —AREFERIE - 28
— Over-provision in prior year —BAFEBERE (7) (38)
Deferred tax credit — current year (Note 26) EEFRIBEE —ANFE (Hi7E26) (40) (416)
Income tax credit FRiETiE % (47) (426)

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE

11. INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued) M. FAEHER 2
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated BAEMNEGB IR E—FE 2@ ERT &
assessable profits for the last year. No Hong Kong Profits Tax was Mz165%tE- AR AKEERBEE-Z
provided for the current year as the Group did not derive any —tF+t A=t —HLEFELEELET
estimated assessable profits for the year ended 31 December 2017. I EHERBURE R - R AN F E I A D
BERBMEH R -
The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss REEMEHRALEGAERKEMEE
before income tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss Wk z2BAEHAIEEEERNT

and other comprehensive income as follows:

2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
(Re-presented)
e —E—AF
FHExT FHT
(&%)

Continuing operations BESEER
Loss before income tax b BT 15 F4 A B 18 (147,906) (18,370)
Tax calculated at the rates applicable to BEBAERER 2

the jurisdiction concerned BABEFE 2RI (24,296) (2,916)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AAMBRZ 2 M2

for tax purpose 1,520 1,281
Tax effect of income not taxable BARBIRA Z BT E

for tax purpose (7) (94)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERBIEBEIHBTE 23,529 2,190
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses AL AERNIEEEZ

previously not recognised mgTE (783) (766)
Over-provision in prior year BEFEBBERE (7) (38)
Tax effect of temporary differences RERERHMEEZE I NGETE

not recognised (3) (83)
Income tax credit FrigfiiE % (47) (426)

ERERERAT
2017 £ 8
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-ZE—+F+-HA=+—HIEE

12.LOSS PER SHARE 12.8RE1
(a) Basic loss per share (a) BREXREIE
The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to RATREEANELREBREREEIDE
owners of the Company is based on the following data: RATEEREH -
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
(Re-presented)
—E—+tF AN
FERT FHET
(e =51)
Loss [Fi-]
Loss for the year for the purposes of R EBREABEME 2
computation of basic loss per share FAEE
— from continuing operations —REBELEER (147,859) (17,944)
— from discontinued operations —REERIEEEB (71) (465)
(147,930) (18,409)
‘000 ‘000
TR Fig
Number of shares RO EE
Weighted average number of ordinary & %77 % 3@ 8% 2 i F 15 81
shares in issue (Note) (B3 at) 1,862,679 1,805,541
Note: The weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue B "BE_ZT—-XF+=H
during the year ended 31 December 2016 had been =ET—BHIEFE FRE#ET
adjusted for the bonus element in the shares issued under L@k T e gRE
the open offer completed during the year as if it had taken FRENZ AFREEETRG
place since the beginning of the year. Details of the open LR TTREITAE B
offer are set out in Note 27. FHEARNFERBAREET

NABEZFBENME27 -

(b) Diluted loss per share (b) EREEEE
Diluted loss per share was the same as basic loss per share AEEZE T —tFR-F—R"F1+=
because there was no potential dilutive ordinary share in issue R=+—BHIFET&EBTRER
for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016. BErE TR MEREEER

HEREREEAR-

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE

12.LOSS PER SHARE (continued)
(b) Diluted loss per share (continued)

The Company's outstanding share options as at 31 December
2017 were not taken into account as they had an antidilutive
effect for the year ended 31 December 2017 which would
result in a reduction in the loss per share. There were no

outstanding share options as at 31 December 2016.

13. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight (2016: nine)

directors during the years were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2017

12. B RE 8B ()

(b) SREBEEE &)

VEARARBAR_B—LF+=
=t BZERTTREZERE RA
RERBE-_T—tF+_A=1+—
BLEFEERREEZE LMBM

BEREBEBRL R-_F—RFt+=
=t BYEHRITEZBERE-

13.EEM&
AEEENHERNG (ZZ—XRF: 1LH)

ExxazBemT:

BE_Z—tH+-A=1+—-RALFE

H

H

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme
fees in kind contributions Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
¥ 2ER
Ezmd BNFR RN B Lo
TERT TET TET TET
Executive Directors HTES
Zhang Hengxin RTE - 240 - 240
Jia Minghui EE - 240 7 247
Yip Wai Lun, Alvin (resigned on REfRm(R=_F—tF
31 January 2017) —A=+—RHEHR) - 210 3 213
Peng Shiyuan (resigned on YHR(R-Z—tF
27 December 2017) TZAZTLHEE) - 119 - 119
Independent Non-executive BUBITES
Directors
Wong Siu Ki Epl9: 120 - - 120
Chan Tsz Keung (appointed on BER(R-T—+tF
11 October 2017) +A+—REEE) 27 - - 27
Chan Ngai Sang Kenny (resigned on BRE(RZZ—+F
1 August 2017) NA—BEE) 70 - - 70
Li Kwok Fat (resigned on FERE(R_T—tF
27 December 2017) TZAZTLHEE) 119 - - 119
Total @it 336 809 10 1,155
EREREBRDA
2017 F3k
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-ZE—+F+-HA=+—HIEE

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

13.EEM<E 2

BE-F—AE+-A=+—ALEE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits in scheme
Directors’ fees kind contributions Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e MR
0k EWFla RGBT @t
FHET FHET FHET FHET
Executive Directors HiTES
Zhang Hengxin (appointed on RkFE (RZT—XF
6 September 2016) NASNBEZRE) 76 - - 76
Peng Shiyuan (appointed on THR(RZZE—RF
30 September 2016) NA=+BEZHF) 30 - - 30
Jia Minghui (appointed on ERE(RZT—REF
30 September 2016) NB=1+BEZT) 60 - - 60
Yip Wai Lun, Alvin EERm - 2,522 33 2,555
Cheng Kin Chor (resigned on HERE(R_T—+F
1 January 2017) —A—B&MT) - 821 18 839
Leung Kelvin Ming Yuen RPR (RZT—RF
(resigned on 30 November 2016) +—A=t+HET) - 239 12 251
Independent Non-executive BYFHTES
Directors
Wong Siu Ki KB 120 - - 120
Chan Ngai Sang Kenny BR %R 4 120 - - 120
Li Kwok Fat FE# 120 - - 120
Total 5t 526 3,582 63 4,171

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind paid to or for the Executive
Directors are generally emoluments paid or payable in respect of
those persons’ other services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries.

During both years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors, as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation

for loss of office.

No Directors waived any emoluments in the year ended 31
December 2017 (2016: nil).

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE

14. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
nil (2016: two) were Directors whose emoluments are included in
the disclosure in Note 13 above. The emoluments of the remaining

five (2016: three) individuals were as follows:

14. EEME

AEBERAESFHNZALS BEES

TE-RE WMRB)EF RFEEZH
EREXHEBEE-BTARAL(ZEF
—ANF =R ZMENT:

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

—%-t% S

FHx FHT

Salaries and other emoluments FekEMEE 5,557 2,117
Retirement scheme contributions IRIREF B R 91 54
5,648 2,171

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

BEZME R TIHBEA :

2017 2016

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

—E—+tF —E—RF

A A#

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000/8 7T 4 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001/% 7C £2,000,0007% 7T - -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001/% 7T £3,000,0007% 7T - -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001/ T £3,500,0007% 7T 1 -

During both years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals, including Directors, as an inducement to join or upon

joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

The remuneration of nil (2016: nil) senior management personnel
has been disclosed in the above table of the five highest paid

individuals.

RBE-ZF-—tFR-_F-R"F+-A
ST HLEMEFREA AL BN EN
FAMEFTRERSHFM AL (BFEE
) EREEMAREERNINAKREE
B 2 SRR A E BRI (B -

TH(—E—AF TR)BAERAEY

FHER LRAERBHMALZIEA
#E-

SRERERAR

2017 F3§
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-ZE—+F+-HA=+—HIEE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. 9% -BERRE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Plant and and office Motor
buildings machinery  equipment vehicles Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HELHE B C-HBER
BF BB R WAEE "E et
FATT FAT FAIL FAT FHL
Cost %
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—XF—HF—H 62,590 10,064 3,186 4,826 80,666
Additions at cost ANE (RKARE) - - 908 - 908
Acquisition of a subsidiary W iE — R B A A
(Note 34) (P7E34) - - 17 124 141
Derecognised upon disposal A EHE QA
of subsidiaries 4% 1E 1SR
(Notes 35(b), 36(a)&(c)) (BIE35(b) ~ 36(a) 2 (c) ) (62,590) - (559) - (63,149)
Disposals L& - (1,480) - (591) (2,071)
Written off i 88 - - (776) - (776)
At 31 December 2016 and RZE—RF
1 January 2017 +ZA=+-BRK
—T—t5—-H—H - 8,584 2,776 4,359 15,719
Additions at cost RE (RRAE) - - 17 478 495
Disposals HE - (853) - (1,998) (2,851)
At 31 December 2017 R-ZZ—tF
+=HA=+-H - 7,731 2,793 2,839 13,363
Accumulated depreciation B ITEREE
and impairment
At 1 January 2016 RZE—R"F—H—H - 10,064 1,487 3,412 14,963
Depreciation e 1,373 - 599 441 2,413
Derecognised upon disposal [ & KB 2 &
of subsidiaries 4% 1 TR
(Notes 35(b), 36(a)&(c)) (PF5E35(b) ~ 36(a) K2(c)) (1,373) - (107) - (1,480)
Disposals HE - (1,480) - (591) (2,071)
Written off 88 - - (758) - (758)
At 31 December 2016 and RZBE—XEF
1 January 2017 +-A=+—HkK
—E—+F—A—H - 8,584 1,221 3,262 13,067
Depreciation e - - 596 445 1,041
Disposals HE - (853) - (1,979) (2,832)
At 31 December 2017 R-B—t&
+=-A=+-A8 - 7,731 1,817 1,728 11,276
Net book value REFE
At 31 December 2017 R-E—tF
+=ZA=+—H - - 976 1,111 2,087
At 31 December 2016 NZZE—RF
+-A=+—8 - - 1,555 1,097 2,652

BFUNEE-—BHEELHL L DREH
BOFHE-

The building is situated on leasehold land in Hong Kong held under
long term lease.
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16. GOODWILL

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the CGU that is expected to benefit from that
business combination. The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31
December 2017 and 2016 relates to a business unit acquired during

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ_-F—

e MBHRRME

tFEF=ZA=+—HIFE

16. B &

EBEHP B IEER
EHEXKEN P a s ReEELE M-
HERZZT—LFRF
S+t BZREEAREBEE-_ZT— A F

CRER D EE

—X~NF+=ZA

Limited (“ACE Engineering”) during the year ended 31 December
2016 as further explained in Note 34.

The recoverable amount of the CGU, has been determined using
cash flow projections to calculate value in use based on estimates
and financial budgets approved by the Directors. These projections
cover a five-year period, and have been discounted using a pre-tax
discount rate of 13.79% (2016: 14.99%). The cash flows beyond
that five-year period have been extrapolated using a growth rate of
3% (2016: 3%).

the year ended 31 December 2016, as further explained below. ToAZt+—BIEFERBEZEREUE
B TN XA — St
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—tF —E—RF
T FHR
Cost A
At 1 January mn—H—H 77,558 68,319
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note (i)) Ue B — R B A7) (MIFEG)) = 10,196
Derecognised upon disposal of a subsidiary B & — R @2 & 1 48 1L 7B R
(Note (ii)) (B =% Gi) ) - (957)
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 77,558 77,558
Accumulated impairment losses Rt RERE
At 1 January and 31 December (Note (iii)) WN—R—BE+ZA=+—H
(B EE (i) ) (67,362) (67,362)
Net book value at 31 December RT-A=+—B2ZEREZEE 10,196 10,196
Notes: B 5
(i) Building Contract Works Business () BFERBEIERED
At 31 December 2017 and 2016, goodwill of approximately RZE—EFR_FE-R"F+A
HK$10,196,000 relates to the Building Contract Works Business —+—H"#10,196,000 T 2 B & T}
unit, a CGU, acquired as part of the acquisition of ACE Engineering HAMEME - SHBIREE-T

—ANF+tZA=T—BHLEFEEARK
BraIRERAR ([REIR])Z
—EHOFTME I EFABIREL (A
—EReELBML)EA-

BeEEBEM kB eBEORES
ERHEZHEFRIBREENAERE S
REBANAEFEREEET 25BN
MERFHME BEA13.79% (ZF
—NEF114.99% ) Z TR AT AE IR R BAIR o
BEAFHBZRERECFEA3I%
(ZB—XRF 3% ) ERXRHEZ.
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16. GOODWILL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(@)

(i)

(iii)

Building Contract Works Business (continued)

All of the assumptions and estimations involved in the preparation
of the cash flow projection including budgeted gross margin,
discount rate and growth rate are determined by the management
of the Group based on their experience and expectation for future

market development.

The Directors believe that any reasonably possible change in the
key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based would
not cause the carrying amount of the unit to exceed the aggregate

recoverable amount of the CGU.

Provision for information technology services

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group disposed
of Zeed Asia Technology Limited with the associated goodwill of
approximately HK$957,000 (Note 36(a)).

Medical Devices Business

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, goodwill of approximately
HK$67,362,000 relates to the Medical Devices Business unit
acquired as part of the acquisition of the Titron Group in 2011, as
defined and detailed in the Company’s circular dated 12 August
2011. Owing to the significant and continuous losses incurred by
this business unit in prior years, all of the goodwill of approximately

HK$67,362,000 had been impaired as at 31 December 2014.
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FE ASEEEAXEMNEBEER
AR B B2 49957,0007 T (M &
36(a)) °
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R_E—ttHER_ZT—XF+_-HA
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17.INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. 8B EE
2017 2016
ZE-tEF —Z-RX
In-process
research and
Contracts  Contractor Contracts Contractor  development
backlog registrations backlog  registrations project
(Note (i) (Note (i) Total (Note (i) (Note (i) (Note (ii)) Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ETHRZ
ATHEH  AREIR AEMAY)  AEEER e
(HEE() E) @ (GE) (M) (PG @i
THERT TERT THERL FiET Tign TR THL
Cost R&
At 1 January ®m—A—H 2,786 5,016 7,802 - - 2,584 2,584
Acquisition through business BREBAMHNE
combination - - - 2,786 5,016 - 7,802
Derecognised upon disposal of HE-HNBAR
a subsidiary [ESIR - - - - - (2,584) (2,584)
At 31 December “+=A=+-H 2,786 5,016 7,802 2,786 5016 - 7,802
Accumulated amortisation ESE 5
At 1 January R-A-H 2,505 = 2,505 - - - -
Amortisation 3 24 - 241 2,505 - - 2,505
At 31 December ®“+=A=+-H 2,746 - 2,746 2,505 - - 2,505
Net book value at 31 December R+=A=+-HZ
REEE 40 5,016 5,056 281 5016 - 5,297
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(@)

Building Contract Works Business

Intangible assets with net book value of approximately
HK$5,056,000 (2016: HK$5,297,000) as at 31 December 2017
represent contractor registrations and contracts backlog arising
from the acquisition of ACE Engineering during the year ended 31
December 2016.

ACE Engineering is a registered contractor in several government/
public organisations and only registered contractors are eligible to
obtain contracts from these government bodies. These contractor
registrations include the registration as an authorised building
contractor under the sub-category of Maintenance Works in the
category of Building Work in Group M1 approved by the Hong
Kong Housing Authority and is eligible to tender for maintenance
and improvement contracts with a value of up to HK$50 million
and for term maintenance and improvement contracts with an
average annual expenditure of up to HK$50 million. In general,
these registrations require certain criteria to be met which
effectively limit the number of new entries in the list of authorised
contractors. Accordingly, contractor registrations held by ACE
Engineering are considered as the main attributes to the revenue
and future growth of ACE Engineering and thus are recognised as
intangible assets with indefinite useful live and were valued at fair
value as approximately HK$5,016,000 (Note 34) upon acquisition
by the Group. The fair value of these contractor registrations was
determined by an independent professional firm of valuers using
the income approach and the Multi Period Excess Earnings Method
was employed. The discount rate used for the valuation of the
contractor registrations was 17.61%. The contractor registrations
are measured initially at cost and subsequently measured at cost

less accumulated impairment losses.
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(@)

Building Contract Works Business (continued)

On the date of acquisition of ACE Engineering, ACE Engineering
had 10 contracts on hand and expected to finish substantially all of
them before the end of 2016. As such, it was considered that these
contracts could generate future economic benefits to the Group
and thus are recognised as intangible assets with finite useful life.
The fair value on acquisition was determined by an independent
professional firm of valuers and the present value technique was
employed to value the fair value of the contracts backlog. The
expected revenue and the associated costs were identified for each
contract. The associated direct costs and proportional operating
expenses were deducted from the revenue generated by each
contract. The profits were then discounted by the appropriate
required rate of return to arrive at present values. The discount
rate used for the valuation of contracts backlog was 15.61%.
The contracts backlog was valued at fair value as approximately
HK$2,786,000 (Note 34) at the date of acquisition. The contracts
backlog is measured initially at cost and subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. The contracts backlog was amortised over the period up to
the completion of each of the contracts. During the year ended
31 December 2017, the amortisation of intangible asset was
approximately HK$241,000 (2016: HK$2,505,000) (Note 10).

The contractor registrations and contracts backlog relate to the
segment of Building Contract Works Business which constitutes
a CGU, and have been assessed for impairment as detailed in
Note 16(i). Based on the impairment assessment performed by
management, the Directors are of the opinion that no impairment

on the intangible assets is considered necessary.

17. B EE (&)
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BFREIREYR (&)

REELZa TR BH RHTRFHE
FEREIERN HERRBHANRZE
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RAEEERERFH ERLEE - WHE
ZARBEIYABLEEFEHMET
WERARBEAEZTERTREDNZ A
REE -BHENZTERRE RBEBK
KETRE MEEEKRERERLS
X B80EKNESE 2 W T Mk &
MERZRSERTRBREE  EH
RE - RTEREN 2 HERERA MR
ER15.61% R E KR W HE B H
BAREBEGELNH2,786,000% T (K
F34) cRFTERA NV T IRE A2
Ba i iRk AR 25T B R RERIES
B2 - AEHAORBESEHNTK
IFERANEE REE=T—tF+=
R=+—HIEFE BEEERENR
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)
(i)~ Provision for information technology services

The intangible asset of in-process research and development project
represented the in-process development of an internet financial

platform by Zeed Asia Technology Limited.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the intangible
asset with net book value of approximately HK$2,584,000 was
derecognised upon the disposal of Zeed Asia Technology Limited,

further details of which are set out in Note 36(a).

18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

The Group acquired interests in an associate during the year ended
31 December 2016. The following table analyses the movements
of the carrying amount of the Group's investment and its share of

results of this associate during the year ended 31 December 2016.

17.

18.

Fiiid

PARYY

FEE =

MEE: (&

(ii)

e g AR B AR 75

ETHZMEEBSRNEBEREER
BIRTEMMBRERAREEREZE
BEERTE-

HE-_T—-—X"F+T-A=+—HLF
E-AEHEAXTMHEBIHARAAM
IR R EF B4 /2,584,000 7T
ZEEAE HE—SHFBENKE
36(a) °

R—EBREATZRE
ARERBE-E-AFTZA=+—A

HFEERBE-ABERAR B TR
AEBBE_FT-AFT-_A=1+—H81Lt
H

FEZEERMEREEZBERBE

B2BEBOMN-
HK$'000
FET
Unlisted share, at cost F*EHRG (REAEG)

At 1 January 2016 RZE—RF—H—H -

Acquisition of Ultimate Elite Investments Limited g & Ultimate Elite Investments Limited
("Ultimate Elite”) (Note (i) (TUltimate Elite ] ) (Fi7EG)) 50,000
Share of post-acquisition loss SRR EE (1,612)
Derecognised upon disposal (Note (ii)) & 4% RERR (B REG)) (48,388)
At 31 December 2016 RZF—-—ARF+-A=1+—~H -
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18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

Notes:

(@)

On 11 April 2016, Praiseful Moment Limited (“Praiseful Moment”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, completed the
acquisition of 40% of the issued share capital of Ultimate Elite
pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 15 January
2016 entered into between Praiseful Moment as the purchaser
and an independent third party, Rosy Lane Investments Limited
(a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI") with
limited liability and is wholly-owned by Hong Kong Education
(Int'l) Investments Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and continued in Bermuda with limited liability, the shares
of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock
Code:
of HK$50,000,000. Upon completion, Ultimate Elite and its

1082)) as the vendor, at an aggregate cash consideration

wholly-owned subsidiary, Vision Smart Limited (“Vision Smart”)
became an associate of the Company. The principal assets held
by Vision Smart are commercial properties located at Offices A-H,
J-N & P on 21/F. (Whole Floor), No.3 On Kwan Street, Shatin,

New Territories, Hong Kong.

On 5 December 2016, Praiseful Moment completed the disposal
of 40% of the issued share capital of Ultimate Elite, pursuant to
the sale and purchase agreement on the same date entered into
between Praiseful Moment as the vendor and an independent third
party, Winrange Investments Limited (a company incorporated
in the BVI with limited liability and is wholly-owned by Finsoft
Financial Investment Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands with limited liability, the issued shares of which
are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM") of the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 8018)) as the purchaser, at an aggregate
cash consideration of HK$48,800,000, with a gain arising from
disposal of the associate of approximately HK$412,000 (Note 8)

recognised in profit or loss.

e MBHRRME

tFEF=ZA=+—HIFE

1. R—REEBE QAT 2RE (&)
B3

(@)

RZZE-—RFOA+—-—B XRFAZ
EMERARIBFEFER AR (TREFE])R
B (EREF)E-—EBBIYE=ZFH
Rosy Lane Investments Limited (—fR
EEELHE ([RBERHES])FEM
BRAYMBERLE BEBHE (BK)
KEREERAR (—HERFAEHSET
MERZLERAEREFBEZBRAA
HERmRBE R ER L (BRMHMRSR:
1082) )2 BB EREAIGTUZ
HER-_Z—~"F—ATAHZESR
& A UR BB Ultimate EliteZ40%E
BT - 483 £ A (8 /350,000,000
JLe A FEA % © Ultimate Elite R E 2 &
Bff B A &) Vision Smart Limited ([Vision
Smart )X AR QA Z B E QT -
Vision SmartiF B X2 EERNUNE
B R R BEHIM2EAH I-NE
PR AE(ZE)NEAWE-

RZE-—RFT_AAB JBEFERE
B (ERER) B —E2BILE=F
BREEEERRAB(—HMREBEX
HEdMEI AR AR WHEH
SRREERAERAR (—HRHASE
BaAMKIzERAR  EB2#TR
9B X FTGEM ([GEM ] ) 71 (B& 15
R5%:8018) )2 EMA EREH)RN
A B &I 2 B & & 72 K & Ultimate
EliteZ40% B BT A R EREA
48,800,000/ T * tHEH & A R E £ H
U 25 #7412,000% 7T (B 558) B R B &
MR
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET

9. AIREEMBEE

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

e e

FERT FBT

Unlisted share, at cost FELETRES BREK - 15,300

On 18 April 2016, Eternity Riches Limited ("Eternity Riches”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, completed the
subscription of 14% of the enlarged issued share capital of
Alpha Generator Limited (“Alpha Generator”) as enlarged by the
allotment and issue of the subscription shares, at the aggregate
subscription price of HK$15,300,000 in cash. Alpha Generator and
its wholly-owned subsidiary is principally engaged in the provision

of interior design, fit out and decoration services.

As at 31 December 2016, the investment is measured at cost less
impairment as the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so
significant that the Directors are of the opinion that the fair value
cannot be measured reliably. The Directors use their judgment in
assessing impairment of the AFS investment. Based on the financial
information provided by management of Alpha Generator, no
potential impairment has been identified by the Directors for the

AFS investment.

In January 2017, the shareholders of Alpha Generator agreed
to undertake an internal reorganisation pursuant to which all
shareholders of Alpha Generator (or their respective nominees,
where appropriate) sold their respective shares in Alpha Generator
to Optumus Group Limited (“Optumus Group”), a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability, and then
such shareholders (or their respective nominees, where appropriate)
became the shareholders of Optumus Group in the same

shareholding proportion.
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AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET 19. I EHENKERE (#)
(continued)
On 29 May 2017, Eternity Riches completed the disposal of 14% RZZE—+tFRA-+tHA EEBEE
of the issued share capital of Optumus Group, pursuant to the sale M(EABRH)B=ZFBH (ZA— BB
and purchase agreement on the same date entered into between FZTREMEE ZRE)NER B HET
Eternity Riches as the vendor and three purchasers, each being an U EBEBEHE TREEEMERZ14%
independent third party and a shareholder of Optumus Group, at an BEITRA 2R E R (E /18,660,000
aggregate cash consideration of HK$18,660,000, with a gain arising I ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁtﬂﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁin&%B 360,000
from disposal of the AFS investment of HK$3,360,000 (Note 8) B (MaAs)EREE-Z—+tF+=A
recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2017. =t+t—HIEFEZEH ':F‘ﬁﬁ.m
INVENTORIES 20. 78
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
—ZE—+tF —E—RF
FHET FET
Finished goods SR fm 111 11
During the year ended 31 December 2017, no write-off of RBE_Z—+tF+_RA=+—RHILFE
inventories (2016: nil) was recognised in profit or loss. TENEBEZERAMEFTE (ZT—RF:
) o
HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 2. FEEERE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—+tF —E—RF
FERT FET
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, REB M ZBREES
at market value BminERE 35,223 166,311
The fair values of these investments are determined with reference ZEREZARNBENDZBEZMAERT

to the quoted market bid prices on the Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, net realised loss on sale
of held-for-trading investments of approximately HK$59,097,000
(2016: net realised gain of approximately HK$1,954,000) (Note 8)
and net unrealised loss on change in fair value of held-for-trading
investments of approximately HK$75,181,000 (2016: net unrealised
gain of approximately HK$1,528,000) (Note 8) was recognised in

profit or loss.

BREANEEE-

HE-_Z—+F+-A=+—RHILFE"
PEREEEREZEERFIEBY
59,097,0007E7E(:7 NEBEBRF
Wz 91,954,000 7T) (FI3E8) RISIEE
BEREZANEBEEH 2 RS RFEELY
75,181,000/ 7 (ZZF —RF: RERF
7 #11,528,000% ) (M 5E8) M 1Bz M &

n«jju"
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22.BESREMERFIE
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
e e
FAR FBT
Trade receivables (Note (i) B 5 REUGRIE (FHFEG)) 12,063 11,779
Retention receivables (Note (ii)) fE IR & & (B REG)) 8,180 8,197
Loan receivables (Note (iii)) JiE U E R (B RE i) ) 110,114 74,557
Amounts due from customers JERBRFAHITIENKIE
for contract work (Note 23) (FfF5E23) 412 355
Other deposits, prepayments Hfbizs B RIER
and other receivables (Note (iv)) H b FE W kT8 (TR (v) ) 18,415 8,870
Total trade and other receivables B 5 R E ARG IB B 149,184 103,758
Notes: D
(i)  The Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 90 days (2016: (i) AERBEGETHESEFZ¥FHEE
30 to 90 days) to its trade customers. The ageing analysis of trade HI/R30E90KR (ZF — /N4 30890
receivables (net of accumulated impairment losses) by invoice date R) -8B 5 EWEIE (M R BB
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—ZE—tF —ZE—RF
FET FET
Current B EH 5,175 2,048
1 to 90 days 1290K 3,374 8,411
91 to 180 days 91£ 180K 1,431 353
Over 181 days 181 KA E 2,083 967
Trade receivables B 5 EWGIE 12,063 11,779

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
160 Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(@)

(continued)

In respect of trade receivables, individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customers’ past history of making
payments when due and current liability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the customers operate. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. Receivables
that were neither past due nor impaired constitute about 72%
(2016: 88%) of total trade receivables, and relate to a wide range
of customers for whom there was no recent history of default. The
following is an aged analysis of trade receivables (net of accumulated
impairment losses) by due date as at the end of the reporting period.

2. BESZREMEWRE &)
MsE: (&)
(i) (#&)
MESEWFEMNS  EXBLEERER

BMEEZMARPYAETEMNGEE
FHE L EFEERREP 2B LD
NREERREXNEL TEEEET
FZBEBHMUARTEPEEMBER
RE-AKBEY KRR ZFERTAEM

AR G o R HR IR R ORE 2 FEUEUIB S
BB BEENI2 (ZF— X

F:88%) BEIFMHY EARDEEZ
REEFBEH - RBEHRR BEHEK
RE (R RHREBB)RISEAZ
BREC AT T ©

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E—tF —E—RF

FHExT FHT

Neither past due nor impaired KA AR E 8,745 10,391
Less than 3 months past due AR =1EA 1,111 399
3 to 6 months past due B HE = = X E A 731 105
Over 6 months past due 7S A A 1,476 884
3,318 1,388

Trade receivables B 5 EWGRIE 12,063 11,779

Included in the Group's trade receivables balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$3,318,000 (2016:
HK$1,388,000) which are past due as at the reporting date for which
the Group has not provided any impairment loss. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers that have a good repayment record with
the Group. Based on past experience, management believes that
no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

AEBEZESREHBERBERRS

AEIE A - BRMEEA3,318,000/ 7T
(== —7X% : 1,388,000/870) ZEIW

FOR - ALK E L ARE B ERDRESER
BB AEBEYERZEERTEER
HH -

BB RBE 2 YGRS EE T
BHRCBRIZEBELTFAR - RIBBHE
K BERERR/LELVERZTHERIE
HRERE  REREEERUESEAE
8 AREESER AN AR -
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Retention receivables are derived from the Building Contract Works
Business and are interest-free and recoverable at the end of the
retention period of individual construction contracts ranging from

3 months to 1 year.

Loan receivables represent outstanding principals and interest
receivables arising from the Money Lending Business of the Group.
All of the loan receivables are entered with contractual maturity
within 12 months. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its loan receivables in order to minimise credit risk by reviewing the

borrowers’ financial positions.

The loan receivables are interest-bearing at rates mutually agreed
between the contracting parties, ranging from 6% to 8% per annum.
All of the loan receivables were unsecured as at 31 December 2017
and 2016.

Loan receivables were neither past due nor impaired at 31 December
2017 and 2016.

The Group's other deposits, prepayments and other receivables

represented the following amounts as at the end of the reporting

22.EFREMEWRE &)

MEE: (&

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

EUIRE S TR B BFHRBIREBL A
REERERESHRESR (NF=EA
E—F) KAl FRE -

ERETIE R R EEBEE 2 KMEE
REREEANE - AERKERZ AT
HIROR12EAR - AEEREBER
fERAZ BN - @R E R ER 2
B S - BREERERBRRERE -

R AR R A K0 BRI 2 FI e it
B FRENF6%E8% - R-F—+
FR-FT-AFT-AZ+—H HA
B 300 A AT o

RZE—+FR T —R"F+A=1—
A EREZRBE RS INARBE -

REBZEMZS - ANRIEREMBEK
RN EBRZ THIFE

period.
2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000
B Wy Y Ay
FHExT FHT
Prepayments TR FRIE 1,067 696
Deposits Ze 7,815 1,428
Other receivables Ho A fEURIE 9,533 6,746
18,415 8,870
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 22. EZ REMEWRIE )
Notes: (continued) BicE: (&)
(iv) (continued) (iv) (%)
As at 31 December 2017, included in the Group's deposits is RZZE—tF+A=+—H *&H
as an amount of approximately HK$6,779,000 (2016: nil) which ZIE& B 1E496,779,0008 T (ZZF—~
represented deposit placed with securities broker for the trading of F|) ZRUE  ZEERREESR
investment securities. STERBAEL2ES -
As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group's other receivables RZE—+FRZF-R"F+A=1—
mainly represented payment of expenses on behalf of subcontractors. H - REEZ HEKFIEFERER DB
BB -
23. AMOUNTS DUE FROM CUSTOMERS FOR 23. B EFENIRFIE
CONTRACT WORK
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E2—tF —ZE-RE
FHET FET
Contracts in progress at the end of BEMREEEN
the reporting period
Contract costs incurred plus recognised EEMEHKANE #R
profit less recognised loss i MR B R R 25,340 26,298
Less: Progress billings R R (24,928) (25,943)
412 355
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HBEBNDWTE:
Amounts due from customers for JEREF &N ITEARIA
contract work (Note 22) (FfF3E22) 412 355
EREREBRDA
2017 & 3§
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24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2. RERREEEY
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$’000
—®-t% Y L
T FHR
Cash at bank and on hand RIT R FHEE S 26,276 30,479
Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balances and cash held ReRBeSEMRREAEERE 2T
by the Group. The bank balances carry interest at market rates EHREBR e RITEBREMISEMNENTF
which range from 0.01% to 0.25% (2016: 0.01% to 0.25%) per 0.01/EZ0.25E (ZZF— X% :0.01[E%0.25
annum. =D X
There were no short-term bank deposits as at 31 December 2017 Rt FRZTE-—RFT_HA=+—
and 2016. B 3 EAE AR AR IT I K o
25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. BEG R EMENRIE
2017 2016
HK$000 HK$’000
—E2—tF ZE-RE
FERT FET
Trade payables B 5’ RIA 14,186 11,553
Retention payables ERHRE® 4,256 4,280
Accruals and other payables JE 5T R I K H th P& A 51 IE 43,233 5,227
Amounts due to related parties FETBEE A T 5B - 9,200
61,675 30,260
As at 31 December 2016, included in amounts due to related RZE—RFE+_BA=+—H ERNHE
parties are an amount due to Titron Group Holdings Limited EATHRIERE —EENTitron Group
(“TGHL"), in the amount of approximately HK$1,700,000 and the Holdings Limited ([TGHLJ)Z 5XTE 4
cash consideration of HK$7,500,000 payable to the Vendors of 1,700,000 T RN —E——F U EERE
Titron Group (as defined and detailed in the Company’s circular E(EERFBRAARIBHA-_T——
dated 12 August 2011) arising from the acquisition of Titron Group FNATZBZBRHEEZ EMNIEES
in 2011. B &7 2B 2R E7,500,000/& 7T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ_-F—

e MBHRRME

tFEF=ZA=+—HIFE

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 30-90 days

(2016: 30-90 days).

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 25. & H fth I ¥ FRE (2
TGHL was the one of the vendors in the acquisition of Titron TGHLER T ——FEEEEE 2 P
Group in 2011. Titron Group is principally engaged in the Medical —NEH-EREEEEIZENETERREE
Devices Business and the Plastic Moulding Business. One of the BRBBEAEK R _T—XRF+=A
shareholders of TGHL, Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin, was a shareholder =+—H TGHLz —ZRFREEREELESR
and the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company as at RARBIRRRFEFRESHAKB-R_Z
31 December 2016. As at 31 December 2017, the amounts due to —tF+ZA=+—8 ENTGHLKEZEE
TGHL and the Vendors of Titron Group are included in “Accruals SEEH ZFHIBERF A [FERT5RIE & H M fE
and other payables” because the Directors considered TGHL and NHE] - REAAEERA NERRLE
the Vendors of Titron Group were not related parties of the Group E-ZE—+tHF—A=+—HEITAQF
following resignation of Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin as the Chairman FREREFLLER TGHLREEEES
and Managing Director of the Company on 31 January 2017. ATBERAEHEBEAT-
The amounts due to related parties as at 31 December 2016 were RZE-—RE+A=+—H ENHE
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. RIEABER REREREREE:
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based RMEHKR EFENFBREZAHE
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period. Yz BRERDMTIAT ©
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E2—tF ZE-REF
FTER FET
Within 3 months =EARA 12,246 10,578
Over 3 months but within 6 months e =E AERNE AR 661 493
Over 6 months 8 48 /< & A 1,279 482
14,186 11,553

BEERZFHUEEHA30E0K (=
—7N4F 1 308E90K) °
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25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

As at 31 December 2017,

and other payables are surety bonds payable in the amount of
HK$28,798,000 (2016: nil) which represented several bonded sums
received by the Group from a contractor payable to employers of
the contractor as security for good performance on the part of the

contractor for certain building contract works of the employers. The

included in the Group’s accruals

25.

EEREMEMNR

RZBE—tF+ZA=+—H8 AEEZ
FEFT AR IE K H i FE S FRIE B IR FE A B AVIR
728,798,000/ 7T (ZZF —/RF 1 ) &%
T8 8 AN S B K 1R P AR i A< A 2R R R
FrETRES EREAERAZES TR
FRFANIRIHSRARBOER R

N IE ()

amounts were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand as —tF+ZA=1+—H ZHELE
at 31 December 2017. B 2B RARERER
26. DEFERRED TAX 26. LW IE
As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group did not have any Rt FRZE-—RFT_HA=+—
deferred tax assets. The details and movement of deferred tax H AEEYEEMELEHIEEE BLEH
liabilities are as follows: HEEZFBREEHWT
Fair value
adjustment
Accelerated tax on intangible
depreciation assets Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BREEZ
3R B IE 3 B AREBEERAR st
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—-RE—H—H 235 119 354
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 34)  U¢ & — I B A 7
(BF7E34) - 1,287 1,287
Credited to profit or loss for the year & AFE Bz (KIFE11)
(Note 11) (72) (413) (485)
Disposal of subsidiaries BB A A
(Notes 36(a)&(c)) (K3E36(a) K (c)) (163) (119) (282)
At 31 December 2016 and RZZE—RF
at 1 January 2017 +ZA=+—HK
—ET—+F—-H—H - 874 874
Credited to profit or loss for the year #t AFE182E (H5E11)
(Note 11) - (40) (40)
At 31 December 2017 R-ZT—+F
+-—B=4+—8 - 834 834
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE

26. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 26. IRIERIE (&)
The details and movement of deferred tax asset during the year REBEEZZT—"F+A=1t—HLFE"
ended 31 December 2016 are as follows: RIEIA B E 2 715 R E N
Tax
losses
HK$'000
REBR
FET
At 1 January 2016 m= NE— .
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 34) W iE — M B A R (M EE34) 69
Charged to profit or loss for the year (Note 11) nBhaFEERm (M) (69)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RFE+-A=1+—H -
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses RBERAR AEB2RHABEER
of approximately HK$395,637,000 (2016: HK$257,794,000). No #) /395,637,000 L (=& — R &F:
deferred tax asset in respect of tax losses have been recognised as 257,794,000 7T) R ERERRBEA]
at 31 December 2017 and 2016, as management considers it is RARREBHEEER KRBT KA 8
unlikely that future taxable profits against which the losses can be BEEBARERB NI HE)AEE &
utilised will be available in the foreseeable future with certainty in RZE—tEFR T —RF+ZA=+—
the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. B EARIEEERREERIEEE-
Tax losses of approximately HK$ nil (2016: HK$63,000) attributable ETHEMBRAAEBEREBENS
to certain subsidiary in the PRC have an expiry period of five years. BIL(ZF—XHF:63,0008 )2 E
The remaining tax losses of approximately HK$395,637,000 (2016: MBI R R F -REBERITBE B THIA
HK$257,731,000) will not expire under current tax legislation. /&5 18 #7395,637,000/8 7T ( = F — /N ¢
257,731,000/ 7C) T & JE W
ERERAERAA
2017 £
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HE=F—tF+=H=+—HILFE
27.SHARE CAPITAL 27. A
Number of shares Amount
HK$'000
RHEE &8
FET
Authorised: EE
Balance as at 31 December 2016 and RZE—RF+ZA=+T—HK
31 December 2017 —+tF+=ZA=+—HZ2
R 40,000,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
Balance as at 1 January 2016 RZE—RFE-—A—RZ#&#H 1,241,786,321 12,418
Open offer on 17 March 2016 (Note) R-ZE—RFE=ZA++H
RRABE (Hit) 620,893,160 6,209
Balance as at 31 December 2016, RZE-—RE+A=+—H
1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017 —E—t+F-A-BK
—E—+tHF+A=+—HZ
ek 1,862,679,481 18,627

Note: Bat -
On 17 March 2016, 620,893,160 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each RZZE—-XRE=A++H" 620,893,160k

were issued at a subscription price of HK$0.13 per offer share on the
basis of one offer share for every two shares in issue held on the record
date ("Open Offer”), which was fully underwritten according to an
underwriting agreement dated 20 January 2016. The subscription price
of HK$0.13 per offer share represented a discount of approximately
65.33% to the closing price of HK$0.375 per share as quoted on the
Stock Exchange on 16 March 2016, being the business day immediately
preceding the date of allotment and issuance of offer shares. A share
premium of approximately HK$74,507,000 was credited to share
premium account. The net proceeds of approximately HK$77,481,000
after deducting shares issue expenses paid in relation to the Open
Offer of approximately HK$3,235,000 were intended to be utilized as
to develop and operate the Group’s Money Lending Business. The net

proceeds had been utilized as intended.
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28. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of

HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant authorities in the PRC,
the subsidiary of the Group in the PRC participates in certain
government retirement benefit schemes (“Schemes”) whereby
the subsidiary is required to contribute to the Schemes to fund
the retirement benefits of their eligible employees. Contributions
made to the Schemes are calculated based on certain percentages
of the applicable payroll costs as stipulated under the relevant
requirements in the PRC. The relevant authorities of the PRC are
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to the retired
employees. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
Schemes is to pay the ongoing required contribution under the

Schemes.

During the year, the Group made retirement benefits scheme
contributions totalling approximately HK$296,000 (2016:
HK$417,000) (Note 10) for continuing operations. At the end of

the reporting period, there are no forfeited contributions.

28.EE R

K& R

AEBEREBEFERBERER G-
RETBREBGIIREREAREZERE
Bl -ERGIME B ([RES
) mELHETHBIEEAETELZ
ERMFRIRGE - RBRTERFE B
FHEEEREBAZERZEHRAZS%MA
FTEIEH R AT A B A30,000/8
To ERR - TRT EIF L 2 AN SR -

REPEMEBREZZR AEBETR
ZMBEARSEE TETRKREMETE ([
EEHE) B B ARARZFTEIN
RAEBEEERER ZRIKEHN - AZ
FRFBIE L 2 HRTIR IR P B AR RE AR E P
FRERAFE A TEDAE-FEZ
HERBELEREENTRREE 2R

KReBEE-AEERZEHE 2R —FE
RXNRBZEFTEFEREEH 2 HK-

REN AEBERBELCEEBHELER
K& FIET Bl 3R A £ 49296,0008 L (= F
— 7N 417,000 7T) (FIFE10) - A $RE
HiR - BRI OR IR LR o
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 30 June 2015, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(“Share Option Scheme”), which was approved by the shareholders
of the Company (“Shareholders”) at the annual general meeting of

the Company held on the same date.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group
to grant share options to the eligible participants as incentives or

rewards for their contributions to the Group.

According to the Share Option Scheme, the board of Directors
(“Board”) may grant share options to the eligible participants as
defined in the Share Option Scheme to subscribe for such number
of shares as the Board may determine. Share options granted
should be accepted within 28 days from the date of the letter of
grant. Upon acceptance of the share options, the grantee shall pay
HK$1.00 to the Company by way of consideration for the grant.
Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme and all applicable
laws, the Board has the power to determine the period within

which payments or calls must or may be made.

The exercise price of share options shall be determined by the
Board, which shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price
of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the date of the grant, which must be a business day;
(ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of the grant; and (iii) the nominal

value of a share.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all share options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
must not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
on the date of approval and adoption of the Share Option Scheme
provided that the Company may at any time seek approval from the
Shareholders to refresh the limit to 10% of the shares in issue as at
the date of approval by the Shareholders in general meeting where
such limit is refreshed. Share options previously granted under any
share option schemes of the Company (including those outstanding,
cancelled, lapsed in accordance with such schemes or exercised
options) will not be counted for the purpose of calculating the limit

as refreshed.

The total number of shares issued and may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to each
eligible participant in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as
at the date of grant unless such grant has been duly approved
by ordinary resolution of the Shareholders in general meeting at
which the relevant eligible participant and his associates abstained
from voting. Share options granted to substantial Shareholders
or Independent Non-executive Directors or any of their respective
associates in any 12-month period in excess of 0.1% of the
Company’s issued share capital on the date of grant and with a
value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the

Shareholders.

9. RS (&)

RAT IR IR BB AR M 5T &I & AN & B fa] H Ath
BRET B TREZCFEBRENA T
BITZROHEE LR AXTEBAN
HERRBERENEE A ARRAEEITR
R Z10% + M AN A B) O] BE B R AR SR BE
1 EREMERRNRRAS £ F 5
ERERBETRMNZ10% - FErELE
ERRT S 5T AR IR AR A AT ] BE AR 4
FrEIE L 2 AR (BIERIB A BT &
RITHE - Bkl DRRKEITE 2 BRE)
AR FetE -

BERLBH (REZA) LEMI121EA H
- BT R AR IR B AR A 5 8 R AR R
Hib R B 2 BRE (REET
5 B8 R M ARTT 6 2 BEARIE) T B 21T
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H I EHAREERDREITRN 21%
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29. IR T &l ()

BREZTENSHESS2ENBERE -
MRS RIE B RE0FRITE - W E|ITRE
BRERN VAR A BRE TR REHR
Z—RIRTE - BBRE B M0FERAR K
ERC R T _RFEAA-THhAE
EREEREER -

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The period during which a share option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no
share option can be exercised more than 10 years after it has been
granted. There is no general requirement that a share option must
be held for any minimum period before it can be exercised. The
Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a period of ten years
and will expire at the close of business on 29 June 2025.

(2T —+F+-_A=-t+—HLFE"
REBREAIMEL ZBREZZHF
BT

Details of share options granted under the Share Option Scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2017 are as follows:

Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price

KB 5B 5 1T HR TiEfE
1 June 2017 - 1 June 2017 - 31 May 2022 HK$0.6547%8 7T
ZE—+FRA—H ZET—tHFRA-HE
“Z-_FRA=+—H
26 July 2017 - 26 July 2017 - 25 July 2022 HK$0.12378 7T

ZE—t+FH+AZ+RHE “E—tFEAZtRHEE

o ) s B o i =

TREBASEEAR LA GRS RE
BE-F—LFT-AST-ALEEM

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share
options held by eligible employees and other eligible participants of

the Group during the year ended 31 December 2017. FARGIEREZ2E)-
Exercised Cancelled/
Outstanding at Granted during lapsed Outstanding at
1 January during the during 31 December
2017 the year year the year 2017
RZB—+tF RZB—+tF
—A—H +=ZBA=+—H
Date of grant BHAY 8 R AT FREH FRTHE FREH AR 8 R AT 6
1 June 2017 “T—+¥1 A—H - 186,200,000 - - 186,200,000
26 July 2017 —T—+tFtRA=+H - 186,200,000 - - 186,200,000
- 372,400,000 - - 372,400,000
Exercisable at the end of ~ AHREHRAITE
the reporting period 372,400,000
Weighted average exercise #5717 # (B
price - HK$0.389%8 T - - HK$0.389%E T
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

No share options were exercised during the year ended 31

December 2017. The share options outstanding at 31 December

2017 had a weighted average exercise price of approximately

HK$0.389 and a weighted average remaining contractual life of

approximately 4.49 years.

The weighted average fair value of the share options granted during

the year ended 31 December 2017 determined at the date of

grant using the Binomial Option Pricing Model was approximately

HK$0.029.

The following assumptions were used to calculate the fair values of

the share options.

9. RS (&)

BE—Z—+tF+-_F=1+—HILFE"
WETEERE- R_TE—+F+=A
=+ — B ERITE BREZ N7
EEXR0.389E T 2 T 2 IETIHEL
FHIA R4 495 -

REBEE_ZT—+F+_A=1+—HILFE
RO vERECNMETARABELS
0.0297%8 7T~ Ty # i B Bl — A B E
BEXEE-

TIRE AR EBEREZ A EE.

Date of grant

B AS
1 June 2017 26 July 2017
—E—tF —E—tF
ANA—H tA=+xH

Fair value at grant date
Grant date share price
Exercise price

Option life

Expected volatility
Dividend yield

Risk-free interest rate

RELEHZAAEE
R B HARE

1TEE

BREFH

8 H R 1R

BB x

AR A =

HK$0.038# 7T  HK$0.020# 7T
HK$0.600/& 7T  HK$0.123#& 7T
HK$0.654/& 7T  HK$0.123E 7T

5 yearstF 5 years®F
95.81% 113.63%
0% 0%
0.94% 1.20%
ERERAERAA
2017 £
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Expected volatility was determined based on historical volatility of
the share prices of the Company over the previous five years. The
variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of the
share options are based on the Directors’ best estimate. Changes in
variables and assumptions may result in changes in the fair value of

the options.

The Group recognised total expense of approximately
HK$10,771,000 (2016: nil) (Note 10) for the year ended
31 December 2017 in relation to the share options granted by the

Company.

No share options were granted during the year ended 31 December
2016 or outstanding as at 31 December 2016 under the Share

Option Scheme.
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30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

e MBHRRME

30. AR A 2 MR &

COMPANY
2017 2016
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—+tF —E—RF
B =E TET FAET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Non-current asset ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries LI NCIPA 1 1
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H b B W SKIE 689 941
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE WP B A R FRIE 126,145 289,169
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEFEY 3,858 10,557
130,692 300,667
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H b fE S FR0E 1,297 2,793
Net current assets RBEEFRE 129,395 297,874
Net assets EEFE 129,396 297,875
EQUITY E=
Share capital N 27 18,627 18,627
Reserves G 31 110,769 279,248
Total equity EHBE 129,396 297,875

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

28 March 2018.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Hengxin
RTE
Director

BF

ERZE—-N\F=

T AT o

RREES

Jia Minghui
ERE
Director

EF

At \BEEEaHt
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-ZE—+F+-HA=+—HIEE

31. RESERVES — COMPANY

3. E-—A L F

Share Capital Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Note a) (Note b)
R s E -&N-1 B ‘et
FET FET FAT FET
(HisEa) (HsEp)
As at 1 January 2016 RZZE—X"E—A—H 331,640 - (98,660) 232,980
Loss and total comprehensive AEEEBREZEKALE
income for the year - - (25,004) (25,004)
Net proceeds from open offer NRBEZMERIEFE
(Note 27) (Hf5E27) 71,272 - - 71,272
As at 31 December 2016 and RZE-—REF
1 January 2017 +ZA=+—HK
—T—+5—A—H 402,912 - (123,664) 279,248
Loss and total comprehensive AEEERREZEKALE
income for the year - - (179,250) (179,250)
Recognition of equity-settled AR REREREE
share-based payment expenses fi & 2 R (K5E29)
(Note 29) - 10,771 - 10,771
As at 31 December 2017 RZB—t&
+=ZBA=+—H 402,912 10,771 (302,914) 110,769
Notes: B 5 -
a) The application of share premium account is governed by a) RO EEERZERZBERFE—NLN—
Section 40 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. FRENEBIOGFEHRE -
b) As at 31 December 2017, the capital reserve comprised the fair by RZZT—tF+-A=+—H EXRF

value of unexercised share options granted to eligible employees

and other eligible participants of the Group under the share

option scheme of the Company recognised in accordance with the

accounting policy adopted for share-based payments as further

detailed in Note 4.16 to the consolidated financial statements.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE

32.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 32.RMB AR 2R
Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows: AARIEEMBARIZFBOT:
Issued and paid-up Percentage of equity interest
Name of subsidiaries Place of incorporation share capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
KEAF AR A L 3t B BRTRAZRE ARARERERAL TEEH
Directly Indirectly
H# Gk
ACE Engineering Limited Hong Kong 5,000,000 ordinary - 100% Engaged in building
shares totalling construction, building
HK$15,255,000 maintenance and

improvement works,
project management,
renovation and

decoration works in

Hong Kong
ZHIREBRAF EE ##£15,255,0008 72 REBREBTRE BF
& /5,000,000/% BRERNEIR HEE

B REREHTE

AMCO United Management Hong Kong 1 ordinary share totalling - 100%  Provision of management
Services Limited HK$1 services to the Group
EREBRBEERAR 0 ARIETZEBRIK mAEERHAERRS
Best Reward Global Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - Investment holding
each
EERRERAF EBEAES BEEE1ETZEBR RERR
13
Constant Gross Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - Investment holding
each
FHEBBRAF EERAES BREEIETZEBK REZR
R
Consun Wealth Management Hong Kong 100,000 ordinary shares - 100%  Provision of management
Limited totally HK$100,000 services to the Group
FREMEERAERAR 0 £1£100,0008 T2 L@k MRS ERMAERRS
100,000/

A
17 £ 8 177
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REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-ZE—+F+-HA=+—HIEE

32. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiaries

Place of incorporation

Issued and paid-up
share capital

32.RAMBARIZ#ER (&)

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to the Company

Principal activities

WEAREE AL 3L B BRTRAZRE ARREERER DL TEXH
Directly Indirectly
H# Gk
Dynamic Time Global Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - Investment holding
each
ARRRBRAF ABRAES BREEIET EBK REZR
1
Energy Best Investments Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - Investment holding
each
Energy Best Investments Limited RERIHS SREEIRTZEBR REER
1
Eternity Riches Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - Investment holding
each
REERRA ABRAES BEEE1ETZEBR RERK
{13
Grace Champ Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong 1 ordinary share totalling - 100% Engaged in the business of
HK$1 securities investment
REREBRAF BE ARIBT L RRIR NEBSFREEH
High Aim Corporation Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share totalling - 100%  Provision of management
HK$1 services to the Group
NG S ARIBTZEBRIK AR EREERRS
JS Finance Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share totalling - 100%  Provision of money lending
HK$1
REVBERRAF BB ARIBETZEBRIR REHE RS
Max Abundant Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - Investment holding
each
HRBERDE HEBEAES BREEI1ETZEBR REZR

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED

Annual Report 2017
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Place of incorporation

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE

32. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Issued and paid-up
share capital

attributable to the Company

32.RAMBARIZ#ERE (&)

Percentage of equity interest

Principal activities

WEAREE 1R B 3 o B BRTRAZRE ARREERER DL TEXH
Directly Indirectly
EE Gk
Praiseful Moment Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - Investment holding
each
IEEBRA A RERAES BREBIZTLBR BREER
1R
Titron Industries Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares - 100%  Sale of plastic moulding
totalling HK$1,000 products
EREIMERRANF BE A31,0008T2E HEVBERAER
1,0000%
Titron International Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares - 100%  Sale of medical devices
totalling HK$1,000 products
BERRERDA 0 31,0008 7Tz Lk HEBBERBEM
1,000/%
Titron Manufacturing Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares - 100%  Sale of plastic moulding
totalling HK$1,000 products
ERERCEFRAR Bk A #£1,0007 T2 L iEK HEZBKRAER
1,000/
Titron Precision Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares - 100%  Investment holding
totalling HK$1,000
EEEEERAF Bk 11,0008 2% REZK
1,000f%
Unicorn Elite International Limited ~ BVI 1 ordinary share of 100% - Investment holding
US$1 each
GEERERAF RERTES BREEIETZEBK REZR
]
SRERERAR
2017 F3§

179
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-ZE—+F+-HA=+—HIEE

32.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The above table lists out the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31
December 2017 which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally
affected the Group’s results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end

of the year.

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere
in the consolidated financial statements, the Group had the
following transactions with related parties at agreed terms

during the year ended 31 December 2016.

2. RMBLARI 2R (&)

33.

ERINER _F—EF+_A=+—RHE
ERREETELAREAFERENENK
AREEEFEERNSND ZARAKEBEAR
Al-EERR BIILHMKITE AR FE
HERRREBRTITE -

FR - BEMBRARDBTEABSEE S

BEALRS

(a) iz=—=—X"F+-A=+—BIF
B BRINER G B S R AR B840 P ¥
itz R 5 R KE RSN AN S B HLRE A A
TRBEGRKETUATRS -

HK$'000
THET

Service fee paid to a related company (Note)

Note:

For the year ended 31 December 2016, Atlas Medical Limited
(“Atlas"”), a related company voluntarily waived its entitlement to a
service fee of HK$2,400,000. Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin, a Shareholder
and the Managing Director and Chairman of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2016 is one of the beneficial owners
of Atlas.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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e MBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) (continued)

Note: (continued)

The service fee is associated with the acquisition of the Titron
Group in 2011 as mentioned in Note 25 for business development
services provided by Atlas. A Performance Incentive Agreement
was entered into by Atlas and the Company on 4 March 2011 (as
amended and restated on 27 July 2011). In accordance with the
Performance Incentive Agreement, Atlas will be paid a monthly fee
of HK$200,000 and entitled to receive a performance bonus equal
to 30% of excess of the pro forma combined profit before tax of
Titron Group over HK$10 million for each of the six financial years
ended 31 December up to 31 December 2016. No performance
bonus and performance share was earned or payable for the year
ended 31 December 2016. Details of the Performance Incentive
Agreement were set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 25 January 2011, 21 June 2011 and 27 July 2011 and the
circular of the Company dated 12 August 2011.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiary was a party, and in which a
Director had a material interest, subsisted as at 31 December 2017
and 2016 or at any time during the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2016.

BBEALXRZ (&)
(@) (#)

Hst: (&)

AR 75 B B M sE25 Pt BEAtlasiR it 2
¥BERRBER_ZT——FRHEERE
SEE@R-R_ZE——F=A@A-
AtlasBE AR RIRT L KRB EE s (R
T——F AT tEBEETRER) -
RERBFEE R AtlasiB B A
200,000/ 7T X R/ # e (HFER %ﬁé
EEBEE-_T—R~"F+A=+—H
IEREMBEESFE2HBZEE BT
A % Fl 8 H10,000,0008 T 2 & R 2
30%) HEZZT—ARF+_A=+—
H L& I 8 B 8 < 1 fa] R IR 58
ehEBERD KRB ZZFE
BEHRARRABEBHAR-_ZT——F—H
Z+EHEBA ZE——FRNAZT—HK
ZE-—FtLtAZF+HEHZAERR
ARAAE-_ZT——FNA+=BHZ
KA e

B SRRt A& AN - AR D B Sk E T ] B
BRAABEIT YN _Z—+FR_ZT
—AFE+ZRAR=+—RA%BEE=ZZ
—+tEFERZFE-RF+ZA=+—H
IEFENEAREHETFE Hi%ﬂﬁ$
BEEAERZBERE
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mEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-ZE—+F+-HA=+—HIEE

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of Directors and other members of key

3BBEEAELTRZ (#)

(b) TEEBEAE 2R

EERHMTIEERERENRFAN

management during the year was as follows: ZE B
2017 2016
HKS$'000 HK$'000
—E—+tF —ZE-RE
FERT FHET

Salaries and short-term employee FekEEEERT

benefits 6,980 6,225
Post-employment benefits BBERF 116 117
7,096 6,342

34. BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 5 January 2016, Best Reward Global Limited (“Best Reward"”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, completed the
acquisition of ACE Engineering pursuant to the sale and purchase
agreement dated 14 September 2015 entered into between Best
Reward as the purchaser and two individuals as vendors, each being
an independent third party, to acquire 100% of the issued share
capital of ACE Engineering at an aggregate cash consideration of

HK$20,500,000. ACE Engineering is principally engaged in the

Building Contract Works Business in Hong Kong.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement, a deposit of

HK$6,150,000 was paid to the vendors on 14 September 2015.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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34. ¥4 6f

R-ZT—AE—AAR ARAIZENE
NEMEERRARAR ([EE]) ERIFHE
E(WEREREMEBA(EREH &
R—EBBYE=R)FTUNBHA-_Z—1
FARTHBMEEHE (EATHEBIU
20,500,000 T 2 IR @ R B IEL#E T
RZE2HBETRAN) R RELTHaTIRE-
R TRIENBEBNFEFANIRE

75 o

BEBEEHHE ER -_E2—REHLATMI
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e MBHRRME

34. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed of the

34. ¥ B (#)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE

RER S B A S WE AT RA & E

acquiree as at the date of acquisition were as follows: REAEaRFHMNT
HK$'000
FET
Net assets acquired: B & ERE:
Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) Y BRE KRR (EE15) 141
Intangible assets — Contractor registrations (Note 17) | EE—AEREM (H:E17) 5,016
Intangible assets — Contracts backlog (Note 17) BVEE-RZEHRALH (K:E17) 2,786
Deferred tax asset (Note 26) REBIEEE (M5E26) 69
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E A FE R FRIE 17,544
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY 3,974
Trade and other payables B 5 I H th JE S 58 (11,738)
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE (6,201)
Deferred tax liability recognised upon fair value AR EBEEABRBERNELCIE
adjustment (Note 26) B & (M5E26) (1,287)
10,304
Cash consideration ReRE 20,500
Less: Fair value of net assets acquired BB EEFECAREE (10,304)
Goodwill (Note 16) = (Fff5E16) 10,196
HK$'000
FET
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEBFEE2REREFE:
Cash consideration paid ENRERE 20,500
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired WRMREBECRe RREEEY (3,974)
Less: Deposit paid BB NES (6,150)
10,376
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-ZE—+F+-HA=+—HIEE

34. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

35.

The goodwill of approximately HK$10,196,000 was attributable to
the Building Contract Works Business unit acquired and the benefit
of synergies expected to arise after the Group’s acquisition. The
Directors believe that additional business opportunities may arise
to the Group as a result of the acquisition of ACE Engineering, and

this will diversify the source of income of the Group.

Since the acquisition date, ACE Engineering has contributed
revenue of approximately HK$53,650,000 and a profit after income
tax of approximately HK$1,110,000 to the Group (excluding
the amortisation of intangible asset) for the year ended 31
December 2016. If the acquisition had occurred on 1 January
2016, consolidated revenue and consolidated loss after income tax
of the Group from continuing operations for the year ended 31
December 2016 would have been approximately HK$98,400,000
and HK$17,944,000 respectively.

Acquisition-related costs of approximately HK$1,548,000 have been
charged to administrative expenses in the profit or loss for the years

ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

34. B E 6t ()

&2 £910,196,00078 T B @B R TR 2 18
FRBIREREMN BHRAEEKE
BEELXHRANE -EFRA WHERE
IR% AEBETELEIIER AAE
1 357 2 W A BRI o

BREBEHE RETIREANEEZ

—A"NE+-A=t+-—BLFEAREER
81 #753,650,0007% 7T 2 W A K B T 15 Bt 1%
i A %91,110,0008 T (T REEFEAE
B - MKBFEER =T F—A
—BE¥4L AEEHEE-_T-<F1+=A
E+t-RLEFERERELEEB RS
WARBEEREZEEEBES R ALY
98,400,000 7T }.17,944,0007% JT

W B% #H B8 AKX AN 491,548,000/ ST 2 R E &
TE-REN_E-RFE+_A=+—H
IHFEZERZE N Z2TRBAI AR -

5. 0RIEREXET

2017 2016

HK$'000 HK$'000

(Re-presented)

e —E—A%

FET FAET

(&%)

PR Business NEES S (71) (86)
HR Business ANERFER - (379)
(71) (465)

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE

35. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 3I5.ERIEREER &)

(a) Cessation of PR Business

The Group ceased the operation of the PR Business with effect

from 1 April 2017.

The loss for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016

from the discontinued operation is analysed as follows:

() BLDBEER

AEECFLILECAEK B -F
—tFHUA-RREXK-

HE_Z—+t&h_FT—X F+=-A
S+ BUIEE BRIEEEESKZ
BRSO

2017 2016

HK$°000 HK$'000

—e-t% L

T TR

Revenue WA - 479
Cost of services Pk 75 B AN - (262)

Gross profit EH = 217
Other income b i g - 4
Administrative expenses T 2 (71) (307)
Loss before income tax K P15 i Al S 18 (71) (86)
Income tax credit R % = -

Loss for the year from discontinued FRNERIEEEEF 2 ERE

operation (71) (86)
EREZERERAT
2017 £ 8
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-ZE—+F+-HA=+—HIEE

35. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 35.ERLEREXEK @)
(a) Cessation of PR Business (continued) (a) FILEABEEK (&)

The cash flows for the years ended 31 December 2017 and HEZZT—tFR=ZFT—~"F+=A

2016 from the discontinued operation is analysed as below: =St —BLEFE REEKRIELEEE

BZzBRERENTWT

2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—+tF —E—RF
FERT FHET
Net cash outflows from operating KEES 2R ML FRE
activities (443) (535)
Total cash outflows RembesE (443) (535)
Loss for the year from the discontinued operation included the REBRIEKEEB 2 FEBER
following: FAT&IE:
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—®—t% x4
FERT FHT
Depreciation of property, M- BERRHEITE
plant and equipment 3 14

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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35.DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continu
(b) Disposal of HR Business

On 28 June 2016, Unicorn Elite International Limited, a

wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an

agreement with an independent third party

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE

ed)

35. Elln\\ tﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬂ”

(b) HEANERER

to dispose of

P

RERAZTNE KRFE
2EMBARGEBEBEARA
BB E=TIRI L E

Al —
ZAAHEERAE

its entire equity interests in AMCO HR Solutions Limited, a RAZEMBRARERESREAR
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company principally engaged RE(FBZRBANERER) 22E0
in the HR Business, for an aggregate cash consideration of B& 4 - 48 ({8 A100,0007 - H&E =
HK$100,000. The disposal was completed on the same date. HERF B MK -
The loss for the period from 1 January 2016 to 28 June 2016 BE_Z—R"F-—A-HRBE_ZT—X
from the discontinued operation is analysed as follows: FARAZTN\HHE BRIEEEE
BzEBIWNET:
HK$'000
FHET
Revenue PN 1,641
Cost of services AR 75 B A< (1,797)
Gross loss ESE- (156)
Other income H Wz 10
Distribution costs SRR (12)
Administrative expenses THFAX (443)
Loss before income tax MR P15 B Al E 1R (601)
Income tax credit FristiE e -
Loss after income tax MRETSRZEE (601)
Gain on disposal of discontinued operation HEBERIEEEEB 2 W 222
Loss for the period from discontinued operation HABRIEREEH BB (379)
ERERERA T
2017 £ 187
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBHRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-ZE—+F+-HA=+—HIEE
35. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)
(b) Disposal of HR Business (continued)

The cash flows for the period from 1 January 2016 to 28 June

2016 from the discontinued operation is analysed as below:

5. ERIERERE (2

(b) HEANEREWR (&)
BE-Z—XRFE—A—HBHEEZE-_Z—X
ERAZHN\BHYR BRIEEE
BrEeRESTMT

HK$'000

FHT

Net cash outflows from operating activities KEEH 2R R FE (302)
Net cash outflows from investing activities WEEY 2R FE (2)
Total cash outflows WM (304)

Loss for the period from the discontinued operation included

the following:

RECDKIIKREEB Z2HABER
BATER:

HK$'000
TET

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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FREMBHRRHTE
For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE
35. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 5. ERULEREXK &)
(b) Disposal of HR Business (continued) (b) HEANEBRER (&)
The net liabilities of the discontinued operation at the date of REEBH BRIEKEEB AR
disposal were as follows: HEEIAT
HK$'000
FHT
Net liabilities disposed of: FIHEzEEFH:
Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) ME BB R (MEE15) 93
Trade and other receivables 85 Rk E A EWFRIA 600
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEY 187
Trade and other payables B 5 NhEMEMNRE (282)
Amount due to a shareholder B — AR R FIE (720)
(122)
Cash consideration BeRE 100
Net liabilities disposed of FrbEzaEFE 122
Gain on disposal of discontinued operation HEDRIECEEE 2 W 222

An analysis of the net cash outflow arising from disposal of

the discontinued operation is as follows:

HECKRIEREXBELZRESR
HFBEOTAT :

HK$'000

FHET

Cash consideration received BUHESNE 100

Cash and bank balances disposed of & 2R MIBTT4E % (187)
Net cash outflow arising from disposal of HEERIEREEBEEZ

discontinued operation Remdt F8E (87)

For the purpose of presenting discontinued operations, the
comparative consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and the related notes have been
re-presented as if the operation discontinued during the year had

been discontinued at the beginning of the comparative period.

ARENERIEELEER = LR AEAR
SHEEFEMEEBRERRBBEMELEE
B BMFANDRIEEEZ EBRER
HIE AR LLRE -

189
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-ZE—+F+-HA=+—HIEE

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 36. HEME 2 F
(a) Disposal of Zeed Asia Technology Limited (a) HERIXTNBRIEER AT
(“Zeed Asia”) ([BIXR=ZEM1)
On 31 March 2016, Constant Gross Limited, a wholly-owned RZE—ARF=ZA=+—H A7
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement with 2EMBARREERAFIHE—5E
an independent third party to dispose of the entire equity SNE=FEI @A EEIREM (R
interest in Zeed Asia, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the RRAIZEZEMBAR EBRERHE
Company principally engaged in the provision of information BRI RS ) 2 250 RIRE R
technology services, for an aggregate cash consideration of {8 46,200,000/ 7T o (B EIHE R A
HK$6,200,000. The disposal was completed on the same date. H5EhK ©
HK$'000
FHT
Net assets disposed of: FIHEzERFE:
Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) Y BB R (MEE15) 359
Goodwill (Note 16) P& (iE16) 957
Intangible asset (Note 17) mREE (MFE17) 2,584
Other deposits and prepayments Hihke RBAFIE 211
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBREEEY 5
Accruals and other payables FERT 3R IE K H At B 5 508 (88)
Deferred tax liability (Note 26) EEREAE (KMIFE26) (119)
Shareholder’s loan REE K (7,861)
(3,952)
Shareholder's loan transferred EEERFEER 7,861
3,909
Cash consideration HeaRE 6,200
Less: Net assets disposed of WFHECEESE (3,909)
Gain on disposal of subsidiary (Note 8) HEWNB ARz W (KHFEs) 2,291

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZE _-E—+t&+-F=1+—HAILFE

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36. HEME QR (#)
(a) Disposal of Zeed Asia Technology Limited (a) HERIXTEMNBREER QT
(“Zeed Asia”) (continued) ([ XM (&)
An analysis of the net cash inflow arising from the disposal of HEARTEMNEEZESRAFE
Zeed Asia is as follows: M
HK$'000
FHT
Cash consideration received 2R eNKE 6,200
Cash and bank balances disposed of &R e RIBTHER (5)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiary, HEWB AR ZMERIEA"
net of cash disposed of EMBRAEERS 6,195
EREREBRDA
2017 &3
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HE_-ZE—+F+-HA=+—HIEE

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36. HEMB QR ()

(b) Disposal of Success Beauty Limited (“Success (b) HEREZARATE ([HKXE])
Beauty”)
On 7 October 2016, the Company entered into an agreement RZE—RF+AEH ARAH—
with an independent third party, DX.com Holdings Limited %98 3L 8 = FFDX.comiZ ik B BR A &
(now known as Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited) (a (BBATHERBIERAER )
company incorporated in the Cayman lIslands and continued (—HRASHESTMRIERRBER
in Bermuda with limited liability, the shares of which are EFECBRAR HRG B
listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 8086)) GEM_ET (B X 55 : 8086) ) 7] 32 15
to dispose of the entire equity interest in Success Beauty (a HFULENE(ARRIZEENB A
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company with the sole asset A HE—EEREEMBERAA
being the entire issued share capital of Ever Great Finance (MEED) (KRadlzx2EWB AT
Limited (“Ever Great”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the FEREREER) 22 E B2 ETRA)
Company principally engaged in the Money Lending Business) (KEREESRBRIKNEER]) 22
(Success Beauty and Ever Great collectively referred to as the BRR% 4 - 4237 © (B 4Y/359,515,000/8
"“Success Beauty Group”), for an aggregate cash consideration JLo HEBEHENRE A EK

of approximately HK$59,515,000. The disposal was completed

on the same date.

HK$'000
FET

Net assets disposed of: FHEZEEFE:
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk E A W GRIA 48,469
Cash and cash equivalents RehkBHeEEY 10,046
58,515
Cash consideration HeNRE 59,515
Less: Net assets disposed of WFMEECEESE (58,515)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 8) HEME ATz W (M) 1,000
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(b) Disposal of Success Beauty Limited (“Success (b)

Beauty"”) (continued)

An analysis of the net cash inflow arising from the disposal of

the Success Beauty Group is as follows:

36. HEKM B AR (#)

HERZERAT ([HKXE])
(%)

HEREEEEE 2RSS RAFES
Mran T :

HK$'000
FHT
Cash consideration received 2R eNKE 59,515
Cash and bank balances disposed of &R e RIBTHER (10,046)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries, HEWB AR ZMERIEA"
net of cash disposed of EHMBRAEERS 49,469
ERERERA T
2017 £ 8
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36. HEKMEB AT (4#)
(c) HERNTEBEHERAT ([F

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(c) Disposal of Bonus First Group Limited (“Bonus

First™”)

On 19 October 2016, the Company entered into an agreement
with an independent third party, Key Winner Investments
Limited (a company incorporated in the BVI with limited
liability and is wholly-owned by Jun Yang Financial Holdings
Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda wan limited
liability, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 397)) to dispose of the entire
equity interest in Bonus First, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company with principal business of investment holding and
principal asset of a commercial property located at Office 503
(also known as Unit 503), 5th Floor, Wing On House, No. 71
Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong, for an aggregate cash
consideration of HK$56,500,000. The disposal was completed
on 25 October 2016.

wtl)
RZEBE-—XRFTATAB XA
B H — R ¥ = FKey Winner
Investments Limited ( — & 7 2 & 5
RESTMKIZ2BRAG HES
SRERAERAR (—ARBREHS
AR 2 BRA R ERD R
FTEMR L (RGRESE:397) )2 &%
BRI UBHRABREN T (KRR 2
2EMBAR HREXBXBHARER
EEFEZEER—HUNEERE
BH715% Kk R & B R ESE 2 5035 i
ANE(FBARSOBE)ZERBME)Z
2 BB - 48 3 & X {8 /356,500,000
B HESHER =T —~F+A
Zt+HRAREK-

HK$'000
FET

Net assets disposed of: FHEZEEFE:
Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) W% BE M ERE (HFE15) 61,217
Other deposits and prepayments Hihike KRB FIE 22
Deferred tax liability (Note 26) BB B & (Ki5E26) (163)
61,076
Cash consideration ReRE 56,500
Less: Net assets disposed of WoFHECEESFE (61,076)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 8) HEMB AR ZEE (KEs) (4,576)

An analysis of the net cash inflow arising from the disposal of

Bonus First is as follows:

MR E A 2 B R A FES I
AR

HK$'000
TAT

Cash consideration received BYRERE 56,500
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37. COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

Capital commitments

The Group did not have any outstanding capital commitments

as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.

Operating leases — lessee

The Group had the following total future minimum lease

37. &I

(a)

(b)

BEREE

RZE—tFR_FT—RF+_A

—t+—B AEETETMERESR
B
KEHEE-—ABA

R E R AR BERE T A BEHL

payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of EHEREEEFEA N RRKIER
leasehold buildings at the end of the reporting period: B
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$ 000
—ZE—tF ZE—RF
FHR FbT
Not later than one year —F R 2,802 2,813
Later than one year but not later —FRERFA
than five years 1,330 191
4,132 3,004

The leases run for an initial period of one to two years (2016:
one to three years), with options to renew the leases and
renegotiate the terms at the expiry dates as mutually agreed
between the Group and respective lessors. None of the leases

include contingent rentals.

38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December

2017 and 2016.

HEMFRP—ZEMF (ZT—RF:
—EZF) BRAEFEEZSHEAR

MiE JE %FF%H%%%&E
HEE IR 2 &R B A
o
38. AAREE
R_E—++ER—E—NEFE+_A=+—
A AEEMESEAKAREE-
ERERERAD
2017 £
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39. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 0. REAE D 2 BEER
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY BEEBE
The following table shows the carrying amount and fair value of TR RMT4.8FT R E 2 MG EE RIT
financial assets and liabilities as defined in Note 4.8: BECEEBERANERE:
2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$'000
R Y B
FHET FAET
Financial assets: HMEEE:
Available-for-sale financial asset AHEEMBEE - 15,300
Financial assets at fair value through FRBREALEBEBEIEZ
profit or loss MBEE
— Held-for-trading investments —RBEBEERE 35,223 166,311
Loans and receivables B EWFRIA
— Trade and other receivables -8B 5 REMERFIE 147,705 102,707
— Cash and cash equivalents - ReRBEEEY 26,276 30,479
209,204 314,797
Financial liabilities: MEaE:
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost IREEK A EZHBEE
- Trade and other payables —B 5 KEMENFIE 61,675 30,260
Fair value measurement AREETE
Financial instruments not measured at fair value WHEZEAAEBETEZHELAR
Except for available-for-sale financial asset and held-for-trading RAIKHEN B EE RFEEERE N
investments, all of the Group’s financial instruments are not BRARNEEBMEVEIAESBEEHMEE.
measured at their fair values, as they are short term in nature and WEHHIIFRANBEAE B ARSNE
it is considered that their costs or amortised costs approximate to AR ABEA N EBEBS -

their fair values.

For the available-for-sale investment in unlisted equity security, the BIELIRAFSFFHOAHEREERENS
financial instrument is measured at cost less impairment as the HRARBEZERBEMEHEEE MR
range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that it is BARBETEISTE WHEIAR
considered that the fair value cannot be measured reliably. PR AROR BT 2 o
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39. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

(continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

Financial instruments that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments
that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
categorized into the three-level fair value hierarchy. The level into
which a fair value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the inputs used in

the valuation technique as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that can access at the

measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The financial asset measured at fair value in the consolidated

statement of financial position as at 31 December are grouped into

the fair value hierarchy as follows:

e MBHRRME

30. BB 2B EER M

KEaEME @)

TRERNIEREAAABEAEZS
BMIANN BEE-EAAEBEER 2
AREEMEREZERE2EMERMT
FERAZBABZIBREREEUET N
T

E-BHABBRNGERHATRSE
ZHERBEERABERNARTS 2 KA
ERE:

s F_EBABBREEXRBEEX
RZwA B2 ABE(F - ER
BREZHBERIN) R

s F-EBABBARAEELRBEZAA
BB AR

RTZA=+—AZHEAEMBRRARANIZ
RABEABZMBEEZAABEER
DEBERWT :

Level 1
-8
2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—tF T -RF
FHR FHB
Held-for-trading investments RIEBEEREA 35,223 166,311
EREREBRDA
2017 F 3§
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39. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

Financial instruments that are measured at fair value

on a recurring basis (continued)

Held-for-trading investments were investments in equity securities

listed in Hong Kong, for which the fair values were determined with

reference to quoted bid prices in an active market.

All of the Group's fair value measurements were revalued at the

end of the reporting period.

There were no transfers of financial instruments between levels in

the hierarchy for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises
in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group is also

exposed to equity price risk arising from movements in its own

equity share price and its investment in equity securities.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments in the

normal course of the Group's business are credit risk, liquidity risk,

interest rate risk, currency risk and price risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’'s
headquarter, in close co-operation with the Board. The overall
objectives in managing financial risks focus on securing the Group’s

short to medium term cash flows by minimising its exposure to

financial markets.

These risks are limited by the Group's financial management policies

and practices described below.
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3. BERE s o B EER M
BREME @)

DAREEFE &)

BEEMBEELAABETENE
THA#E)

REEERETTRNEBERB LM ZRAESZ
BRE - HAnEBEDZRNERT S 2]

EEE -

AEEMEAABEMAEORREHRE

o

1l

HE-_Z—ttFER-_ZE—X~"F+=A
—t+t—BLtFE SEfsRITAMYE

Bk

40. Bt %5 L B2 B 12
AEEARZEE RDES FERE
MERDREREBBRZPEL-FE
ENARARE S 2 REZHRARBE

BHRZBEMEE ZRERR -

RAKEZ EREFERETRPHETAM
EXZIBERBRAEERR RBEERA

B FERER BRERREBRRL-

AEHBBEEFTSERYAE BHRAYH
REREETHF - EEUWHKEARZEREBRE
STREBBEREERSRT S Z AR

EE REAEEZzHEHREERE-

ZERBIX TXMEASE M EER

B R B ORI
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea) 40. Bt A b B B (#)

(i) Credit risk (i) EERK
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade and rEBEZEERBEZERAR
other receivables. Management has a credit policy in place SREMERFTIE - BEEEREME
and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ZIEERE UHBERMAXZE
ongoing basis. EmkE-
In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit MEFIREMEBYRIENS  IEE

evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the

customer’s past history of making payments when due and

KB EEREZ R, YEETE
RIfE B - RS ERPREF B
R BB R ARA R

current ability to pay, and take into account information RZeeh TeEREPEFEZRP
specific to the customers as well as pertaining to the economic ERRSERPEEME ZEBEIR
environment in which the customers operate. Trade receivables BHRWIEE HR B HER30

are due within 30 days from the date of billing. Debtors with
balances that are more than 6 months past due are requested

to settle all outstanding balances before any further credit

NEIH - EHRBHAREANEZE
BAREREMAE - FEENAR
EMARKEREGS  —RTME A

is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral SEfAgMELPRRERG HHE
from customers, except for new customers, where payment in P—REERMNKIE-

advance is normally required.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the AEEMEEBZEERRBRFESS
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of BEREMNSUEFRTE BEPIE&E

the industry and country in which customers operate also has
an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the end
of the reporting period, the Group has a certain concentration

of credit risk as 23% (2016: 24%) and 70% (2016: 67%) of

TEREEMEBRZ R ERIF
HEERBREMPE HEZEE)-
RBERR AEEEETEREER
Rk BEAEESEAEFPRAKXRE

the total trade receivables was due from the Group's largest PZ2REDNGEE S EWRIBERE
customer and the five largest customers respectively. 223% (ZZF—RNF:24%) ®R70%
—E—RF:67%)°

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables

are set out in Note 22.

BEAEEATREE S RHEMERK
HNEAZEERBRZE—FPTERW
BEERHAM 22 -
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(ii) Liquidity risk
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and readily
realisable marketable securities and adequate committed lines

of funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity

requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities

at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial

20 B EBEE =)
(i) REBEERR

AEECBRDEHRERERDES
FEREREBTHERO BN AHE
REAF AR ZR TR M HERZ
WA HEEFER URB X2V HHK
BRESRREE S AG RN HEEH
EREMRSHESHL-

TRETRRERRAEE 2B R
BB TAELOINHE  HRERALER

liabilities, based on undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,

based on current rates at the reporting date) and the earliest

date the Group can be required to pay.

As at 31 December 2017

iﬁ%/}\bi (
B AT K

*ﬁ?ﬂ(ﬁﬁ A “'774F‘J—.—u ﬁZ
CERN R B AR BRI

RHEERBRZERNHEAHE) REK
AEEERZRFAEMGH -

R-ZE—+tH¥+=-A=t+—H

Total contractual Within 1
Carrying undiscounted year or
amount cash flows on demand
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRREER —FRH
BREE ReERBBE RER
FHET FHERT FHERT
Non-derivative financial liabilities FITEMBEE
Trade and other payables BHREMENTE 61,675 61,675 61,675
As at 31 December 2016 RZT—R"F+=ZA=+—8H
Total contractual Within 1
Carrying undiscounted year or
amount cash flows on demand
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BHIARBER —F R
BREE REMELTE REX
FHT FHT FET
Non-derivative financial liabilities FITEMBEE
Trade and other payables BHREMENTE 30,260 30,260 30,260
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea) 40. Bt A b B B (#)

(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Interest rate risk related to the risk that the fair value or
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of

changes in market interest rate.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk mainly arises from
bank deposits which earn interests at floating or fixed rates.
At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group did not have
any interest bearing borrowings. The Group has not used any
derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.
The Group has not formulated a policy to manage the interest
rate risk. The Directors considered that the Group’s exposure

to interest rate risk is not significant.

(iv) Currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong. The functional
currency of the Company and most of its subsidiaries is HKS.
The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales that are denominated primarily in United States Dollars
("US$") for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.
Both US$ and RMB are currencies other than the functional

currencies of the operations to which they related.

(iIVRERER2AEBENRE

B

MERBAMBIAEZ AREBERR
S RAMSFEES MK E) 2R -

AEBAZZMNXEAREIZRAR
2B YE BREA B ZRITFR
—tFER-FT-RF+ A
=t—B AEEXEEFAHEEER-
AEFESEEBEMNTETRAOY
IR ) 2 L B o AN S B S S o E IR A
KRB BR - BEERRANEEAT
ZHRERILTEK

(iv) &%= b

REFBXT2REELE -ARAIRE
REHMBRR 2 e EE RHETT-
REBEZE_Z—+tER_ZF-RFT+=
AR=+—HIHE AEEZEEE

SEERBRREZNUET ([ET])
SAHEZHE - ETRARKEY RIEHE
EB 28U EE -

uUs$ RMB
EY AR®
2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—tF ZE-RF —E—tF ZE-RF
FET FHET FEx FHET
Trade and other receivables & 5 & H {1 e Ut 708 439 648 = -
Cash and cash equivalents RELBEEEED 5,375 5,458 486 361
Trade and other payables B 5 K& H At FE A 5UE (475) (129) (21) (17)
Overall net exposure BEFERRFE 5,339 5,977 465 344
ERERERAT
2017 £3§]
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea)

(iv) Currency risk (continued)

(v)

As HK$ is pegged to the US$, the Group does not have
material exchange rate risk on such currency. As at 31
December 2017 and 2016, the net exposure of assets
and liabilities to RMB is considered as minimal due to the
insignificance in amount. Accordingly, the Directors consider

that no sensitivity analysis is required.

Price risk

The Group’s held-for-trading investments are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Therefore,
the Group is exposed to equity security price risk. The
Directors manage this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of

investments with different risk profiles.

The Group's loss after tax for the year would decrease/
increase as a result of gains/losses on change in fair value of

held-for-trading investments recognised in profit or loss.

At 31 December 2017, if the share prices of the investments
increase/decrease by 5%, the Group’s loss after tax for the
year would have been approximately HK$1,761,000 lower/
higher (2016: HK$8,316,000), arising as a result of the fair

value gain/loss of the investments.
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40. i R EE (#)
(iv) E¥ @ B (4)

(v)

mRB T EETEE E A BT
BAEZEBZEREXRRR K=
E—tHER-_T-RFTA=1+—
BEBAREKHEBZEERABERR
FEHNARE BT AR QM
PR EFRRBEEDTET

HE-

B R

AEBZFHEEERERBEMRZ
ARBEEFE-Bit AR EERK
AEHFERRR EFERERFTRH
FRKFRiEA S B RZRER -

AEBFARRBE B RS RB SRR
ROFEEEREAABEEH RS
EEmE L g0

R-ZB—+F+-A=+—8 H&
BRRE EFTBE%  AEEF AR
BeEEBRRE s AnBEKE
&5 18 MR 245 A1 491,761,000 7T
(== —7X%:8,316,000/8 L) °
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for Shareholders and benefits for other

stakeholders.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher Shareholders’
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes
in economic conditions.

Management regards total equity as capital. The amount of
capital as at 31 December 2017 amounted to approximately

HK$165,683,000 (2016: HK$302,842,000).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 27 February 2018, the Board considered and approved a
resolution in relation to the proposed issue of bonds to independent
third parties with an aggregate principal amount of up to
HK$100,000,000. The bonds shall be issued at the interest rate of
not more than 6% per annum and matured on the date immediately
following the twelve months after the issue of the relevant bonds.
For details, please refer to the Company’'s announcement dated

27 February 2018.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by

the Board of Directors on 28 March 2018.

41.

42.

43.

EXEABRER
AEEEREASEREAEE HET

R T Re AR R R AR (R @ ¥R
R SR AE R R A A

AEBEBEGRERBSRERELERR
B HEAERSEEKFIETRZES
BROFERSRERESHRRAHRZE
ﬁé&%@ZF‘aﬁ%&ﬁ?@i'jﬁ?ﬁ%&i’ﬁﬂkﬁz
BENERNRBETH

EEERESBERRER K=
—+tF+t A=+ —BZEARHYE
#/5165,683,000/8 T (=T — X &
302,842,000/ L) °

BEHRER

RZE—-N\FZAZ+tH EFEZE
WHAEBBRZRAB LS =TETAEE
f 5 1= #£100,000,00058 7T 2 B FH 2 R
T EITCERRFRNETHIBO%
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Financial Summary

MBHRE

1. RESULTS

1.

For the year ended 31 December

ES

BEt-A=t+-BLEE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—tF ZE-RF —Z-1F —T-NF —Z-=F
TER FAT TET FAET FET
Revenue from continuing REREEEER L
operations WA 87,932 98,400 71,845 76,470 89,006
Loss before income tax from REBELCLER
continuing operations ZBIERAER (147,906) (18,370) (16,867) (48,287) (74,754)
Income tax credit/(expenses) REREEEER L
from continuing operations FEHER,/ (AX) 47 426 (235) - 141
Loss for the year from REBREZEB
discontinued operations FEEE (71) (465) (1,504) - -
Loss for the year attributable A AREE AEMHL
to owners of the Company EEER (147,930) (18,409) (18,606) (48,287) (74,613)
2. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 2. EERAEE
At 31 December
R+=A=t+-H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-tF “ERF “E-n% “E-mE “B-=%
TER FAET TET FTET FTET
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment  #1% B & &4 2,087 2,652 65,703 3,169 6,009
Goodwill kS 10,196 10,196 957 - 11,836
Intangible assets EREE 5,056 5,297 2,584 - -
Available-for-sale financial asset A {ff & B S B & = 15,300 - - -
Other assets HEwEE 210,872 300,559 205,322 78,774 28,654
Total assets BEE 228,211 334,004 274,566 81,943 46,499
Liabilities g
Current liabilities mEaRE 61,694 30,288 30,442 33,757 76,043
Non-current liabilities EnBER 834 874 354 - 7,129
Total liabilities BEE 62,528 31,162 30,796 33,757 83,172
Equity/(capital deficiency) RAATHEEAEGES
attributable to owners of J(EXRE#)
the Company 165,683 302,842 243,770 48,186 (36,673)
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